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Corporate Profile
NGITGV

Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (“Sa Sa” or “the Group/Company”) is
a leading cosmetic retailing and beauty services group in Asia. Listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) in 1997
(Stock Code: 178), the Sa Sa Group employs over 2,500 staff in seven
markets across the region, covering Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China,
Singapore, Malaysia, Taiwan and Thailand. Its vision is to become the

dominant cosmetics retailing and beauty services group in Asia.

Established in 1978, Sa Sa has grown from a 40 sq. ft. retail space to
become a regional “beauty” enterprise in Asia. It is now one of the largest
cosmetics retail chains in Asia, according to the “Retail Asia-Pacific Top
500" rankings of KPMG and Retail Asia magazine in 2005. Its renowned
brand strength in Asia is built on innovative cosmetics retailing at best value
in one-stop stores filled with top international brands. The strength of the
Sa Sa brand is reflected in the increasing number of awards the Group has

gained both in Hong Kong and internationally.
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Sa Sa has differentiated itself through the creation of an integrated “beauty”

platform that covers three distinct business areas:

Retail — The Group sells over 400 brands, covering 15,000 skin care,
fragrance, make-up, hair care products, bath and body care products and
health supplements including private labels and exclusive products. Its retail
network currently comprises an extensive regional network of over 85 Sa
Sa Cosmetics stores (including two 8,000 sq. ft. mega stores in Hong Kong),
as well as a La Colline specialty store, an Elizabeth Arden counter and a
Suisse Programme counter. Over eight million transactions are made in its
stores annually. Our e-commerce platform, Sasa.com, offers round-the-
clock on-line shopping services along with comprehensive product and

corporate information. It now serves customers from over 50 countries.

Brand Management — In addition to selling its private-label products, the
Group also operates as the sole agent for many international cosmetic
brands in Asia. Sa Sa has been appointed by a leading global prestige
brand, Elizabeth Arden, as its sole agent in Hong Kong and Macau since
October 2002. The Group currently handles over 50 exclusive major brands
with services that include brand-management, promotion and distribution.

This business accounts for over 30 per cent of Sa Sa’s total retail turnover.

Beauty Services — The Group operates a regional network of nine Phillip
Wain health and beauty ladies’ clubs in Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore
and Thailand and a men’s salon, Inspire, in Hong Kong for select premium
customers. The two Sasa Beauty™ beauty and slimming centres in Hong
Kong now offer comprehensive, quality and value-for-money beauty services

for Sa Sa’s loyal customers.

ISERIET TIRERER  2EAMN [X] B
EBTREER - WEF T EBRHOT S -

TEXY - SEHEEANEERE - RiEHEE—
BRTEEER  BK  (bhm - BEEER 8
MO BERERNERESRERM  AREEE
BmEMERAEER SETNETEBERIE
iR\ M Ui FPYE (R RN E AR
REEHEBENN\TFEAR) - La CollineHFE -
AR FFREH ARG T REXHE - BFNRS
FREEB\BER - KEEFHE T 5 Sasa.com
REHEBOTERROETRMAE A — TN
W ETERY - REENEMTNEREM -

MEEEEY - RIEEZEREERI - KET
REEBRB Y fh R R M BB R IRR © 5555
B _ZEZT_F1 ARERERMEA T RERFARS A
HEZERBBLRFRNBRAIE - RERBER
REAATEEZRN  BEHQMER  #EX
DT - WIAEBESPRTELETRAD L
=t-

ERRYB — KEEEE - FREDR - HINERER
BHLENEFENELFREPOLREE RS L
W REREEP Dinspire * ABE S BIREEM
BR7% - BEMMISasa Beautyt ERREREF LIRE
SRR EREREBEBENEDRY

) + JAGUAR PAL ZILERI
ALAIN DELON CELLEX-C fragrances
£ |2 .
% l&l]‘i 'Sl'l(iil 1\1 KRIZIA Yaris Stron
LAPERLA PERRY ELLIS
CYBER COLORS
BERGMAN L PUPA
5 OR
b\.JbIUf . = SERGIO TACCHINI
hl Shi
Caline FERRE S totto e

FIORUCCI

T Wil

TIGI g
g GCAS
Keep it simpile

UNITED COLORS
OF BENETTON.

o
w

SR SE A AR

2l v 3 I B e R B R



o
=

9002 / S00Z Hoday [enuuy

paywi sBulp|oH [euOIjRUIDIU| BS BS

Corporate Information
NAER

Board of Directors

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. LOOK, Guy (Chief Financial Officer)

Mrs. LEE LOOK, Ngan Kwan, Christina

Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee, J.P.
Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas, J.P.
Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, Maria, GBS, J.P.

Qualified Accountant

Mr. LOOK, Guy

Company Secretary

Ms. HO, Sze Nga, Maggie

Head Office

14th Floor, Block B, MP Industrial Centre
18 Ka Yip Street
Chai Wan, Hong Kong

Registered Office

P.O. Box 309GT
Ugland House
South Church Street
George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
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Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P. O. Box 705

Butterfield House

68, Fort Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Abacus Share Registrars Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Citibank, N.A.

Credit Suisse

DBS Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Listing Information

Listing : The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code  :178

Ticker Symbol

Bloomberg 1 178HK

Reuters 1 178.HK

Board lot size : 2,000 shares

Investor Relations

E-mail address: ir@sasa.com

Website

Www.sasa.com

FERGBFRELE

Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P. O. Box 705

Butterfield House

68, Fort Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands
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Financial and Operations Highlights
B REHBRE

Turnover & %8

HK$ million BEE#ET

Year £E
05/06

04/05
03/04
02/03
01/02
00/01

99/00

Turnover by Business & %8R EK DM

B 2,6206

2,313.7

1,316.6

Turnover by Region # $#Z81Z g 5 #

92.5%

Cosmetics Retailing and Wholesaling
eERBERILH

7.5%

Beauty Services
EBRES

88.9%

Mainland China (Includes Hong Kong and Macau)
PEAE (RERERERM)

7.7%

South Asia (Singapore,
Malaysia & Thailand)
FASEIbIE (RTINS -
SRR RFEE)

3.4%

Taiwan
A E

Total §# : HK$2,620.6 million BE#&T

Financial Calendar Bt#§ B3

2005/06 Interim Results Announcement
AT R/ B NFEPHESE

30th November 2005
—TTRFT-A=+H

Payment of 2005/06 Interim and Special Dividends
I — TR/ REFEPHRSRIKRE

29th December 2005
ZETRF+ZA=+NE

2005/06 Annual Results Announcement
D _BETR/ENFERFEE

29th June 2006
ZETRFARAZTAB

Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)
TERERNBFPELES (BEEREMX)

21st-24th August 2006
ZETRFNAZT—ZE=+mWmA

Annual General Meeting 24th August 2006
RFAFRE TETXRNFNAA-TIEA
Proposed Payment of 2005/06 Final and Special Dividends 29th August 2006

BEkE _ZTh/ERFERPRSIREAH

—EERFNAZTAA




Financial Summary B#BRE 2005/2006 2004/2005

(Restated E#15I7R)

Turnover ( HK$ million )
EHEE(FBET)

Operating profit ( HK$ million )
R (B8ET)

2,620.6 2,313.7

222.6 245.6

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company ( HK$ million )
NAFER A AEESR (BEET)

Total annual dividend per share ( HK cents )
EFERIRE (B

Earnings per share - Basic (HK cents)
BREAER - EAR (BIL)

Net cash & bank balances ( HK$ million )
FHe RIFTES (BEST)

Inventory turnover ( days )
FEREMS(XR)

185.2 202.1

17.0* 17.0"

13.9 15.5

695.7 743.1

89 101

*Included 9.0 HK cents special dividend **Included 9.0 HK cents special dividend
EFEFFIRE9.08 EFEIFHIRRB.9.08 N

Sa Sa International Group's Business Network in Asia 335 BB E BN EER/E

Image
Sa Sa Store /
Stores Counter

No. of Retail Outlets BB | HRE/
ZENHA {LRERIE =i
Hong Kong & Macau 51 5
BB RRM

Shanghai 2 _
i

Taiwan ) _
BEHE

Singapore _
FNE 10

Malaysia _
SR FEE 10

No. of Beauty

Services Facilities Clubs | Centres
&P/ BFTEE =i LYV
Hong Kong & Macau 4 2
BB RRM

Singapore o _
Fhn

Malaysia o _
SRR

Thailand 2 _
=E

As at 31st March 2006

72006 F 3 A 318










Awards and Recognition
#3778

Service

AR %5

Sa Sa was one of the ten winners of the Hong Kong Top Service Brand
Awards organised by the Hong Kong Brand Development Council and
The Chinese Manufacturer's Association of Hong Kong in 2006.

DPOIR_FBENEFEBFEMEERBEBEATERRBAERE KX
ERRBEE -

La Colline shop was the Service Category Leader in the
Beauty Products/Cosmetics category of the Mystery
Shoppers Programme organised by Hong Kong Retail
Management Association in 2005.

La CollineBFIEEEATEERH SN _ ST A FEHWEE
FFEI AR REABNRERESER -

All of the six colleagues who represented Sa Sa in the Distinguished
Salesperson Award organised by Hong Kong Management
Association received the award in 2006.

AURKTFEENRE2NELEREE RGN - ST NFRH
ZEEHEHEBRIES  2HEGEDE -

1Eﬂ[m A Sa Sa beauty consultant won Quality Service Star
Award in The Retail & Service Energetic Star Awards 2005
== organised by Easy Finder magazine in Hong Kong.
obFier P RETBRESNEN-SEREN 2 TEMRBEEEN
ZERE-TZZNHESBERBAK -

o

Brand Recognition
RSB

N
(@)
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Sa Sa was presented with the Outstanding Chain Store award
by Hong Kong Business magazine for the second year in 2005.
BIR_ZZTRFEESE _FEHong Kong BusinessFiti& A
SR o

Sa Sa won the Category Award in the Retail Category for Superbrands
2005/06 in Hong Kong. Sa Sa was also awarded the Superbrands title in Hong
Kong, Singapore and Malaysia and Phillip Wain won the same honour too.

SRR RN/ TRFERSRRME TEAR RIBABIKE < SSSIREE
%ﬂ]ﬂbﬁi&%)(ﬁﬁﬁ AR IE N BIGESBRMMEARE -

Retail Category Award
ZERBARI KR

N




Brand Recognition
RSB

~

Sa Sa received the Corporate Brand Management Excellence Award "\’

(category award) and The Best Brand Enterprise Award in The Best Brand 2006

Enterprise Award 2005-2006 organised by Hong Kong Productivity Council. THE BESTEXQ?&EHN;?E?E AWARD
BN EBEENRE BRI S EEIRM D3 2005-2006 FHEEE P -
LEARARBEFREEERERRENREAERM b HE -

Sa Sa won the Most Favourable Brands of the Nation award and both Sa Sa and
Sasa Beautyt were presented with PRC Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong
Brands - Gold Prize in The PRC Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong Brands voting
campaign organised by the Hong Kong Association of Chinese Travel Organisers, Sohu.com
and a number of media and professional bodies in 2006. Sa Sa received the highest votes

among Hong Kong brands.

SPIS 2006 BEIHBE K EEEFBAMIET - BUS20062EREZMBAR - M55 R
Sasa Beauty IR #2006 T BN EERESERBMER - PP FARSEERETUSR
SRR - ZTERBATREIRERE FRENAREMEERESEH

Sa Sa was named as one of the Top Ten Favourite Brands in Hong Kong in
2004/05 & 2005/06 by readers of Guangzhou Daily, one of the most popular
dailies in the PRC. Sa Sa also received The Hong Kong Merchants of Integrity

md

Guangzhou Daily

Award in the cosmetics category for the third successive year in 2005/06.
BIR_EEN/ TRF RS R/ENFEEMFETRZEHERE 2 — BN
HREARZEEREBTARE MARZZZH/ S FEEES =F Mt
mAARIEE AR BEEREHSR -

@

F
z H
"B
- Sa Sa was accredited the Hong Kong Q-Mark by the Hong Kong § 2
m Q-Mark Council under the auspices of the Federation of Hong ra
LAY Kong Industries. The Q-Mark is a sign of quality excellence. #

\x DR ERESTLASETHEEEEEERERQERE
ERBERBHRITRST
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Awards and Recognition

#515

Brand Recognition

o b SR

Sa Sa is the only cosmetic specialty store among the Top 10 Retail Groups

in Hong Kong, as ranked by KPMG and Retail Asia magazine in their Retail

Asia-Pacific Top 500 in 2005.

EESHEFEIEHFT KRetail Asiaff R 2005F B A RHIN [EABEFTAAR
TEF| b PPBERNAEBTAZEEE TR ABMAEEREME -

o Asia-Pacitc ﬁ

ot 2O o 1 P s s s

visa s

AFEBI100 REAFEIRE -

Sa Sa and Phillip Wain were named among Hong Kong’s \
100 Most Influential Brands by World Brand Laboratory,
a brand value evaluation organisation, in 2005.

PRI REREEEFERBERREERTEA-TT

8/

Sasa.com was awarded Standard of Excellence in the WebAward 2005 organised

by Web Marketing Association, in which 2,100 websites participated worldwide. Only

two cosmetics shopping sites, Sasa.com and Biotherm (US), received such an award.

Sasa.com #Web Marketing AssociationZ2###)20055 WebAward & B utE 82 eh - &
15 Standard of Excellence K& - )2 EE B R G RS = F—F @AY - Mg web awar s

HERE @ EY UL {£Sasa.com K Biotherm28 52 5 (2 E4u4) -

World-renowned internet company Yahoo! gave Sasa Beauty™t
its Yahoo! Emotive Brand Award 2005-2006 in the Beauty
Salon/Fitness Centers category.

24 R B 48R T3 2 Yahoo A1 Sasa Beauty T 425 Yahoo!
BAERIE2005-2006578 (ER/AE S F0M4ER) o

Sa Sa was named as one of the seven Retailers of National Excellence

for Hong Kong district by China Unionpay in 2005.
IR - RERFEPERGIERTER L XERRBEIEHF 2 — -

[DEER A%

CHINA UNIODNPRARY

that offers excellent services and value-for-money.

Sy 841 55 TR PH 55 BRI AE B Fair Price Shop Awards 2005-2006 © 215 055 1R (B S B WA FTEM IR °

Sa Sa was awarded the Fair Price Shop Awards 2005-2006 by the Ministry of Domestic Trade and
Consumer Affairs in Malaysia in recognition of Sa Sa's outstanding performance as a retail chain




Management
hEERE

IR

Sa Sa won Grand Prix for Best Overall Investor Relations — Small/Mid-Cap Company
in the IR Magazine Hong Kong & Taiwan Awards 2005, in recognition of Sa Sa‘s
excellence in investor relations. In addition, Mr. Guy Look, Chief Financial Officer and
Executive Director of the Group, was one of the two executives Highly Commended
in the Best Investor Relations Officer — Small/Mid-Cap Company award.
FER_ZZRFEIR(REEBR) MFEHERAEREY  REREERREERAEKR
#-/NRRT - BN EEERVSEERITESERAENEREREEREREE-
RINBATRIBEREE S E [RENE] 2E82— -

~

Sa Sa was in the top quartile for corporate governance standards among CLSALREEEL I

large-cap and blue-chip companies, according to an annual survey by CLSA and ——
the Asian Corporate Governance Association in 2005. -
BCLSARTMNEEEABER —STRFHRITNFERERT - DIHLEER

Ik B2 R KA &

AN RENEES Z=TREFEN AR ZA

The holy grail

N

Chairman & CEO, Mr. Simon Kwok, received Distinguished Contribution

Award for Beauty Industry 2005 (Cosmetic & Retail) by International
CICA Association of Esthetics, CIDESCO Section China.
ETRERTHREHT VAL ERBRTEER Hhe @it Es 8%
2005B BERERLEMAR (LIERLZE) -

Chairman and CEO, Mr. Simon Kwok, was named as Best Beauty Entrepreneur in Town in the Best

Beauty Creation Award organised by COVERMARK, a renowned beauty brand.
R RATE AR VAR S EE E A A B COVERMARKEM B R MIBFRE AR TENEREHAIPA -

Chairman and CEO, Mr. Simon Kwok, was named as the Chinese Business Person
of The Year 2005 in the cosmetics retailing category by the World Executive Weekly.
FE RATIARE 0 DB S AR R AR A B PR R mEE 5 2 20050 BB F
ERZEAY -

Sa Sa was invited by Hong Kong Management Association

to become a Charter Member.

IR EEREEGEUARAERRES -

—
w

SR SE A AR

255 R S Y R B
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Milestones
RNEFXK

1978

e Eleanor Kwok, founder of the Group, and her husband,
Simon Kwok, began their cosmetics retailing business from
a 40-square-feet “Sa Sa” counter in Hong Kong.
BIMASBEED L L RHA
LRBIBREEEZ /\EE/%
— & +F IRy [5555 ]
fbiEmBLREREREE

1990

e Opening of the first Sa Sa Cosmetics store in Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.
WEBIREEHR AR mE -

1992

e Opening of the first branch store in Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.
WEBNERDERIEREHDE

1997

* Opening of the first store in Taiwan.

AEEREHRZE -
e Total number of shops increases to 11 in Hong Kong.

BHEREHEERET -
e Sa Sa listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong in June with an over-
subscription rate of more than 500
times.
BIRANAEBERHARIMARR
AlEm - R EREREAL A -
Opening of the first store in Singapore.
FONE H SRR
Opening of the first store in Macau.
SRPIE BRI o

1998

e Opening of the first store in Malaysia.

SRAG EEEHFRE -

2000

Opening of La Colline specialty store offers customers

L]

premium beauty products and services, and demonstrating
the Group’s diverse brand-management capabilities.
fiskLa CollineHFIJE - RETIRHEENEDEm MR -
BRRAEEHRENRBEERES

Acquires a major stake in Phillip Wain, a leader in premium

ladies’ beauty and health clubs in Asia. This marks the
Group'’s first step into the
Beauty Services arena.
BIHKRIENBEZFREEFRO
WEARE - EXARRERN
EREB - FENERTEMRE
BEMUNEELFERRRE
e

Opening of the Group’s 50th

L]

retailing outlet in Asia.
AR TR b 58 RS A -

Launch of Sasa.com offers customers round-the-clock

on-line shopping of beauty products.
Sasa.com@ULRI A @ EER AMBERERE LEBEEAER

2001

e Launch of Korean language site at Sasa.com strengthens
the Group’s penetration of the Korean market, one of the
biggest e-commerce markets in Asia.

I Sasa.comB X At - #E— LRBEMEREFEHEN
52 —HIEFEm S o



2002

* Appointed as sole agent for

2005

e Opening of the first and second stores in Shanghai, China.
PR E MBS LERE -
and Macau. * Opening of two largest Sa Sa stores in Asia (each covering
B EEERFRSAIEERS 8,000 sq.ft.) in Tsim Sha Tsui and Mongkok, Hong Kong.
FORPITISEE R IR - MEE2DMEREFFEFRRE B ARKSDEME (S
» Opening of Sasa Beauty* in Hong Kong offering one-stop 8,000 FFMR) -

Elizabeth Arden in Hong Kong

cosmetics, beauty and slimming services to Sa Sa'’s loyal
customers, thereby enhancing Sa
Sa’s brand image.

Sasa Beauty " ERFLEEBK
o BRSSHRERERRERM [—
R fbiEm - ER LA ER
% RADTHRBER

2003

e 25th anniversary of the Sa Sa International Group.
P BIFRRE — + R FIRERHE -

e Becomes a 100% stakeholder in Phillip Wain.
BRRFNENZERR -

2004

e (Official launch of a new image store
featuring a contemporary and

upbeat design, which provides a

pleasant shopping environment
and strengthens its “Cosmetics

Retail Specialist” image. The new

store format is part of our continuous efforts and commitment 2 006

to providing an enjoyable shopping experience for customers. * Opening of the first Suisse Programme beauty counter in
Sk MR ERER 2 IERTR - R REL - T8 Chengdu, China.

REEMEATENBYIRE - B s [{EERTEEER] AR B Ak AR5 2% & (@ Suisse Programme A& o

TR - SR RETESEERYER  BRTIT 8 [
ERY] R ERS -

e Opening of Inspire For Men
by Phillip Wain, broadening
our service offerings to male

customers.

JE H{&F% Inspire For Men by
Phillip Wain * $RSHREZE B
TEm -

—
Ul

SR E AT/ AR

2l 33 B B S
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Chairman's Statement
B

Chairman & CEO, Simon Kwok
FRRITBEZBLHA



The fiscal year 2005/06 marked solid progress for the Sa Sa Group. The
rise in tourist arrivals continued during the year, albeit slowly in the first half.
The addition of four new cities in China to the Individual Visit Scheme in
November 2005, along with a noticeable improvement in consumer sentiment
and spending in Hong Kong contributed to a quickening in turnover growth
in the latter half of the year. We continued with the expansion of our retail
network in preparation for the further development of tourism in the region,
and there was an improvement in sales growth overseas and in the
performance of Sasa.com. Group turnover rose 13.3% to HK$2,620.6
million, while Group profit decreased 8.4% to HK$185.2 million mainly due

to escalating rental costs and initial expansion costs.

In addition to the interim dividend of 3.0 HK cents and a special dividend
of 3.0 HK cents per share, the Board of Directors proposed a final dividend
of 5.0 HK cents per share and a special dividend 6.0 HK cents per share,
payable on 29th August 2006 to those persons registered as shareholders
as of 24th August 2006, making a total dividend of 17.0 HK cents per share

for the fiscal year.

Against this background of sales growth, we maintained our focus on
building for the future on the foundations that Sa Sa has already laid in terms
of attracting both local and overseas customers, developing new and existing
markets overseas, enhancing customer loyalty, and strengthening product

development.

During the year, the Group devoted considerable resources and efforts to
further leveraging on the accumulated goodwill and reputation of the ‘Sa
Sa’ brand. These efforts received widespread recognition. Sa Sa was one
of the ten winners at the Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards, and received
the highest votes in The PRC Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong
Brands voting campaign in 2006. In addition, Sa Sa won the Category
Award in the Retail Category for Superbrands 2005/06, Corporate Brand
Management Excellence Award (Category Award) in The Best Brand
Enterprise Award 2005-2006. The steady accumulation of specific brand
awards testifies to the success of our brand building strategy and our

leadership in cosmetics retailing in the region.

SHRER FEEIT MR ERGREER -
PSRN IRE SR - BAAE LK i
REEAHIE - FEERTR - FERET— A%
WABABEE - N EABEBE AR ERER
£ BRENREENTLFEEEERBEE -

SBEEENESHAES  BARANREXRELGRE
HEE - BN TISIHE RIS R K Sasa.comAY LiE

MRBMERT - RESEFENAS 2 T=5=
E-HRNEZTERTEET - MEBENRI TR
BOZN\HOE—BATRE_TEET  T2H
K2R LT RBERFTISTMNM -

FEIRETHRBER =B RS RRESR=E
il EFERFEAR T REFN\A - THALS
BER A MR 3 R S SR B (L R 5
B BER/EI - RIERESNR _ZETRNFNAZ
TARKN - 2F&HREFR B -

EHEREROTET - SREETERSIAERE
SNEE - EEIMIRITTISRIRETS - IREP
BAEA R IR E M MAE T IE BERER
ERBIRK -

FAERERAREERME—FER) 3555 @mhE
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Chairman's Statement
T ERNEY

In terms of products, we continued to develop our portfolio of private-label
and exclusively distributed products and in the second half of the year we
launched our own ‘Sasa’ branded products throughout the region, offering
a range of quality and value products that aim to provide total solutions to
our customers’ beauty needs. We will continue to strengthen both our
exclusive brand and own brand portfolios in order to develop more customer

loyalty, drive growth and provide solid contributions to our future profits.

The Group remains committed to providing its customers with highly
professional and top quality service as well as total beauty solutions. The
year saw further integration of our beauty services with our retail business
in order to enhance their synergy and provide more comprehensive services
to customers. Sasa Beauty™ began to offer treatments in dedicated treatment
rooms in our new stores in Hong Kong, while Phillip Wain provided treatments
at the new flagship store in Singapore. Customer service training and product

training were strengthened in all our overseas operations.

Excellent customer service is strongly dependent on efficient operational
and IT systems. During the year, we began a significant upgrading of our
[T infrastructure in order to increase our business process capability, and
inventory and sales management. At the heart of this lay the adoption of
the globally recognised SAP’s R3 Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”)

system.
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The SAP system not only improves productivity and customer relationship
management, but it also increases managerial control through the imposing
of best business practices and processes. It also supports our ongoing
drive to achieve international standards of corporate governance, risk
management and transparency. According to an annual survey by CLSA
and the Asian Corporate Governance Association, Sa Sa was in the top
quartile for corporate governance standards among large-cap and blue-

chip companies in 2005.

All these initiatives reflect our determination to strengthen our competitive
advantages, efficiency and management effectiveness in the highly competitive
cosmetics, health and beauty market of Asia. Fiscal year 2005/06 saw us
established on a strategic direction that will allow us to realise our full growth

potential, not only in all existing markets but also in new ones.

Against a background of growing tourism and local spending, we will
continue to leverage on our competitiveness to realise further growth in
Hong Kong and Macau. At the same time, we aim to expand our retail
network to operate more than 240 stores in the Asia region by 2011, and
to support this expansion through enhanced core functions and organisational
structure in Hong Kong. In the long term, Mainland China, which has

tremendous growth potential, will provide us with further growth opportunities.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all our employees for the
commitment, drive and resourcefulness they have devoted to making Sa
Sa one of the most well known and respected brands in Asia. | would also
like to thank all our shareholders for their continuing support and for
participating in our vision and strategy for the future. It is our firm belief in
the Sa Sa Group that we will be able to repay the confidence of both our
employees and shareholders with increased shareholder value in the years

to come.

Simon Kwok

E g%

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
EERITHABE

Hong Kong, 29th June 2006
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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For the year ended 31st March 2006, the Group’s consolidated turnover
amounted to HK$2,620.6 million, representing an increase of 13.3% from
HK$2,313.7 million in the previous fiscal year. The Group’s consolidated
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$185.2 million,
a decrease of 8.4% from the HK$202.1 million, as restated, recorded last

fiscal year. The basic earnings per share amounted to 13.9 HK cents.

A number of factors affected the Group’s performance. Higher rentals and
operational costs, particularly in Hong Kong, partially offset the improved
turnover growth and gross profit. The expansion of the Group’s retail network
led to increased initial costs while sales growth, although showing marked
improvement in the second half, was lower than expected. There were start-
up losses incurred for entry into the Mainland China market and a one-off
adjustment in revenue recognition for exercise memberships in the beauty
services business. Purchase of Euro forward contracts and Euro holdings
resulted in exchange losses due to fluctuation of the currency. These losses
were partially offset by property revaluation and a one-off compensation

payment for early termination of a lease.

Retail & Wholesale Business

During the fiscal year 2005/06, the Group’s retail and wholesale business
saw growth in turnover of 14.3%, reaching HK$2,425.3 million. The overall

gross profit margin grew due to our enhanced product mix.
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QOur inventory turnover days were 89 days for the year ended 31st March
2006, as opposed to 101 days for the previous fiscal year. The Group
continued to expand its store network in view of expected tourism growth,
driven by various tourism projects in the region in coming years. In view of
escalating rentals, the Group started to negotiate for first floor and basement

floor areas in order to lower rental costs.

New value-added features were added to our retail services, such as
complimentary facial treatment in our stores, and we continued to strengthen
brand-building efforts for “Sa Sa” and the “beauty specialist” image of Sa
Sa in the region. These initiatives included sponsorship of the Miss Hong
Kong Pageant 2005 and the Federation Internationale De Volleyball World
Grand Prix 2005, as well as the first title sponsorship of the Hong Kong
Jockey Club’s Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse Day in October 2005, one of the most
popular racing days in Hong Kong. The race day sponsorship, including
outdoor, TV and print adverts, and a series of public relations and joint
promotion activities, generated considerable publicity for Sa Sa, its exclusive
brands and beauty centres. Overseas markets saw an improvement in sales

growth while the sales of Sasa.com also rose significantly.

Hong Kong and Macau

Increased spending by tourists, both from Mainland China and other parts
of the world, as well as a pick up in local spending contributed to an increase
in turnover of 11.2% in Hong Kong and Macau to HK$2,131.3 million. The
year-on-year monthly retail sales growth increased from 8.2% in October
2005, being the lowest point of the year, to 16.5% in March 2006. Monthly
same store growth also increased from -14.3% in October 2005 to 5.2%
in March 2006. Full year same store sales saw a decline of 4.0%. The overall
improvement in the second half of the fiscal year was mainly due to the
addition of four new cities in China to the central government’s Individual
Visit Scheme in November 2005, which led to an increase in the sales
contribution from PRC tourists from 33.0% in October to 38.0% in December
2005. This confirmed the management’s view of the likely impact of the

Individual Visit Scheme to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The average value per transaction and the total number of transactions
increased by 7.1% and 5.0% respectively. During the fiscal year, there was
a net increase of eight new stores including two mega stores in Tsim Sha
Tsui and Mongkok, each with 8,000 square feet. As at 31st March 2006,
the total net retail area had increased by 36.7% as compared to last fiscal
year. In total, there were 51 Sa Sa stores, one La Colline specialty store

and one Elizabeth Arden counter as at 31st March 2006.

Mainland China

The second Sa Sa store in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) was
opened in November 2005 on Nanjing West Road, Shanghai. As at 31st
March 20086, there were two Sa Sa stores in Shanghai, providing first hand
knowledge of the local cosmetics market and helping facilitate our planning
for future development of the Mainland market in areas such as branding,
product and network strategy. Exclusive brands launched included Suisse
Programme and “Sasa” (make-up, skin care, body care and hair care lines).
Suisse Programme and “Sasa” branded products have been well received
by the market. In regard to the product registration process of exclusive
products, around 500 stock keeping units (“SKUs”) were completed and

approximately 250 SKUs are in progress.

Singapore and Malaysia

Turnover for the Singapore and Malaysian markets grew 25.2% to reach
HK$141.1 million. Same store growth rose 11.8% in Singapore, and 16.2%
in Malaysia. Overall, there was an improvement in the contribution of

Singapore and Malaysia to the Group’s results.

In Singapore, performance was affected by the changeover of the country’s
General Manager. However continuous improvement measures in terms
of approach and organisation provide a solid platform for future expansion.
The company achieved higher sales with an enhanced product portfolio
and increased sales in exclusive products on the back of more focused
training. One new store was added, making a total number of 10 stores
as at 31st March 2006. In Malaysia, sales of exclusive products grew while
training was enhanced. One store closed during the year, making the number

of stores 10 at the end of the fiscal year.
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Taiwan

Turnover in the Group’s Taiwan business increased by 42.0% during the
year to HK$89.0 million, with same store growth reaching 10.4%. An increase
in contributions to the Group was recorded. However, the local banks’
tightening of credit control in the fourth quarter and the consequent dampening
of consumer spending affected the performance in the fourth quarter of

this fiscal year.

Sales of exclusive products grew and productivity improved on the back
of strengthened training, but the fast pace of expansion made it challenging
to provide enough experienced beauty consultants. Four new stores were

added, bringing the total store number to eight as at 31st March 2006.

E-commerce — Sasa.com
Turnover for Sasa.com amounted to HK$52.6 million, representing an
increase of 72.8% over the previous fiscal year. The profit margin continued

to improve.

We have built a great brand that everyone knows, and we have an unmatched
range of products for our huge, loyal and region-wide customer base. Our
relationship with our vendors is excellent, our sales professionals give quality
service, and we have a long-established network of more than 80 retail outlets

in prime Asian locations, along with an attractive on-line presence.

In addition, we have extensive industry experience and a clear business focus
on beauty, supported by well thought-out corporate strategies, a robust balance
sheet and a strong management team.
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Leveraging on the new platform launched last year, an improved marketing
strategy and an expanded product range, increased sales were achieved.
Pageview reached 11.7 million per month and unique visitors reached
442,000 per month, an increase of 46.0% and 98.0%, respectively, over
the previous fiscal year. Total VIP sales including all countries increased from
17.0% to 24.0% of total sales. This demonstrated Sasa.com’s success in

increasing customer loyalty.

In the WebAward 2005 organised by the Web Marketing Association of the
USA, Sasa.com received the “Standard of Excellence” under the Shopping
category, alongside other global brands such as Nike, Godiva, Biotherm
and Maidenform. Only two beauty sites, Sasa.com and Biotherm (USA),
were included in the list of awardees. The award recognises the excellence
of Sasa.com in design, ease of use, content, innovation, copywriting,
interactivity and use of technology. Following the invitation to promote its
cards at Sasa.com, VISA proved to be one of our more important on-line

partners.

Brand Management

Sales of private-label and exclusively distributed products increased by
18.5% and contributed 30.1% to the Group’s total retail and wholesale sales
for the year ended 31st March 2006. The Group launched “Sasa” branded
products throughout the region in the second half of the year, including
colour cosmetics, accessories, skin care, hair care and body care products.
The “Sasa” brand offers a range of quality and value products that provides
total solutions for the beauty needs of our customers. These products were
well received by the market. During the year, Sa Sa launched an exclusive
Swiss skin care brand, Méthode Swiss, strengthening the medium-priced
product portfolio. New brands secured for Sa Sa’s exclusive distributorship
included Bergman, Organic Elements, fragrance of Paris Hilton, Ferre,

Hummer, Guess, Gas, French Connection and Lulu Guinness, among others.
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Reflecting the cosmeceutical trends in the global beauty industry, Sa Sa

launched its first Australian cosmeceutical brand, Skin Doctors, in October
2004. In August 2005, Sa Sa added Bergman, a top brand in this category
from the Netherlands, to Asia. Since organic skin care products are now
playing a more important role in the global beauty market, Sa Sa introduced
a famous ltalian skin care brand, Organic Elements, to Asia. Efforts were
also made to further broaden the product range and to enhance the product

mix. On average, over 550 new products were added each month.

During the year, we continued to strengthen our marketing activities,
increasing the advertising and promotion budget and launching more
products and road shows. We undertook a comprehensive marketing
campaign for Suisse Programme, including appointment of a celebrity as
image girl, a TV advert, and a series of print adverts and public relations
activities, in order to boost the brand image and to launch the new product
lines. The market response was overwhelming. Not only was the brand
image much enhanced, but sales also increased substantially. Other successful
products launched included Elizabeth Arden After Five and Paris Hilton
fragrance, of which around 11,800 and 5,500 bottles respectively were sold

within three months.
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Beauty Services

Turnover for beauty services was HK$195.3 million, representing an increase
of 2.0% over the previous fiscal year. The performance was affected by a
one-off adjustment in revenue recognition for exercise memberships in the
beauty services business and increased cost pressure at Sasa Beauty™.
The year saw further integration of our beauty services with our retail
business. Phillip Wain provided beauty treatments at the new flagship store
in Singapore and Sasa Beauty™ offered beauty services in the new stores
in Hong Kong, where treatment rooms are now available. New treatments
introduced in Phillip Wain and Sasa Beauty™ included Drum Stimulating
Reflexology, Herbal Heat Massage, Radio Frequency Fat Burning Treatment

and Light Emitted Diode Supreme Treatment.

Phillip Wain

Phillip Wain offers premium beauty and ladies’ health clubs that cater for
the discerning customers. Turnover increased by 1.0% to HK$170.2 million.
There was a small loss mainly due to a one-off adjustment in revenue

recognition for exercise memberships.

The year saw an increase of 6.3% in treatments undertaken. Sales of
products also grew and there was a marked improvement in marketing
efforts. New exercise classes including Drum Alive and Latin Rhythm were

introduced.
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Sa Sa applies its global sourcing and purchasing capabilities to obtaining the
best value products, buying in bulk to increase its bargaining power. A further
factor is our excellent long-term relationships with vendors. While we pride
ourselves on our ability to offer generous discounts, we also take exceptional

care to ensure that everything we sell is genuine and in tip-top condition.



How can Sa Sa achieve such a high
standard of customer service?
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By Creating a Strong Training Team
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Our training team is specialised in different training programs. These include
product knowledge (with different trainers specialized in skin care, fragrance,
make-up products and beauty treatments); skin analysis; make-up training;
Mandarin speaking; selling skills; supervisory skills; customer service skills;
and general management skills.

Intensive Training
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A new beauty consultant receives more than 150 training hours before she
becomes a qualified beauty consultant (“BC”). We also provide continuous
training to existing BCs to update their skills and knowledge in all the above
categories. Good training is vital for cosmetics retailing because it improves
sales and service, enhances the corporate image, the professionalism of our
staff, and the sense of belonging of our employees.

Knowledge of the Market and Customer
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THTERBEENER

The cosmetic retailing industry changes very rapidly, always catching up with
new trends and the evolving needs of customers. Therefore, our staff must
be updated frequently. In addition, our sales staff act as personal consultants
to customers for their beauty needs. They require an in-depth knowledge of
both products and customer requirements in order to provide tailor-made
beauty advice.

Building Loyalty
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We aim at providing a service to customers, not only at selling products. Our
mission is to convert more and more buyers of our products and services into
loyal customers. We therefore monitor our services very closely and strengthen
our service-oriented culture through various internal programmes and through
participation in external monitoring schemes such as mystery shoppers
programmes.

Gaining Recognition
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Sa Sa stores as well as La Colline specialty store have repeatedly received
accolades for their quality services and have been awarded the Quality Tourism
Services certificate by the Hong Kong Tourism Board. This scheme honours
tourism service providers that have achieved excellent quality in the areas of
environment, products, processes, people and systems.
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Sasa Beauty™

The establishment of Sasa Beautyt complements our retail business
development, providing all-round cosmetics and beauty services to Sa Sa
customers. During the year, turnover increased by 9.5% to HK$25.1 million.
A small loss was recorded, mainly because the increase in turnover could

not offset escalating rental costs. The number of members rose by 20.2%.

Strengthening IT Infrastructure and Operational Systems

In order to build up a common platform with the capability to manage,
collaborate and exchange real-time sales and inventory information with
all our business partners and to respond to ever-increasing customer demand
and market competition, the Group is upgrading its IT infrastructure and

adopting the SAP’s R3 Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) system.

With this globally proven and fully integrated system, we aim to increase
our business process efficiency and managerial control through best business
practices and management processes. The SAP system also allows us to
standardise and increase our transparency of information flow and improve
our business decision process by providing detailed, timely and reliable
financial, sales and inventory information, as well as enhance our supply

chain and customer relationship management capabilities.
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These capabilities will give us more understanding of our customer’s buying
behaviour and purchase patterns, general market trends and potential. They
will also help us to improve procurement, inventory management, sales

promotion, productivity of sales staff and customer service.

Outlook

We are crafting a sustainable development strategy through a thorough
study of prospects that includes a risk management project (details of which
can be found in the Corporate Governance section of this Report). In view
of the maturing Hong Kong and Macau market, and of the need to adapt
and integrate our systems for overseas markets, we are laying the following

strategic foundations for our next stage of growth:

* We are strengthening the brand equity of “Sa Sa”.

¢ We are reviewing and strengthening our core functions in order to build
a stronger base to support future expansion and development. This
includes improving the organisational structure of our headquarters in
Hong Kong to provide stronger support for the operation of overseas
markets.

* In order to provide a solid foothold for expansion into existing and
prospective overseas markets as well as Mainland China, we are placing
increasing emphasis on product development, marketing and securing
exclusive distribution rights for international brands to build a stronger
brand and product portfolio for the Group.

* We are adopting SAP’s R3 ERP system, as outlined above. In the second
half of 2006 we will begin upgrading our IT infrastructure, which will
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of our operations, marketing and

inventory management.

We aim to expand our retail network in the next four years to operate more
than 240 stores in the Asia region by 2011. While consolidating continuous
growth in our core retail base in Hong Kong and Macau, Sa Sa will increase
its penetration in the existing overseas markets of Taiwan, Singapore and
Malaysia. This in turn will drive growth for the Group in the medium to long
term. Mainland China, a developing market with huge potential, and other
new overseas markets will provide growth opportunities for the Group in

the long run.
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Our strategic initiatives for the future are:

1

.Further Growth in the Hong Kong and Macau Market

Hong Kong and Macau are set to continue their development as a major
tourist destination in the pan-Asian region. The further relaxation of the
Individual Visit Scheme means that an increasing number of regular visitors
from the PRC will continue to drive the base line growth of the cosmetics
market in Hong Kong and Macau. These regular visitors are attracted
to Hong Kong as a shopping paradise that provides good value, high
quality and excellent services. Figures from the Hong Kong Tourism Board
reveal that double-digit growth of PRC tourists was recorded from January
to April 2006.

e There are a number of Government initiatives that are helping to boost

tourism. 2006 is “Discover Hong Kong Year”, during which the Hong
Kong Tourism Board is devoting substantial resources to attracting visitors.
A number of significant tourism projects are lined up, including casino
and hotel projects in Macau, tourist attraction projects such as the ASEAN
Games in Hong Kong (2009), and the Olympic Games in Beijing (2008).
Moreover, the PRC cities of Nanning, Haikou, Kuming, Guiyang, Changsha
and Nanchang were added in May 2006 to the Individual Visit Scheme,
bringing the total number of cities within the scheme to 44. More cities

are expected to join the scheme in coming years.

A recovery in the local economy is improving local consumer sentiment.
GDP in Hong Kong rose by 8.2% in the first quarter of 2006, following
an already robust 7.5% growth in the preceding quarter. Because of the
work that Sa Sa has done to increase its attractiveness to local customers
and to enhance their loyalty, this growth momentum will undoubtedly
benefit Sa Sa. The Group is stepping up its measures to capture both
local and tourist spendings. These include: marketing programmes
targeting tourists from the PRC and other marketing efforts to attract local
customers; strengthening staff training and customer service; and continuing
to increase competitiveness through building brand awareness,
strengthening the product mix and promotion efforts. By March 2007,
Sa Sa aims to add four or five new stores in both tourist areas and non-

tourist areas of Hong Kong and Macau.
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e Applying strategic and disciplined management to an adverse operating
environment. Against a background of rental increases that have exerted
pressure on the operating margin of all cosmetic retailers, Sa Sa increased
retail space by approximately one-third this financial year. The Group will
assess the total retail space, the associated costs and store network in
Hong Kong, to match business opportunities with the costs of expansion.
Precisely because of its extensive retail network, Sa Sa can bring flexibility
and bargaining power to the issue of lease renewal and to the negotiation
of new leases. Considering these factors and its leading position in the
industry, Sa Sa expects to gain further market share from other market

players.

2.Strengthening Overseas Market Growth

Leveraging on our Hong Kong expertise and experience, Sa Sa’s business
model is being rapidly scaled up for application to overseas markets.
These markets are making good progress in the growth of turnover and
market share. With a strong platform being built to facilitate further

expansion, we are confident this growth momentum will continue.

Ongoing efforts will be devoted to strengthening marketing, product
portfolio and staff training. In addition, we will cautiously monitor the
overseas operating and market environments and adjust our expansion

plan accordingly to achieve optimum results.
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3.Building a Strong Foothold in the PRC Market

Sa Sa has achieved market acceptance in the PRC as a one-stop
cosmetics specialty store offering a broad range of quality and professional
beauty products and providing professional and value-added service.
Good progress has been made and we will continue to strive for operational
improvement while preparing for a wider market presence in the future.
Initiatives include conducting product registration for more exclusive
products. We believe that by offering more exclusive products, we will
have a stronger base for growth. The Group’s strategic plan is to open
five to seven more stores by March 2007, and to open more than 100

stores across the PRC by 2011.

4.Improving Synergy Between Our Beauty Services and Core

Retail Business

Beauty services enhance Sa Sa’s overall image as a “beauty specialist”
and strengthen customer loyalty. As such, they are complementary to
our core cosmetics retail business. Amid keen competition and a challenging
operating environment, Sa Sa will focus on adding innovative treatments
and equipment, as well as strengthening the synergy with our core retail
business through more joint promotions and cross-selling to increase
sales and improve profitability. We are already providing convenience to
our retail customers and enhancing their loyalty through in-store treatment
rooms that offer facial treatment, manicure and pedicure. We will continue

to explore opportunities to expand the scope of these services.
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What is so special about Sa Sa’s
operation in Mainland China?

SIS EBRNREBAEFE?

Sa Sa’s one-stop cosmetics specialty stores offer a wide selection of professional
and quality brands, both international and domestic, covering a broad price
range targeted at a diversified customer base. Consumers can choose from
more than 150 brands. The store provides an alternative distribution channel
for beauty products to the department stores.

Product selections tailored to Chinese
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m Sa Sa has more than 28 years of experience in cosmetic retailing in Asia
and today 95% of its customers are Chinese, and 40% among them are
from the Mainland.

m Sa Sa utilises its understanding of the skincare and beauty needs of Asians,
in particular, Chinese, in the product selection for its store in Mainland China.

Focus on professional and quality international brands
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m Asia’s well-known Phillip Wain and Sasa Beautyt beauty centres provide
a solid foundation for Sa Sa in the field of professional skincare and beauty
treatments.

m Sa Sa selects professional skincare and beauty products that are suitable
to Asians, in particular Chinese, from around the world.

Value-added services offered at Sa Sa

B TNELMIENE K Sasa Beauty  ERH LR
DEBEREEDALMERIEE

n SHEHREBRMBEATMNA - BHRIRHR
BANBEREEEREDEM °

RERERE

m Professionally-trained beauty consultants provide personalised advice to
customers and introduce relevant quality products across different brands.

m A wide variety of promotions

m Quality assurance for products

m Free make-up service and professional beauty treatments with dedicated
treatment rooms in store

m Free skin analysis

m Free samples

A brand new shopping experience
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m Trendy and comfortable shopping environment and open shelves allow
Mainland consumers to try and choose products of different brands at ease,
offering them a brand new shopping experience.
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Social Responsibility

As a well-recognised and expanding company in the Asia Pacific region
with an excellent brand name and profile, Sa Sa is fully aware of its
responsibilities as a good corporate citizen. We believe that a reputation
for integrity and social awareness is one of the most important assets that

a company can poSsess.

I

In line with our corporate mission to “make life beautiful”, we offer more
than cosmetic retailing and beauty services to our customers. We aim to
make their life more rewarding and the society in which they live more
harmonious and healthy by contributing to community programmes,
sponsorships and donations; in particular those targeted at women, young
people and children. In addition to donations in kind and the devotion of
our staff's resources and energy, last year’s total cash contribution amounted

to HK$1.2 million.

During the year, we sponsored and made donations to various local
institutional programmes in order to support education in both Hong Kong
and Mainland China, such as those of University of Hong Kong, the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, the Polytechnic University and Sheen Hok Charitable
Foundation. Sa Sa also sponsored “The Long March for Education”, a fund-
raising event for the Sowers Action, which is dedicated to improving basic
education in China. We also set up a counter to provide complimentary
make-up consultation at the “Hong Kong & Macau Skill Contest for Youths”

organised by the Labour Affairs Bureau of Macau SAR.

Sa Sa has long participated in the activities of the Community Chest of
Hong Kong. During the year, Sa Sa was the sole sponsor of the “Mark Lui
& Friends Charity Concert” at the Hong Kong Coliseum. The event raised
over HK$2 million for the Community Chest. More than 12 artists including
Leon Lai and Kelly Chan participated in the charity show. Sa Sa also
participated in “The World’s Biggest Donation Box” programme to sell mini
donation boxes to raise funds for the Community Chest’s child and youth

services.

In addition to being a full-year sponsor of the Po Leung Kuk in Hong Kong,
we continued to support the organisation’s various fund-raising activities.Other
beneficiaries included Caritas-Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Girl Guides
Association, the Rotary Club of Hong Kong and the Playright Children’s Play

Association.
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Sa Sa’s commitment to making a positive difference to society involves
everyone in the Company. We encourage senior management’s participation
in both community service and the development of the industry, while
mobilising staff participation in charity and community activities. During the
year, our Chairman and CEO, Mr. Simon Kwok shared his experiences with
students of the City University of Hong Kong and took a pro-active role in
contributing to industry associations, local institutions and charity organisations.
Mr. Kwok was Co-chairman, 2005-2006 Community for the Chest Organising
Committee. Our Vice-Chairman, Mrs. Eleanor Kwok, was appointed a

Director of the Board of Directors 2006-07 of Po Leung Kuk.

A team of staff and their families participated in the Walk for Millions to raise
funds for the Community Chest and the Heart Health Carnival and Walkathon
in Hong Kong by the World Heart Federation. Other caring initiatives included
the ‘Heart to Heart Project’ of the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups,
whereby a group of Sa Sa staff joined a team of students to organise and

participate in voluntary work in 2006.

Sa Sa colleagues in Hong Kong showed their kindness and compassion
by participating in the Lunar New Year Gift Collection Programme organised
by the People’s Food Bank for gift donation to families and children in
poverty. Sa Sa also sponsored the charitable sales by Miss Hong Kong in

Hong Kong, with all donations being made to UNICEF.

Sa Sa’s support for the community and society as a whole extends beyond
the confines of Hong Kong to the motherland as a whole. During the year,
Sa Sa acted as the title sponsor for a major fund raising activity of the China
AIDS Initiative to support its HIV/AIDS projects in the Mainland. Sa Sa also
sponsored various fund-raising activities of Lifeline Express to support its

cataract operations in remote parts of China.
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People Development
5 TE&ER

Human capital is the most valuable asset of Sa Sa, contributing significantly
to our success. As such, we place utmost emphasis on people development
and training. We assess our strength and needs now and in future, and

foster an environment that helps people to realise their full potential.

As at 31st March 2006, the Group had a total of 2,531 employees. Staff
costs for the year under review were HK$433.4 million. To ensure that the
Group is able to attract and retain staff with good performance, remuneration
packages are reviewed on a regular basis, and performance bonus and
share options are offered to qualified employees. A performance-based
element is included in the annual discretionary bonus for all staff and in
share options for supervisory and managerial staff. During the year, we
continued initiatives to attract, retain, motivate and develop the best people.
Various staff development initiatives were implemented through in-house
and external training programmes, as well as the provision of financial

subsidies for staff’s further studies.

We know that our success tomorrow depends on the people that we recruit
today. We plan and coordinate recruitment activities to ensure that our
business development is well supported by a motivated workforce. During
the year, in order to further strengthen our brand and to attract and retain
talented employees, a Human Resources Task Force composed of selected
members of the senior management was formed. Its aim is to create a pro-
active and practical manpower resourcing strategy. This includes enhancing
our human resources management practices, as well as implementing

professional training and development initiatives for business growth.
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To ensure that the Group is able to retain people with good performance,

emphasis is placed on performance management, differentiated rewards,
succession planning, learning and development. The Group has restructured
the performance management system to ensure effective communication
between supervisors and subordinates. This initiative is intended to improve
not only individual performance, but also the performance of the Group as

a whole.

We know that differentiated rewards are key to recognising talented people.
Our remuneration packages are reviewed on a regular basis and performance
bonus and share options are offered to qualified employees. To maintain
our competitiveness and ensure that future people requirements will be met,
Sa Sa has launched a Management Trainee Programme to develop potential
leaders of the Group throughout the region. This Programme includes formal
classroom training as well as a series of job assignments in our retail shops

and back office.
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People Development
B THR

Sa Sa acknowledges and rewards achievers and promotes from within.
Through careful career planning, coaching and counselling, we identify
people who are ready to take on bigger challenges. The Group has launched
an “Education Aid Plan” to encourage our people to continue learning for

self-improvement and career development.

Sa Sa is very much a “team building” company. Our success relies on
blending our individual talents through team building, mutual trust and
respect. We are also an open and caring company. Consistent and transparent
communications are high on our list of core values. During the year, we
launched a new theme “Get Together & Share Ideas” for the Staff Relations
Programme. A series of staff activities such as a boat cruise and staff
gatherings were organised to provide our people with opportunities to

interact outside work.
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Excellence of training and career development lie at the heart of the high
quality of products and service that Sa Sa offers. During the year, the Group
provided a total of 5,700 man-days of training. We continued with our
150-hour Junior Beauty Trainee training programme for new staff, provided
more field coaching for staff in order to assist the transfer of knowledge,
and arranged attitude training for frontline staff to motivate them to be more
positive and pro-active. Other initiatives included breakfast meetings, whose
purpose was to strengthen teamwork at Sa Sa shops, to enhance
communication between management and shops, and to nourish the caring
culture of the Company through senior management participation. Product
Knowledge Level Assessment was also introduced to ensure that the level

of product knowledge of shop staff is consistent.

Sa Sa continued to participate in various industry competitions with the
aim of enhancing overall service quality and to develop staff to industry-
recognised standards within the Company: for example, the Hong Kong
Retail Management Association’s Service and Courtesy Award (three staff
members entered the final interview), the Mystery Shopper Programme
2005 (La Colline Shop won the Service Category Leader Award in the
Beauty Products/Cosmetics category) and the Hong Kong Management
Association’s Distinguished Salesperson Award 2006 (all six staff members

won the award).

In terms of staff development, we launched Leadership Skills training for
shop supervisors, strengthened the Mentor Programme for the increasing
number of new staff at Sa Sa shops, and established a Train-the-Trainer
programme for coaching new leaders at shops. As part of our overall IT
infrastructure upgrading, which includes the crucial adoption of the SAP

system, training was provided to all users in the Company.

SR REHNERERBERER - AREEEST
EIERE R DERE W - FAKESH
REDT LA TERNEGH - REEERHTE TR
HEX-"BRE+IEHNIEREXTBEREIR
12 URBETRESZEMED - (EHBUEA
AIERARE T LG TIEY - BMBBRTEVER
EEAEEEEN TERE - RtiEEeETES
@ BEINSRSS R e EREN - (e EEE
IEfZ ERER  WEREIEESE - IBEREAY
RHOSE o SRS 5 A fn A 8K P AT - BEARAT
ARE TEEmAMBRF—B

SN SRR IREANLE - BREFTBBREE
% LEIKFRAZTARREE : flin2ma
BEETE GRS [HHRBE] (Z88T
EARREEER) - 20061 WERE (La
CollineZ P95 SR ESERBTER — (Lt m/E A
A ARBEEBREXEBEN [ —TTRFHD
HHER| (NUSEET2HER) -

EETIREAME  SEAREMHEEHT [BERE
BN hnee BT ETIG N A BRI B Tk
B [ZRDETEN] - SR E MR £ BT SRS
I [Train-the-Trainer | &1&] /3 T 12 5L E 2485
AEHE - EEEHASAPRS - WE MEETAE
A BIRHEIE -

)

PR
N
Al



N
o

9007 / S00Z +oday [enuuy

patwi sbulpjoH [euOnEBUIBIU BS BS

Financial Review
ISR

As at 31st March 2006, the Group’s total equity funds were HK$913.8
million including reserves of HK$779.1 million. The Group continued to
maintain a strong financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$695.7
million. The Group’s working capital was HK$692.0 million. Based on the
Group’s steady cash inflow from operations and coupled with its existing
cash and bank facilities, the Group has adequate financial resources to fund

its future expansion.

During the year, the majority of the Group’s cash and bank balances were
in Hong Kong or U.S. dollars and deposited in leading banks with maturity
dates falling within one year. This is in line with the Group’s policy to maintain
liquidity of its funds and in response to the increase of deposit rates. The

funds will continue to contribute a stable yield to the Group.

Total funds employed (representing total equity) as at 31st March 2006 were
HK$913.8 million, which represented a 0.4% increase over the total funds
employed of HK$910.0 million, restated, as at 31st March 2005.

The gearing ratio, defined as the ratio of total loans less cash and bank
balances to total assets, was nil as at 31st March 2006 and 31st March

2006.

It is the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in any highly
leveraged or speculative derivative products. In this respect, the Group
continued to adopt a conservative approach to financial risk management
with no significant borrowing during the year. Most of the assets, receipts
and payments of the Group are denominated either in Hong Kong or U.S.
dollars. However, the Group will monitor its foreign exchange position and,
when appropriate, the Group will hedge its non U.S. dollar foreign exchange

exposure by way of forward foreign exchange contracts.
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As at 31st March 2006, the Group had HK$8,000,000 outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts and, subject to certain conditions, was committed
to purchase Euro 819,000 at an average exchange rate to U.S. dollars of
1.2588 in the coming year. The exchange rate for one Euro to U.S. dollar
as at 31st March 2006 was 1.2109. All the above mentioned foreign

exchange contracts were fully materialised subsequent to year-end.

Effective from 1st April 2006, facing the volatility of foreign exchange market
and the potential downside exposure arisen from the forward foreign
exchange contracts, the Group minimises its non U.S. dollar foreign exchange
exposure by way of hedging against order at spot and maintain no long

position. The hedging policies are reviewed by the Group regularly.

Charge on Group Asset

As at 31st March 2006, no Group asset was under charge to a financial

institution.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liability as at 31st March 2006.

Capital Commitment

As at 31st March 2006, the Group had total capital commitments in respect

of acquisition of property, plant and equipment of HK$89.4 million.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EELRREERBAEEHN

Human capital is the most valuable asset of Sa Sa,
contributing significantly to our success. As such, we place
utmost emphasis on people development and training.

ANEBRBDHREENEE HEENKRERRS -
Hit - KEFEFERS TEIIMBR -

Jice-Chairman, Eleanor Kwok CFO & Executive Director, Guy Look Chairman & CEO, Simon Kwok

FrERERD BRI BRI TESERE ETRERTBARBIHA




EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon -

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Aged 53. Mr. Kwok together with his wife, Mrs. Kwok Law Kwai Chun,
Eleanor, has run Sa Sa’s operations since the early days and successfully
listed the company on the Stock Exchange in June 1997 with the share
offering more than 500 times oversubscribed. Over the past 28 years, Mr.
Kwok transformed the company from one outlet in 1978 to a regional
network of operations with over 80 retail outlets and 12 beauty centres in
seven major Asian markets today. Mr. Kwok is currently the Honorary
President of the Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong and
Federation of Beauty Industry (HK), the Founding Honorary Chairman of
the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector, Governing
Council Member (Retailer Category) of the Quality Tourism Services
Association, and the Life President of the Hong Kong Brands Protection
Alliance. He is also the Trustee of New Asia College, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a voting member of The University of Hong Kong Foundation
and a member of the University Court of Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Kwok was named “Man of the Year 2004” by Hong
Kong Business magazine and received the “Hong Kong Business Mastermind”
award from East Week magazine in 2004. He also received "Distinguished
Contribution Award for Beauty Industry 2005 (Cosmetic & Retail)” by
International CICA Association of Esthetics, CIDESCO Section China and
was named as the Chinese Business Person of The Year 2005 in the

cosmetics retailing category by the World Executive Weekly.

Mr. Kwok is also an active member in charities. He is the Co-Chairman of
2006 Fund-Raising Initiative of The Hong Kong Committee for the China
AIDS Initiative, a member of Hong Kong AIDS Foundation, the Co-Chairman
of 2006/07 Community for the Chest Organising Committee and a member
of 2006/07 Community for the Chest Campaign Committee.

Mr. Kwok is the Chairman of the Executive Committee for the Group and
the brother-in-law of Mr. Law Kin Ming, Peter. He is also a director of Sunrise
Height Incorporated and Green Ravine Limited, the corporate substantial
shareholders of the Company, both of which are owned as to 50% each
by Mr. Kwok and Mrs. Kwok. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries

of the Group.

* A member of the Audit Committee

§ A member of the Compensation Committee
© A member of the Executive Committee
# A member of the Nomination Committes
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEABRBN

Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor $#

Vice-Chairman

Aged 52. A founder of the Group. Mrs. Kwok has more than 30 years’
experience in the sales and marketing of beauty products. With extensive
professional knowledge and many years of experience in cosmetics retailing,
she pioneered the unique operational concept of open-shelf display of
products, making shopping a more enjoyable experience. Mrs. Kwok plays
a leading role in the marketing, operations, human resources and staff
training functions of the Group as well as the development of the beauty
services business. Mrs. Kwok is actively involved in charity activities. She
is currently the Honorary President of The Hong Kong Federation of Women
(“HKFW”) and a member of The HKFW Entrepreneurs Committee. She is
also a director in the Board of Directors 2006-07 for Po Leung Kuk. She
received “World Outstanding Chinese” award from the World Outstanding
Chinese Association and World Chinese Business Investment Foundation
in 2005. She was conferred Honorary Doctorate of Management by Morrison
University, USA.

Mrs. Kwok is the wife of Mr. Kwok Siu Ming, Simon and the sister of Mr.
Law Kin Ming, Peter. She is a director of Sunrise Height Incorporated and
Green Ravine Limited, the corporate substantial shareholders of the Company,
both of which are owned as to 50% each by Mr. Kwok and Mrs. Kwok.

Mrs. Kwok is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. LOOK, Guy -

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

Aged 49. Joined Sa Sa as Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) in March 2002
and was appointed Executive Director in September 2002. Mr. Look is also
the qualified accountant of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. He is currently an independent Non-Executive Director of
Topsearch International (Holdings) Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.
Prior to joining Sa Sa, Mr. Look was the CFO and an Executive Director of
Tom.com Limited (renamed TOM Group Limited). Mr. Look has over 24
years of experience in local and overseas financial and general management,
and was a Deputy Managing Director of ONFEM Holdings Limited; a Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of Tung Wing Steel Holdings Limited (renamed
Shougang Concord International Enterprises Co Ltd) and a Director of Santai
Manufacturing Limited (renamed Shougang Concord Technology Holdings
Ltd); all of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

He holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the University of Birmingham,
England and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He is a committee member of the Continuing
Professional Development Committee and Professional Accountants in
Business Committee in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. Mr. Look is the nephew of Mrs. Lee Look Ngan Kwan, Christina.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee ", J.P.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 52. Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Group since November 1999. Professor Chan
is currently the Vice President for Academic Affairs as well as Chair Professor
of Finance at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (‘HKUST”).
Previously, he was the Founding Dean of the HKUST Business School from
1993 to 2000 and the Justin Dart Professor of Finance at the University of
Southern California from 1990 to 1993. He obtained a Ph.D. in Finance,
as well as an MBA and MA in Economics from the University of California

at Berkeley. He is a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEABRBN

Mrs. LEE, Look Ngan Kwan, Christina

Non-Executive Director

Aged 82. Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
in May 1997 and re-designated as Non-Executive Director in June 2004.
Mrs. Lee is the widow of the founder of Television Broadcasts Limited, Mr.
Lee Hsiao-Wo. Mrs. Lee has been a director of Television Broadcasts Limited
since 1981 and is actively involved in Caritas — Hong Kong, a local charitable

organisation. Mrs. Lee is the aunt of Mr. Guy Look.

Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas "§*, J.P.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 57. Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
in January 2000 and is the Chairman of the Compensation Committee for
the Group. Dr. Leung has over 23 years’ experience in management
consultancy and is an expert in organisation and human resources
development. Dr. Leung holds a Ph.D. in Business Administration from the
University of lllinois. He has been appointed to significant positions in many
public organisations and committees by the Government and was formerly
Chief Executive - Asia for Hay Group, one of the world’s leading management

consulting firms.

Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, Maria 8%, GSB, J.P.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 60. Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
in June 2004 and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee for the Group
in March 2005. Ms. Tam was educated at London University. She qualified
as a barrister-at-law at Gray’s Inn, London, and practised in Hong Kong.
She was a member of the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (P.R.C.) and Hong Kong Affairs Advisor (P.R.C.). She
is a board member of the Urban Renewal Authority, a member of the
Commission on Strategic Development and a member of the Advisory
Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption.
She is a deputy to the National People’s Congress of The People’s Republic
of China and a member of the Hong Kong Basic Law Committee. She is

also a member of various community services organisations.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LI, Ping Yee, Louisa

Senior Vice President, Beauty Services

Aged 49. Appointed as Senior Vice President of Beauty Services for the
Group in July 2002. Ms. Li is responsible for the management and
development of the Group’s Beauty Services business throughout the region,
including Phillip Wain and Sasa Beauty™. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Li has over 22 years of experience in beauty,
slimming and hair care services, including three years managing cosmetic
brands at L'Oréal Group, and five years as Operations Director for an
international chain of beauty and slimming centres in Asia before joining

Sa Sa. Ms. Li graduated in business studies from York University, Canada.

Ms. LU, Szu-Jen

Senior Vice President, Information Technology

Aged 49. Joined Sa Sa as Senior Vice President of Information Technology
in December 2004. Ms. Lu has over 23 years’ experience in information
technology consultancy services, project management, operations and
system support. Before joining Sa Sa, she was the Business Manager of
EDS Hong Kong, one of the world’s leading information technology services
providers and management consultancies. Prior to that, she was the Chief
Technology Officer of Softbank Investment International (Strategic) Limited.
Ms. Lu holds a Master of Science in Computer Science from The Johns
Hopkins University, Maryland, USA.

Ms. HO, Sze Nga, Maggie

Legal Counsel and Company Secretary

Aged 32. Joined Sa Sa as Legal Counsel and Company Secretary in January
2004. She is also the company secretary of a subsidary of the Group. Ms.
Ho is responsible for providing legal advice and support to the Group’s
business and commercial activities. Prior to joining Sa Sa, Ms. Ho was
the legal counsel for a group of listed companies and the company secretary
of Dong Fang Gas Holdings Limited (renamed Pacific Century Premium
Developments Limited), whose shares are also listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She is experienced in
handling a wide range of corporate and commercial transactions and related
company secretarial matters. Ms. Ho was admitted as a solicitor of the

High Court of Hong Kong and Supreme Court of England and Wales.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEABRBN

Ms. HUANG, Yueh Pao, Sheena

Vice President / General Manager of Taiwan

Aged 44. Joined Sa Sa in October 2003 as Financial Controller / Acting
General Manager of Taiwan and was appointed as Vice President / General
Manager of Taiwan in October 2005, overseeing the entire Sa Sa operation
in Taiwan. Ms. Huang has over 16 years of management experience with
focus in finance and accounting. Ms. Huang was formerly the Financial
Controller of Esprit Retail (Taiwan) Ltd/Red Earth (Taiwan) Ltd for 10 years,
overseeing accounting, finance, office administration and IT functions. She
obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in Accounting from

Fu Jen Catholic University in Taiwan.

Ms. HUI, Kwok Kwan, Carmen

Group Financial Controller / Vice President, Finance & Accounting

Aged 39. Joined Sa Sa as Group Financial Controller / Vice President,
Finance & Accounting in July 2004. Ms. Hui is responsible for the finance
and accounting functions of the Group and its subsidiaries. She has over
17 years of extensive experience in finance and accounting field. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Hui was the General Manager of Finance of TOM
Group Ltd. Ms. Hui is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. LAM, Pik To, Betty
Vice President, Sa Sa dot Com

Aged 34. Joined Sa Sa dot Com as Director in August 2002 and was
appointed Vice President in May 2004. Ms. Lam has over ten years of
experience in business and strategic planning as well as in e-business
project implementation, marketing and advertising. Prior to joining Sa Sa,
Ms. Lam was the director of corporate development for a B2B trade
information provider; a project manager at an international internet consultancy;
and a senior consultant at a multinational business consulting firm. Ms. Lam
holds an MBA degree from the University of Oxford and a Bachelor’s degree

in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. LAW, Kin Ming, Peter

Vice President, Category Management & Product Development

Aged 50. Joined the Group in January 1996. Mr. Law has more than 24
years’ experience in the field of sales and marketing, 15 of which were in
senior management positions. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Group. Mr. Law oversees the Group’s category management and product
development function. He is also responsible for the Group’s acquisition of
exclusive distribution rights of international brands and the development
of private-label products. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts majoring in
Communications Studies from the University of Windsor, Ontario, Canada
and pursued a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce later. Mr. Law is a brother
of Mrs. Kwok Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor.

Mrs. LEUNG, Barbara

Vice President / General Manager - Eastern China

Aged 51. Joined Sa Sa as Vice President of Marketing in September 2003
and appointed as Vice President / General Manager — Eastern China in
January 2006. Mrs. Leung is responsible for the overall management of
the retail business in Mainland China. Before joining the Group, she was
the Managing Director of ActMedia Hong Kong Ltd., which is Hong Kong’s
largest provider of in-store mass media products and services. Prior to
that, she was the Executive Partner of Euro RSCG Partnership, an advertising
agency in Hong Kong, serving key regional and local clients. Mrs. Leung

holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Toronto.

Ms. LIM Gek Hong, Rosalind

Vice President / General Manager of Singapore

Aged 39. Joined Sa Sa as Vice President / General Manager of Singapore
in 2005, taking charge of Sa Sa’s retail operation in Singapore. She is also
the director of a subsidiary of the Group. Ms. Lim has over 15 years’
extensive experience in sales and marketing in various industries including
fast-moving consumer goods, media, e-commerce to beauty services and
spa operation. Prior to joining Sa Sa, Ms Lim was the General Manager of
Ina Gail Pte Ltd., and held various senior marketing positions at Hutchison-
Priceline (Travel) Limited, Channel News Asia, Fraser & Neave and Asia
Pacific Breweries. Ms. Lim holds a Bachelor of Arts degree and an MBA

from the San Francisco State University, USA.

EERLLE
mEEERERBREEH

Ftpke —ANANF—ANMAKE - BXERR
TIOFHE RMSHELIEES - HP+RFET
BREREHAL - BLERREIEEETARZ
B -ARTIEEEERBREERERERIE
WEEAREFDNERREBERICHERFEES
mIEER - B#REZNME AL KA University
of Windsor * EEE X2+ - HEEERE -
SEMERTEN - BAEDNBREED LT 2% -

RkEELL
B/ PEERERKE

Ft—p% e —EE=FhANMAEBLETISHERE
Bl - WHRZTEF-AREETARBILE /
PRERERLLE  AFERRERTEEL -
HAERBUART - RRAEBRANERNELE DM
ARG HE FE RS ActMedia Hong Kong LtdH)E 484K
12 o HLINIF B TS BEuro RSCG Partnership &4 A
FMITERA BERBTENRRRNEEERS o
Z2RBELMERENE LR -
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TRESEZRFRAFZES - MREBATEFR
ZIETERERTDEER - EF - EFHEE X3
RS Bk O 2 $HE RIS E LSRR - NS
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Hutchison-Priceline (Travel) Limited * Channel
News Asia * Fraser & Neave [ Asia Pacific
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San Francisco State University X &+ & T & 1E
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEABRBN

Ms. LOI, Wei Sin, Corina

Vice President / General Manager of Malaysia

Aged 46. Joined Sa Sa in October 1997 and was appointed Vice President
/ General Manager of Malaysia in January 2001. She is also a director of
a subsidiary of the Group. Ms. Loi was a crucial member of the start-up
team for Malaysian operation. Ms. Loi has over 23 years of marketing and
retail experience ranging from health food products to high fashion. Prior

to joining Sa Sa, she was with Dickson Trading (Malaysia).

Ms. NG, Foong Yeng, Celine

Vice President, Operations - Hong Kong

Aged 39. Joined the Group as Vice President, Operations — Hong Kong in
June 2006. Ms. Ng is responsible for overseeing the sales operation of retail
business in Hong Kong and Macau. Ms. Ng has over 16 years of experience
in retail management in North Asia, mainly Taiwan, Korea, Hong Kong and
Singapore. Prior to joining Sa Sa, she was the Regional Retail Manager of
Fossil International (Asia Pacific) HK Pte Ltd., Regional Retail Manager (N.
Asia) of The Body Shop International (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd. based in Singapore
and Regional Sales and Operation Manager of Cozzi International Ltd., a
subsidiary of Fairton Group. Ms. Ng holds a Diploma in Strategic Marketing
from the University of Hull and a Diploma in Retail Management from the

University of Stirling.

Ms. TAM, Mi Kin, Tammy

Vice President, Operations - Eastern China

Aged 55. Joined Sa Sa in July 2004. She is now responsible for overseeing
the sales operations in Eastern China. Ms. Tam has over 18 years of solid
experience in retail business. Prior to joining the Group, she was the Sales
Manager — Chain Stores of SUNDAY Communications Company Limited
and the General Manager, China Trade of Dickson Concepts International

Ltd and Sales Manager of Giordano Limited.

B

TR ME
B/ ERAGREE

PO+75B% © —NAAEF+HAMATS TR —FE
—F-AEEEREIEE/ BRETRLIE - FX
RFEEEERTARZES - ERAKERES
RAZTISHERKE - WERERMBAESRE
KM RTETREER T =F&% - IAD
SR wEREAEE S (FRME) TE-

fRR%E /)N E
EREEMRREH

=+Npk e RETEAFRNPEZEREELED
Bliad  BEEEBNLRMTISZEEBNEES
%o RN RME - FEBEAE BB - 7
KR ERE TN FEEERLR - MBS
Z R - #5c 1% AFossil International (Asia Pacific)
HK Pte Ltd X The Body Shop International (Asia
Pacific) Pte Ltd(¥7A04%) < [& 13 &5 4€32 K Fairtonfs
[E 2 72 A)Cozzi International Ltd HJ[RI5 54 & K &
B o hECFE EE University of HUll) SR EETT
$308 I University of Stirlingf S & &1 SUR ©
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BANERMEMNEESTS BREFS+/N\F
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Ms. WONG, Sau Han, Carmen

Vice President, Human Resources

Aged 46. Joined Sa Sa in December 2001 as Vice President, Human
Resources. Ms. Wong has over 23 years of professional experience in
human resources management, of which the past 14 years were in the retail
industry. Prior to joining Sa Sa, Ms. Wong was the Human Resources
Director for Hong Kong and PRC operations for Le Saunda Holdings Limited,
a listed shoes retailer and manufacturer, for nearly ten years. She obtained
her Master’s degree in Human Resources Management from Salford University
in the UK.

Mr. WONG, Tai Chung, Kenneth

Vice President, Internal Audit and Management Services

Aged 43. Joined Sa Sa as Vice President, Finance & Accounting in June
2001 and was appointed as Vice President, Internal Audit and Management
Services in July 2004. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining Sa Sa, he held
various senior positions in BAA Group, OneResource Group, Dairy Farm
Group and A.S. Watson Group. He has over 20 years’ solid finance and
accounting experience in various industries, and extensive experience and
knowledge in mergers and acquisition, divestment, shared service
management, supply chain management and setting up joint ventures in
Asia, Australasia and Europe. Mr. Wong received his MBA from the University
of Hull, UK.
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Corporate Governance Report

Allr A N

TEERRE

The quality of corporate
governance of a company
mirrors its commitment in
accountability, transparency and
responsibility to its stockholders.

RAMNEEERERERRTHEHRRMN
A BE -BEBREREE

Commitment in corporate governance

The Company is committed to good corporate governance principles
and practice and its board of directors (“Board”) recognizes that it is
essential to safeguard the interests of stockholders, customers and
employees and uphold accountability, transparency and responsibility
of the Company. The Company has complied with the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the rules (“Listing
Rules”) governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended
31st March 2006 except for deviations from the A.2.1, A.4.2 and
A.5.4 of the Code Provisions in the CG Code, particulars of which
are set out below and were previously disclosed in the Company’s
latest interim report for the six months ended 30th September 2005.
With a view to monitor and continuously improve its performance,
the Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time
to time and always aims to enhance its corporate governance

practices in line with local and international practices.

EREBEHE
AABBORBRECEBERRIRER AR
AEFE([EFg ) RERERR P HER
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The Company is honoured to have received the “Grand Prix for Best
Overall Investor Relations — Small/Mid-cap Company” and its chief
financial officer (“CFO”) and executive director, Mr. LOOK, Guy, was
one of the two “Highly Commended” in the “Best Investor Relations
Officer — Small/Mid-cap Company” in the “Investor Relations
Magazine Hong Kong and Taiwan Awards 2005” organized by a
leading trade magazine, Investor Relations Magazine in United
Kingdom. The Company was in the top quartile for corporate
governance standards among large-cap and blue-chip companies,
according to an annual survey by CLSA and the Asian Corporate
Governance Association in 2005. The Company’s continuous efforts
and commitment to high standards in corporate governance practices
have earned recognition from shareholders and the investment

community including analysts, bankers and institutional investors.

Composition of the Board and various Board
Committees

ANA AR B B M iR B #E B R (Investor
Relations Magazine)®2 #i 2 — T =T 7 F [& (IR
SABRAEBRE) T ES I XEBREBREER
BEAREE] (R /NBLREIAERI) - B R e
(TEEMBRE]) RATESEREATE &
EREEBEEREE] (R NEDFER ER
REEAMNE RETEICEE —-KER
FHARDNCEBEARBERN ST RFETH
FEASER AARNGEERKTESZEA
ARESAATINGENEADZ-_THE
FENRARZR AR EFRRKFTRES
EBRBIB NI REAE BEREURANE R
TRREBEREESHERATRETE-

EEERRESTZEEE AN

Board EE€

1. Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon 3848 % 4

(Chairman and chief executive officer (“CEO”))

(EERTEAR ([{TBAZ]) )

2. Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor S$Z& 2 &+

(Vice-chairman &IF /%)

3. Mr. LOOK, Guy PE#ESE4£
(Executive director and CFO)

(ATEFREREABHRE ( [EREYHHEE] )
4. Mrs. LEE LOOK, Ngan Kwan, Christina | B 2 4

(Non-executive director FEHTTESH)

5. Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee R F 15 4%
(Independent non-executive director (“INED”))
(BUIHHNTEE ( [BHLHHTEE] ) )

6. Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas (INED)
RENEELT (BUHFHTEE)

7. Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, Maria (INED)
BRI NE (BUHHTEE)

~

committee

FHEES

Compensation

Nomination
committee

REEEE

Simon (Chairman)
SRR E (FFE)

2. Mrs. KWOK LAW,
Kwai Chun, Eleanor
AREEL L+

3. Mr. LOOK, Guy
o 1 S A

1. Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, 1. Professor CHAN,

Yuk Shee (Chairman)
BREMHBER (£EF)

. Dr. LEUNG,

Kwok Fai, Thomas
REEF L

. Ms. TAM, Wai Chu,

Maria 2Bk \E

1. Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai,
Thomas (Chairman)
REREL (XF)

2. Mrs. KWOK LAW,
Kwai Chun, Eleanor
PREEL LT

3. Ms. TAM, Wai Chu,
Maria 78 S EE/ ) E

1. Ms. TAM, Wai Chu,
Maria (Chairman)
EEME (EF)

2. Mrs. KWOK LAW,

Kwai Chun, Eleanor
BEED L

3. Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai,

Thomas 2B 1

)]
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The Board

Principle

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which

should assume responsibility for leadership and control of

the issuer and be collectively responsible for promoting the

success of the issuer by directing and supervising the issuer’s

affairs. Directors should take decisions objectively in the

interests of the issuer.

Code no.

<F Bl 4 5%

A1

A1.2

A1.3

A1.4

Code provisions

<F 8l 5 3

Board meetings should be held at least
4 time a year at approximately
quarterly internals.

EXZgeAREBFERELIR
ROEFE—Re

All directors should be given
opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings.

EREERERENTHESSES
EARARHEE

At least 14 days notice should be
given for regular board meetings.

REHZEESSANERHED
14R B

Directors should have access to
company secretary’s advice.

BEXRAIRSAANEZER

Alignment

ERET

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

A1l EEg

RAl
BOAEA—EBT2ERNESTE R
B EFEREAREREEETAN
EE UESEEERELEERETA
EBUREETARD EFEZEE
TR EAREREBIT AN

Remarks

Ha

The Board meets physically and regularly. Eight Board
meetings were held during the year ended 31st March
2006 and at least once quarterly. The CEO and CFO
were invited to attend certain Board committee
meetings, and other senior management may from
time to time be invited to attend Board meetings to
make presentations or answer the Board’s enquiries.

ExesRREHERER REE-_STRF=R=
TL*EJJ:EJ_E_?%%EA%{TTB/K@% x5 E 8
TR TR EENGREC RS FEETES
ZEgga MEMEREEASTETRERLESE
SR YRNESEERIMNESTSHERRA-

Agenda for Board and Board Committee meetings
are sent to all directors in advance and they are
given opportunities with reasonable time to include
relevant matters for discussion in the Board meetings.

$ TEA§$A&§$§TQ‘;§$«THI 2REE=S
%% El El i n%*i EAAEEETFE%WR§§$TV\%E
EREFSEZNTMNER"

Timetable for regular Board meetings are scheduled
well in advance to facilitate and maximize the
attendance and participation of directors whilst
reasonable notices are given for all other Board
meetings.

ApmgELlEEHivESegRRHAER HEE
ERHEE UERESSNLER MM EHME
EgeR AR NERLAERBEZBA-

Directors have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

EETRBAARZARME ([REAME]) ZRHEHE
ARG HAREFSRERFRAEERRAKERH
ESEST



Code no.

<F R 4 5%
A5
A1.6
AT
A1.8

Code provisions

<F AR 3

Board minutes and committee minutes
should be kept by company secretary
and open for inspection.

AA:gfa

RANEEREERTFESTES&:
BEEEe R UHEH-

Minutes should record sufficient detail,
concerns raised and dissenting views
and draft and final versions should be
sent to directors for comments and
record.

BRLKEIERAFANLE B
ERENREERRENREER
MREREEREEXTEEN
HRESARFE-

Upon reasonable request, there should
be procedure agreed by the board to
enable directors to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s
expenses.

EreRuBEREF REFRA
BER AISKBEIEEER FH
ERmARRRE

If substantial shareholder/director has
conflict of interest in a material matter,
the matter should be dealt with by
board meeting with independent non-
executive directors with no material
interest present.

MARR EEREAFEF R
NEHR ZERRBEBLEER
MNEZ B TEECHZIES

EEREIR

Alignment

ERE

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Remarks

k3

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committees
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
they are open for inspection at reasonable time upon
reasonable notice by any director.

ERgeaNEFZE e A CBACANER/T
EREFAHHEBERM BEXRNEBHRERM-

Minutes of the Board and Board committees recorded
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committees and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by directors
or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes of the Board and Board Committee were
sent to all the relevant directors for their comment
and records respectively, in both cases within a
reasonable time after the Board and Board committee
meetings were held.

ExehEFRE R eRRNBCERAFANT
B EREFEREERBEEERIEERMAER
o RREERHCAIFBARMERZREBR &
ZEREFZEERRNBIRERRERONES
REEZEC SRR A EREANEXEMAHBES"
NHREBRRFE-

The Company established a guideline for directors
to obtain independent professional advice
(“Independent Advice Guideline”) to enable the
directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense. The Board
shall resolve to provide separate independent
professional advice to directors to assist the relevant
director or directors to discharge his/ their duties to
the Company pursuant to the Independent Advice
Guideline.

ARBEHIERSIHERZABRER EEEBRAT
SRBYEXER ([BYBRES]) FHERBAE
REAE - EEERREBILEREIIFRAERR
HEBETEXER UHEREFBRTRABMEL AR
AIMEEe

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter shall not be dealt with by way of circulation
or by a committee (except an appropriate Board
committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a
resolution passed in a Board meeting) but a Board
meeting shall be held, during which such director
must abstain from voting. INEDs who, and whose
associates, have no material interest in the
transaction shall be present at such Board meeting.

HMEFERAARRIETNE -—FEPLERAEE
R MEETEREZEFHEAEN AIZERTE NEH
XHHEREETARE (REESSSHRBBIRE
ERZEEKN L ZEEEERRGRIN) M RIT—
REEGSZRNERER ZETERNER LY
ARERZ-NEHRAREREBEAGREEAN
HOBYFRTEETHAIHEZETSEH
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TEERBRE

The business and affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“Group”) shall be under the direction of and vest with the Board
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”). The Board is elected by the shareholders and is the
ultimate decision making body of the Group except in respect of
matters reserved for shareholders. The Board accepts that it is
ultimately accountable and responsible for the performance and
affairs of the Group. However, while the Board retains oversight
responsibility, certain of that authority is necessarily delegated by
the Board to the management in order to enable the management
to develop and implement the Company’s strategic plans and annual
operating plans, and to conduct the Company’s day-to-day activities.
The Board diligently monitors the management’s performance in that
regard but responsibility for conducting the Company’s day-to-day

operations rests with the management.

The Board appointed four Board committees, namely executive
committee, audit committee, compensation committee and
nomination committee to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. Compositions and responsibilities of these Board committees
are set out in latter part of this report. The Company shall review
the said delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to its needs. The Board and the Board
committee work under well established corporate governance
practices and its terms of reference which reinforces the
responsibilities of directors in accordance with the requirements of

the Listing Rules and other relevant statutory requirements.

AR REMBAR ([AEE]) 2EBREH
TRBEAATAGSRMA (TERMA]) BE
-

~A]
BELEE-EFGARREL ARA
RERKEL HEBRBRRERE 2 EHRK
ShoBEEGARAEBZRARERREMER
EE-BEESEREERAET HETEAOD
AT &%%EE*@%EEEJ%%E%H&??$Q
REUFENFEEETRALETAR
AREZEY EFERLOEREREZRR
HEARFAFEEFINESEEERE-

s
m

FEEZENEAESRZEES HAIARTRESR
EREZES FMEESRIEREES NUE
EEEENS B HSEEEEe M
(R E AR ARE ELBI D ADQ ARG EHR
HERBRENZZH ABREDARB-E
FEREFZEGHRBRINCEERERR
HEBRSEEE LEFRRBEGEDBE
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The directors’ attendance at the Board and Board committee

meetings of the Company during the year ended 31st March 2006

are set out in the following table (“Meeting Schedule”):

Meeting attendance

Board

meeting

Name of directors BExg
BEEgE 23

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon 8
HLBREE

Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor 8
FEEL L

Mr. LOOK, Guy 8
e #& 5E A

Mrs. LEE LOOK, Ngan Kwan, Christina 8
) Bk JE B¥ 22 =

Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee 8
FR T 15 2
Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas 8
R B E L
Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, Maria 7

EEIR/NME

Total Meetings Held 8
EEAY

(1) Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon and Mr. LOOK, Guy attended four audit

committee meetings as invitees.

2) Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon attended two compensation committee

meetings as an invitee.

(3) Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon attended the nomination committee

meeting as an invitee.

Executive
committee
meeting
THRZE®
=f ]

11

n/a
NEA

n/a
i A
n/a
NEA
n/a
i

11

HE_ZZTRF-ZA=+—HLFE EFLR
RARAIZEEGREFEES REEEH N T
rR(IgREX])
EREERLH
Audit | Compensation Nomination
committee committee committee
meeting meeting meeting
EREBE ey PR REZE®
2% =] =f ]

4 (Note 1) 2 (Note 2) 1 (Note 3)

(KtaE1) (KitE2) (Ki7#3)

n/a 2 1
@A

4 (Note 1) n/a n/a

(KtaE1) i@ F N iE A

n/a
NEA

6 n/a n/a

38 A A iE A
6 2 1
4 2 1
6 2 1

CES

(1) FB B S A BRI ST A AR BE 5 0 HE P

RECEBSEH-

(2) HLAELERZHE S D HIERRFNE R

B e 22

==

(3) HLAXLERRZHEG D HIERELZREE
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e N/
EIRMmE

Chairman and chief executive officer A2 EERITHAR
Principle RAl

BRETAEKLERLEBEMATE
—EERNREEBNBEITAEBNE
FER-AEEQEHE EMEZMRYA
BREED NEREDMREED MSE
TEENESETR AL

There are two key aspects of the management of every issuer
- the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the issuer’s business. There should be a
clear division of these responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is

not concentrated in any one individual.

Code no. | Code provisions Alignment | Remarks
<F A 4R 5% <F Rl R 32 EEEST B
A.2.1 Roles of chairman and CEO should be Please Considered reasons for deviation:—
separate, clearly established and set refer to the
out in writing. remarks Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon has been both the

chairman and CEO of the Company whose
responsibilities were clearly set out in writing and
approved by the Board effective on 1st April 2005.
Given the Group’s current stage of development, the
Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman
and CEO in the same person facilitates the execution
of the Group’s business strategies and maximizes
effectiveness of its operation. The Board shall
nevertheless review the structure from time to time
and it will consider the appropriate move to take
should suitable circumstance arise.

1

W

ITRETHRAHZACERERD Bt | KZEBEEZEDH :

BREREN AE S H -

HBOBREE-—BESFRARARIFERITRAERARE H
BREDBEATYAEEINE THEEFSEE N
TERENA - BRER-BALE BRI ERIET
EEeRABR - AFRIERITRAR BRBT
AEBEHERBNEERE 2R 8 ENH EE
EZESTRRNBAARE EBERAER 2B EY
EENLZ -

A.2.2 Chairman should ensure directors are Yes
briefed on issues arising at board
meetings.

Pursuant to its terms of reference effective on 1st
April 2005, the chairman shall ensure the Board
address the major issues of the Company, and that
these issues are presented in a manner which
facilitates thorough discussion and the appropriate
resolution and all directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at the Board meetings. He shall also
TEERRREZSE SR LESRY =) ensure that directors receive adequate information,
MABE A EIE which must be complete and reliable, in a timely
manner.

RER-_ZTRAFNA—BRERZ T FRESE
ITRERRESSRBARAIEEEE ZE2HIE
A2.3 Chairman should ensure directors Yes EEFE I RANVEEDIRREERR M2
receive timely and adequate EENENEEES SR 2T HEREBR TR
information. MEBRESENEH TE AEHERHER-

R E E IR A T AE
¥




A.3

Board composition
Principle

The board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the issuer.
The board should ensure that changes to its composition
can be managed without undue disruption. The board should
include a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is a strong independent element on
the board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment. Non-executive directors should be of sufficient

calibre and number for their views to carry weight.

Code no. Code provisions Alignment
FRmSE | FRMEX BEET
A.3.1 Independent non-executive directors Yes

should be expresely identified as such
in all communications disclosing its
names.

RAIBEHAEFMLZH A REAT B
M EERIABIIENTES
-

The Board currently comprises three executive directors,
namely Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon, Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai
Chun, Eleanor and Mr. LOOK, Guy, and four non-executive
directors in which three of them are INEDs, representing more
than one-third of the Board. The INEDs are Professor CHAN,
Yuk Shee, Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas and Ms. TAM, Wai
Chu, Maria who offer diversified expertise and serve to advise
the Board and management on strategy development and
provide checks and balances for safeguarding the interest of
the shareholders and the Group as a whole. The Company
has received annual written confirmation from each of the
INEDs that they have met all the independent guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Biographies with relevant
relationships among members of the Board, if any, are shown
on page 50 under the section “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management.” Terms of appointment of
non-executive directors are shown on page 114 of the Report

of the Directors.
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Remarks

B

The INEDs are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the
directors of the Company.
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Appointments, re-election and removal

Principle

There should be a formal,

considered and transparent

procedure for the appointment of new directors to the board.

There should be plans in place for orderly succession for

appointments to the board. All directors should be subject to
re-election at regular intervals. An issuer must explain the
reasons for the resignation or removal of any director.

Code no.

<F B 4 5

A.4.1

A.4.2

Code provisions

<F 8l 5 3

Non-executive directors should be
appointed for specific term, subject to
re-election.

FERTEENREREREEHL
ARSI ENES

All directors appointed to fill casual
vacancy subject to election by
shareholders at the first general
meeting; every director subject to
retirement by rotation at least once
every 3 years.

P78 18 2= (18 i B 5 22 (R Z%%ZA
RERXRREAS EEZRF RS
%E%Eﬁﬁlumi&{f = E¢

—Re

Alignment

ERET

Yes

Please
refer to
the remarks

nﬁ/&ﬁﬁuf

Ad EE-EEME
R

EFEgRHEER KEEZRLAS
RENHESFERETRERF LERTEEK
FHESZEFE - MEEEOEER
ETHENSHMER - BHITALARE
MEEFEIREREEERRA -

Remarks

B

All the non-executive directors were appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election pursuant to the
Articles of Association.

RESEAN 2BERTEENZEHEETESR.
BAE®

According to the Articles of Association effective
before 25th August 2005, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors (other than the
managing director or joint managing director) for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but
not exceeding, one third, shall retire from office by
rotation. The directors to retire in every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became
directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. A retiring director shall retain office
until the close of the meeting at which he retires,
and shall be eligible for re-election thereat.

To ensure full compliance with the Code Provision A.
4.2, relevant amendments to the Articles of
Association were proposed and approved by
shareholders of the Company at the 2005 annual
general meeting (“AGM”) held on 25th August 2005
(“AGM 2005”).

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Mrs. KWOK
LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor, Mr. LOOK, Guy and Ms.
TAM, Wai Chu, Maria, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM to be held on
24th August 2006 (“AGM 2006”).
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The Board had established a nomination committee on
31st March 2005, whose members are Ms. TAM, Wai Chu,
Maria, being the chairman, Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun,
Eleanor and Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee adopted
on 31st March 2005, which is made available on the website
of the Group, has set out details of its role and functions,
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
for selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company, summary of which is set out

below.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, inter alia:—

(i) determining the policy for the nomination of directors;

(if) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and expertise) of the Board on a
regular basis and making recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes;

(ifi) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorship;

(iv) assessing the independence of INEDs; and

(V) making recommendations to the Board on the relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors.

When selecting and recommending candidates for directorship
for the Board’s consideration, the nomination committee shall
review a potential candidate and consider various factors
including but without limitation to:—

(i) the skills, experience, expertise and personal qualities
that will best complement the Board’s effectiveness;

(ii) the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary
time and commitment to the role and this involves a
consideration of matters such as other Board or
executive appointments and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the CEO; and
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A.5

(iii) the potential conflicts of interest and independence.

During the year ended 31st March 2006, the nomination
committee considered and recommended re-appointment of
directors Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee and Dr. LEUNG, Kwok
Fai, Thomas and made recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to appointment or re-appointment
of directors of the Company. The nomination committee had
held a meeting on 31st March 2006 in which all nomination
committee members attended, particulars of the said meeting
was set out in the Meeting Schedule.

Responsibilities of directors
Principle

Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a director of an issuer and of the conduct, business
activities and development of that issuer. Given the essential
unitary nature of the board, non-executive directors have the

same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive

directors.

Code no. | Code provisions Alignment
FRmE | FRMEX BEET
A.5.1 Every newly appointed director should Yes

receive a comprehensive, formal
induction, and subsequent briefing and
development as is necessary.

%%ﬁ%&ﬂ’]%$ﬂﬁ§%ﬁé\ﬁ B
EAZREEM HEIREES
FIENREREHEER-

(ifi) BEZMNREREELE S
HE-_TZF-A=-1+—HLFE
REZEEERIREZENZEESTH
IHHELREABE L UHBBEET
REFEFEARAESTZFEEANESS
ELEZR - REZEEN_TETAF=
A=+—HR®Tga MAREZESY
REHELRE bt EA—=
B R

Eluﬁzu |

EEEGE
R

BREFETHBEBREFELABETAES
B E ARETANKLETN FBE
PLRER-AREFSLAELRE
HE FRTEZERERAATESEAR
MEEEENARAREZEREREMEKEE
TTEMAME

A.5

Remarks

B

The Company has adopted policy on the induction
for newly appointed directors (“Induction Policy”). A
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction shall
be provided by the senior management to familiarize
the newly appointed director with the Company’s
operations, business environment and plans, financial
positions, his/her responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and
other regulatory requirements and business and
governance policies respectively.

Subsequent briefing and professional development
shall be provided to the newly appointed director as
and when necessary.

ARFERMEBEEEE R EAMRABEK ([HE
AABR]) mREEERREH2E EXARSAE
MR ZHERMAENEZEES TR ARA ZERE
ERRENREE MBERR ARERBEERK EE
A EMRAERERREREMEERTENRES
RERBRRTEBZBE

WERE ERNERMZEESREMFZEN
BEZR-



Code no.

< Bl 4R 5%

A.5.2

A.5.3

A.5.4

Code provisions

<F AR 3

Functions of non-executive directors
should include A.5.2 of the Code
Provision in the CG Code.

FBRITER CBBEERIEERTA
25T RIRSCEE AL 216

Directors should give sufficient time
and attention to company’s affairs.

e R HR ] e A 4 A R 1R
RAMER -

Directors must comply with model
code for securities transaction by
directors of listed issuers (“Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, and the board should establish
written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings
in company’s shares.

BEEEET EMRAMS T2 £
BOAEZETELRRHNEET
Al (THRESFRI) - MEFS IFEL
BRER BB QR ERM IR R
R EFRIRR 2 EM@mIES -

Alignment

ERE

Yes

Yes

=)

Please
refer to
remarks

Remarks

k3

Strategic planning and monitoring the Company’s
performance are, among others, the major functions
of the directors. The Board shall be accountable and
responsible for the performance and affairs of the
Company.

EETERER (EPEE) REA S RERARF
ZRBE-BEEERARARERFBRARAR

Directors are aware that they shall give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

EENTNENHRARREBHUREARNE
7o

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code (“Company’s Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, all directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Company’s Code.

The Board also established a policy, which was
approved and adopted by the Board effective on 1st
May 2005, with no less exacting terms than the Model
Code for the relevant employees in respect of their
dealings in the securities of the Company.
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>

.6

Supply of and access to information

Principle

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with

appropriate information in such form and of such quality as

will enable them to make an informed decision and to

discharge their duties and responsibilities as directors of an

issuer.
Code no.
< Bl 4R 5%
A.6.1
A.6.2
A.6.3

Code provisions

<F AR 3

Agenda and board papers should be
sent to directors at least 3 days before
regular board meeting or committee
meeting.

FREMNEEENHEREHESS
ERAZ BB A MR XA

BHTES-

Management should supply board and
its committees with adequate
information in timely manner. Each
director should have separate and
independent access to the issuer’s
senior management.

EEERERNEFEREE SR
HEREH MEREEREHTT
BRETASREEABNBILE

fg.

Directors are entitled to have access
to Board papers and related materials.

EFLEREHEFE RN
&R o

Alignment

ERE

Yes

Yes

Yes

A6 BEREHRMEH
53]

EERERHEENESER EPRX
NEEEGERRNEZEABEERN
BRTELRE LR BITEAEREST
ANEENBEREE

Remarks

B

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, Board papers are
dispatched to Board and Board Committee members
not less than 3 days or such other agreed period
before Board or Board committee meetings.

ExerEfies REFSHOMAEREYEN
THELAT EFESRXMHENEFTEREFEZE
SRR T IR =ZRLEHEZRHHEAIEL T
EFEeXEFEEEXE-

Each director is given contact details of the senior
management and is accessible to them to obtain
information and for enquiries when required.

BRESURIREEABZEKER EHERA M
B REA R R &

Board papers and minutes are made available for
inspection by the directors and Board committee
members. Where queries are raised by directors, the
Company shall respond as promptly and fully as
possible.

EEEXMRERLHAIRETREELZEGKEE
Bl-MEFBHHRM AARBRRIEL2EA B FE-



B.1

Remuneration of directors and senior

management

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

Principle

An issuer should disclose information relating to its directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters.
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for
setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for
fixing the remuneration packages for all directors. Levels of
remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain the
directors needed to run the company successfully, but
companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for

this purpose. No director should be involved in deciding his

own remuneration.

Code no.

< Bl 4R 5%

B.1.1

B.1.2

B.1.3

B.1.4

B.1.5

Code provisions

<F A R 3

Issuers should establish remuneration
committee, majority of which shall be
independent non-executive directors.

BITABRRIFHEES & EXHHK
BRABUIFNTES

Remuneration committee should
consult chairman and/or CEO about
proposals relating to remuneration of
other executive directors.

& S 2 et K 1T E =R B
ZEBEBAERE, HATHEE -

Terms of reference of the remuneration
committee should include B.1.3 of the
Code Provision in the CG Code.

FMEEecBEREREEERT
Alf 2 <P RIMESCSE B3

Remuneration committee should make
available its terms of reference
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board.

FNEZEgRAMEREGE BEE
AERESEERTHNOEN

Remuneration committee should be
provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties.

FNZ B S RERT R ERIAET
HBA-

Alignment

ERET

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

B.

B.1

Remarks

B

EEREREEABSHMH

FERRENKTRAR
RA

BTAEBREEEEMERERE MBS
MAEMEENEN: BRELERNALE
REMERF AHFTEHERTESEHS
MBREEBISESNHFIMTE-FIE
AP FE R AT S| R B R BT
LEMFEN - REF BRAREELS
xMBZOME - EMNEETF2H
RIEARSHBE-

Please refer to the section below.
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A compensation committee had been first formed in
December 1999 and was then formally established in March
2000. There are three compensation committee members
currently, namely Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas, who
presides as the chairman, Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun,
Eleanor and Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, Maria, the majority of which
are INEDs.

The role and authorities of the compensation committee,
including those set out in B.1.3 of the Code Provision in the
CG Code, were clearly set out in its terms of reference which
are available at the Company’s website and on request.
Pursuant to its terms of reference, the compensation
committee should be provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties, including obtaining independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances as and when
deem necessary and fit pursuant to the Independent Advice

Guideline adopted by the Company from time to time.

During the year ended 31st March 2006, there were two
compensation committee meetings held in which all
compensation committee members attended, particulars of
the meetings were set out in the Meeting Schedule. The
compensation committee had, among others, reviewed the
remuneration of the executive and non-executive directors of
the Company and approved performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board and/or the management from time to time. The
chairman and CEO was invited to attend the compensation
committee meeting for consultation about proposals relating

to the remuneration of other executive directors.

Emolument policy and long-term incentive plan

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages which
consist of base compensation, incentives and fringe benefits,
for recruiting, retaining and motivating the experienced or

potential personnel.

Generally base compensation forms a significant element of
the remuneration packages. The Group paid a competitive
base compensation with reference to the prevailing market
conditions and the respective duties and responsibility of the

relevant employee(s).
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Incentives are given in form of various kinds of bonus and an
opportunity to participate in the Group’s long-term success
through its share option schemes adopted on 22nd May 1997
and 29th August 2002 respectively (“Share Option Schemes”).
Details of the Share Option Schemes are set out in page 97

of this annual report.

Fringe benefits like provident fund benefits, medical insurance,
life and personal accident insurance, employee compensation
and business travel insurance are also offered to the Group’s

employees.

With reference to the directors’ expertise and experience,
duties and responsibility, the industry standards, prevailing
market conditions and the Group’s performance, the directors’
emolument is recommended by the compensation committee
and approved and determined by the Board. The emolument
of directors mainly consists of base compensation and share
options, particulars of which are set out in the note 7 to the

financial statements in this annual report.
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C. Accountability and audit C. BEREH

C.1  Financial Reporting Cl1 HKER
Principle RAl

EFSRTE BWREEMT AR
BRI E R AT R

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,

position and prospects.

Code no. Code provisions Alignment | Remarks
SFRImS | FRMEX BEEEST B
C.1.1 Management should provide Yes
information to the board to enable the
board to make informed assessment
of financial situation.
EREERMNE=SRHEER BR =]
EESRFHARENF BT
o
C.1.2 Directors should acknowledge Yes
responsibility for preparing accounts,
on a going concern basis and there
should be a statement by auditors
about their reporting responsibilities in
the auditors’ report on the financial
statements. The corporate governance
report should contain sufficient
information to enable investors to :
) L Please refer to the section below.
understand severity and significance =R T
of matters at hand. =
EREARMMERSELEER B
MAREIAR B 2 & F : i ZXAD IT B 1E
MR 2 ZBRRER MBI
HmEEELRR: CEERRE
EHERMER BRITEERA
EHZBREEREAESE-
C.1.3 Board should present a balanced, Yes
clear and understandable assessment
including in the reports to regulators
and to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
EFEgRMEEEERTE BEM B
RS8Rz EeERE  URIRIER
ERIREERREE -
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Management shall provide explanation and information to the
Board so as to will enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before
the Board for approval. The Auditors’ Report on pages 121
to 122 of this annual report has set out the reporting
responsibilities of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), the

auditors of the Company.

The directors of the Company acknowledged their
responsibility for preparation of financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs of the
results and cashflow for the year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2006, the directors

have:

(i) approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which are issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants;

(ii) selected and applied consistently appropriate

accounting policies;

(ifi) made judgments and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and

(iv) prepared the financial statements on the going concern

basis.

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance and transparency and its accountability to
shareholders, it shall present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment to annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures of the Group as required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to regulators as well as to information required
to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements. The
Company has announced its annual and interim results well
before the prescribed period of four months after the financial
year and three months after the end of first six months of the

financial year respectively as required by the Listing Rules.
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Internal controls
Principle

The board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’

investment and the issuer’s assets.

Code no. | Code provisions Alignment
<F A 4R 5% <F Rl R 32 EEEST
C.2.1 Directors should at least annually Yes

review effectiveness of internal control
by the Group and state so in corporate
governance report.

ExRER/EFRAASEANRERZ | A
ZERM YREXERRETER-

Internal control and risk management

Recognising that a well-designed system of internal control
is crucial to safeguard the assets of the Company and to
ensure the reliability of financial reporting as well as
compliance with laws and regulations, the Company is
committed to set up and maintain a good system of internal
control which is devised to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives. The Board also acknowledges that it has overall
responsibility for the Company’s internal control, financial
control and risk management system and shall monitor its

effectiveness from time to time.

The internal audit and management services department (“IA
Department”) is responsible for internal audit function of the
Company and monitors the internal control procedures and
systems and reports its findings and recommendations, if
any, to the audit committee on a quarterly basis.

Based on the assessment of risk exposure, the IA Department
formulates an audit plan annually, which ensures the annual
audit programs cover all high-risk areas, for the approval of
the audit committee. The scopes and frequencies of audit
reviews shall be determined according to risk assessment.
Special reviews may also be performed on areas of concern
identified by management or the audit committee from time

to time.

C.2 R¥EE
RA

E=gRBRETANAMBERRLE
EeziEmABR WRERRNIKER
BITAMEE-

Remarks

B

Please refer to the section below.
nFl Z Eﬁj S X °

WEREE IR R B E 2

Rt T EZNAEEHEHRERRF
ME BRYBMEATSEEAREFE
PIRBRAUAEREZ MAARFHIR
SR AR A RREE RS A
RUAIEMIEBE 2 RE AN HIRER
ERBHBROBR - LER MIEHB
BERRIEREBEBBRHARRZE
B-EFESTAREHAAR AR
BBEHkARERENEZEBEE
I By B 5% L ARAE -

NatEZ R ERRE A (TRER]) &
BEARBNMSEZREENEERERF

REf THREENEREEGERE
BEREHR (WE) -

M2 5 IR IR E R s 2 AT e i & F
HFTE AT B LR FEERZ TER
EMARRBREE BXRTIHNEZRE
REEBEHE BB ZHEERAH
DRERTETAE TeREEEE
REREBCMETE 2 S ETRETE
AT



Control processes

The Board establishes and maintains a sound internal control

system through the following major processes:

(i) systems and procedures are in place to identify and
measure risks on an ongoing basis. Senior
management shall review and define the annual risk
assessment process and monitor the progress of risk

mitigation plans;

(if) an organization structure with defined lines of

responsibility and delegation of authority is devised;

(iii) the Board shall review its strategic plans and objectives
on an annual basis. The annual strategic plans shall
lay down the basis for resources and financial

budgeting;

(iv) financial performance will be analysed against budget
quarterly with variances being accounted for and
appropriate actions will be taken to rectify deficiencies;

and

(V) the IA Department shall independently evaluate the
adequacy and effectiveness of major controls over
principal operations. Major findings and
recommendations, if any, shall be reported to the audit

committee on a quarterly basis.

Risk assessment

The Company is committed to conduct a quality and
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems. A team comprising professionals within the
Company as well as experts from an independent risk
consulting firm was established to perform a risk management
assessment exercise in December 2005, in which the
Company involved its entire management team to evaluate
and assume overall responsibilities of the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control systems.

Risk assessment, being the first step of the review, is the
process of identifying, sourcing and evaluating individual risks
and the interrelationships between risks. This provides a
systematic approach to determine the key areas to which

high priorities as well as resources should be given.
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In conducting the risk assessment, management embraces a
“top-down” approach as recommended by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(“COS0O”). Management defined the objectives of the
Company and the related risk categories impacting those

objectives.

For the purpose of risk assessment, management adopted a
risk model, which categorized the various risks impacting the

Company into the following three major risk areas:

1. environmental risks — uncertainties affecting the viability

of the business model,;

2. process risks — uncertainties affecting the execution

of the business model; and

3. information for decision-making risks — uncertainties

over the relevance and reliability of information.

By utilising an outsourced facilitating function, interviews with
each member of management team were arranged so as to
discuss, identify and customize the objectives and risks

encountered by the Company.

All members of management team were invited to participate
in a workshop to discuss the results of the interviews. Through
discussion and anonymous voting mechanism, the key risks
had been ranked in terms of significance and likelihood.
Response strategies and mitigation plans with respect to each

key risk identified were planned and put into action.

A regular progress update protocol to the Board and the
audit committee was established to enhance the

accountability and quality of the risk management process.
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C.3

Annual internal control assessment

During the year ended 31st March 2006, the IA Department
adopted a risk-based approach focusing on processes and
controls that were material. Material or significant control
weaknesses were reported quarterly to the audit committee.
The Board, through the audit committee, had reviewed the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
which covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions and was satisfied that the Group in 2005 fully
complied with the Code Provision on internal controls as set
forth in the CG Code.

Audit committee
Principle

The Board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the company’s auditors. The
audit committee established by an issuer pursuant to the
Listing Rules should have clear terms of reference.

Code no. Code provisions Alignment
SFRImS | FRMEX BEEEST
C.3.1 Minutes of audit committee should be Yes

kept and sent to all members for
comment and records within
reasonable time.

BEERRGEREAREREZEES | A
LEBCHERDEKE HREER
RIEEZ&Z -

C.3.2 A former partner of the issuer’s audit Yes

firm should not act as a member of
the audit committee.

BOANNIBZERZRRANAGBAT | &
ERAEREZREKE -

C.3.3 The terms of reference of audit Yes
committee should include terms set
out pursuant to C.3.3 of the Code
Provision in the CG Code.
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Remarks

B

Pursuant to its terms of reference, minutes of audit
committee were kept and sent to all its committee
members within reasonable time.

EREEZZEB S HERE FEMNAEREA
HEEGZERLHAIZERE -

The current audit committee members are not former
partner of the Company'’s existing auditing firm.

fﬁﬁjﬂﬁg’f‘;i%@W,E\jﬁ#$@ﬁjfﬁﬂ%?|\3%2§ﬁ@
AIZAIEZA

The terms of reference of the audit committee, which
have included the role and authority delegated to it
by the Board together with C.3.3 of the Code
Provision, are available at the Group’s website and
on request.

EREZEEZREGECRREACREFERTHE
ZHERR AR ST AR X B C.3.31% EEH R AEE
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Code no.

<F B 4 5

Code provisions

<F 8l 5 3

Alignment

ERET

C.3.4 Audit committee should make available Yes
its terms of reference.

BREEERAREBERE- =)

©.85 Disclosure of any disagreement Yes
between board and audit committee
on selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditors. The
issuer should state recommendation
and reasons for difference in view in
corporate governance report.

REEERERZIGMIERE | F
B Y ELIR « RAE BHE KB RPN
RAER -BITARELEERRS AR
BEZZRFIRAERL 2ER-

C.3.6 Sufficient resources should be Yes
provided to the audit committee to
discharge its duties.

EREZZESRHARERNER | A
BITRR-

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference on 13th October 1999. The current audit
committee members are Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee who
presides as chairman, Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas and
Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, Maria, all of which are INEDs and at least
one of whom possess the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The audit committee is responsible for, inter alia, reviewing
and monitoring the relationship between the Company and
its auditors, reviewing of the financial information of the
Company and overseeing the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems. The audit
committee members have met with external and internal
auditors and discussed the general scope of the audit works
and reviewed the audit reports and the interim and annual
accounts of the Group. During the year, the audit committee
met privately with the external auditors, without the presence
of the executive directors of the Company, to discuss matters
or issues arising from the audit and any other matters the

external auditor may wish to raise.

Remarks

=

Please refer to the section above.
nFl Z Eﬁj J: X °

The audit committee recommended and the Board
agreed that the Company shall re-appoint PwC to be
the Company’s auditors and the recommendation will
be put forward for the approval of shareholders at the
AGM 2006.

BEREREEE MEZSRBARAERLELHK
BRAQNRIZEM HBREHN - FRRB
FRELREZRRBE-

Pursuant to its terms of reference, the audit
committee should be provided with sufficient
resources, including advice of professional firms, to
discharge its duties, if necessary.
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There were six audit committee meetings during the year
ended 31st March 2006 and the chairman and CEO, the
CFO, other members of the senior management team and

the external auditors of the Company shall be invited, as and

when necessary, to join the discussion of the audit committee

meetings. Particulars of the Board committee members’

individual attendance and other details of the meetings were

set out in the Meeting Schedule. The following is a summary

of works performed by the audit committee during the year:

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

review of the Group’s final and interim results
statements and the related result announcements and
documents prior to Board approval;

review of the development in accounting standards
and its effects on the Group;

review of external auditor’s audit plan and its nature
and scope, the external auditors’ reports and the letter
of representation by the Company and other matters
or issues raised by the external auditors;

review of the risk management assessment report by

the external consultants and their recommendations;

review of, and with recommendation to the Board,
the adoption of the policy on provision of audit and
non-audit services by external auditors and the semi-
annual summary of audit and non-audit services by
external auditors;

review and approval of the contingency plan for avian
flu and pandemic influenza;

review of the independence of the external auditors
and approval of its engagement letters and audit fee;

review of, and with recommendation to the Board,
the foreign currency and treasury policy of the Group;
and

review of quarterly internal audit reports by the IA
Department in respect of the Group’s internal control
system and procedures, its effectiveness and the
regular updates on key risk areas of financial control.
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All issues raised by the audit committee were addressed
and/or dealt with by the senior management of the Company
and the work, findings and recommendations of the audit
committee were reported to the Board from time to time.
During the year ended 31st March 2006, no issues brought
to the attention of senior management and the Board was of
sufficient importance to require disclosure in the annual report
under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31st March 2006, the fees paid to the
Company’s external auditors amounted to approximately
HK$1,960,400, comprising the audit fees of HK$1,643,200
and non-audit fees of HK$317,200 respectively. The non-
audit services consist mainly of tax advisory services and

interim review.

Delegation by the board
Management functions
Principle

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the board for its decision. The board should give
clear directions to management as to the matters that must
be approved by the board before decisions are made on

behalf of the issuer.

Code no.

<F B 4 5%

Code provisions

<F 8l 5 3

Alignment

ERET

D.1.1 Board must give clear directions as to Yes
powers of management, particularly on
delegation to management and
matters required prior approval from

the board.

EXgANERECEN FR—RME B
BEFLZEERERLEDRGESS
B2 B 4 TIEMEYIE S| -
D.1.2 Company should formalize functions Yes
reserved to the board and functions
delegated to management.

ARARAEARERREEGHTM | B
EIEERRERNITORAE-

D.1

Remarks
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Please refer to the section below.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Board and

management, the types of decision to be taken by the Board

include those relating to:—

(i)

(if)

(ifl)

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

(viil)

(ix)

set the objectives of the Board;

establish the strategic direction of the Company;

set the objectives of the management;

monitor the performance of the management;

oversee the management of the Company’s
relationships with stockholders, such as customers,
the community, interest groups and others who have
a legitimate interest in the responsible conduct of the

Group’s business;

ensure that a framework of prudent and effective
controls is in place and to assess and manage risks

of the Group;

set the Company’s values and standards;

determine any matters involving a conflict of interest

for a substantial shareholder or a director;

determine material acquisitions and disposals of
assets, investments, capitals projects, authority levels,
major treasury policies, risk management policies and

key human resources issues;

ensure the Company maintains sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets. Directors
should at least annually conduct review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group and report to shareholders on the relevant
findings in corporate governance report of the
Company. The review shall cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls

and risk management functions;

REESEREEECRERE EF
EELMRREABREATSE:

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(ix)
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(xi) consider and determine issues which are the
responsibility of the Board pursuant to the Company’s
memorandum and Articles of Association and relevant
laws and regulations in force from time to time which

the Group is governed; and

(xii) delegate its power and authority to the relevant
committee(s) of the Board in respect of the
management and operation of the Company as and

when appropriate.

The management, consisting of CEO, the executive committee
of the Board along with other senior executives, shall be
responsible for the implementation of the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board from time to time. In
doing so, they must apply business principles and ethics
which are consistent with those expected by the Board and

shareholders of the Company.

The Board delegates management and administrative
functions to the management for their conduct of the day-to-
day operations of the Company, effectively, legally and
ethically. This requires that they are aware of the material
risks and issues faced by the Company and that they carefully
supervise the Company’s financial reporting systems and

processes.

Responsibilities of the management including those relating

to:—

(i) provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
upon the appointment of directors, and subsequently
such briefing and professional development as is
necessary, to ensure that the directors have a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the

Company;

(if) develop business and execution proposals in line with
the objectives of, and with risks acceptable to, the
Company for approval by the executive committee on
behalf of the Board;
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(il

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xil)

(xiil)

(xiv)

prepare annual budget, mid-term and long-term
budgets, development strategies for approval by the

executive committee on behalf of the Board;

provide in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable the
directors to monitor the performance of the Company

and make informed decisions;

develop and implement internal control procedures;

develop the Group’s staff policy;

prepare materials and papers and draft resolutions on
matters to be considered by the general meeting of
shareholders or Board and present materials to the

committees of the Board;

manage risk in accordance with the direction of the

Board from time to time;

provide organizational and technical support of the

activities of the Group;

determine the technical, financial, economic and

pricing policies of the Group;

determine policy and supervise improvements to
accounting and administrative methods and adopt
international accounting standards for the Group and

its branch offices;

determine the methods for planning, budgeting and

financial control for the Group and its overseas offices;

determine security policies for the Group and its

branch offices;

determine the procedure for allocating assets to Group
companies and withdrawal of allocated assets from

Group companies;

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(ix)

(x)

(xii)

(iii)

(xiv)
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(xv) determine the number of members of the collective
executive bodies of overseas offices, appoint them,
terminate their authority early and approve the
regulations on overseas offices’ collective executive

bodies;

(xvi)  preliminarily approve candidates for the position of
heads, deputy heads and chief accountants of
overseas and representative offices and relieve them

of their duty;

(xvii) approve overseas offices’ budgets and amend such

documents;

(xviii) analyze the results of performance of the Group’s
structural subdivisions, including separate structural
subdivisions, and develop binding instructions for

improvement of their work;

(xix)  approve internal documents regulating matters within

the authority of the management; and

(xx) handle such other matters that are delegated by the

Board from time to time.

Executive committee

Being part of the management team, the executive committee
held meetings on a regular basis. The members of the
executive committee are Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon, who
presides as the chairman, Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun,
Eleanor and Mr. LOOK, Guy. Particulars of the executive
committee members’ individual attendance and other details

of the meetings were set out in the Meeting Schedule.

Management meetings

Executive committee and the management team meet
together regularly to review, discuss and make decisions on
financial and operational matters. During the year ended 31st
March 2006, fourteen management meetings were held and
chaired by the chairman and CEO of the Company which
enhanced and strengthened departmental communications

and co-operation within the Group.
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D.2

E.1

Board committees

Principle

Board committees should be formed with specific written

terms of reference which deal clearly with the Board

committees’ authority and duties.

Code no. Code provisions

SFRImS | FRMEX

D.2.1 Board committees should have clear
terms of reference to enable such
committees to discharge their
functions properly.
EFZEQRBERTABERGE AE
ZELZEEREMEITERE

D.2.2 Terms of reference of board
committees should require such
committees to report their decisions
to the board.
ZEENBESERERZEZES
ME=gERIRE-

Communication with shareholders
Effective communication

Principle

The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and in particular, use annual general

meetings or other general meetings to communicate with

shareholders and encourage their participation.

Code no. Code provisions

< Bl 4R 5% < Bl R 32

E. 1.1 A separate resolution at a general
meeting on each substantially separate
issue should be proposed by the
chairman of that meeting.
BREASFTFEREEERBLINE
EERIREHRZER

E.1.2 Chairman of the board should attend

AGM and arrange for chairmen of
audit, remuneration and nomination
committees to attend and be available
to answer questions.

EEgTFEREFERRBEFAS AR
HER FHRREEZREGEEHEN
Bl & fe f -

Alignment

ERE

Yes

Yes

Alignment

ERET

Yes

Yes

D2 EE=gEBETHWZES
RA
BB TR EeNRIETAER
WS EREDSE BRIHNEETEZEE
‘AR E-

Remarks

k3

Please refer to terms of reference of the audit
committee, compensation committee and nomination
committee of the Company.
B2HAALRERZEE FTHEEERIREEER
2 E

E. HEERNEBR
E.1 BXREBR
R A

EESRENERRSERIYEGE L
HREMRBERESEMEE AN
BRBRNEBMAINSE

Remarks

B

Separate resolutions are proposed at the AGM on
each substantially separate issues, including election
of individual directors.

RERBFARE L - BRERBYNEEE AL
RER BEESREHNES-

The chairman of the Board attended the AGM 2005
and the chairmen or another member of the relevant
committee were available to answer question at the
AGM 2005.

EEeTRHET ST RFRFAFAG HHEZ
BEXRFHEMKEIEHE _ZTAFRRBFK
ENEE S

(0]
(e

S S A |\ R A ] |

I 55 7 5 Y R N



O
(@)

9007 / 500z Hoday [enuuy
paywi SBUIP|OH [BUOEUIBIU S S

Corporate Governance Report
rERERRSE

The last shareholders’ meeting was the AGM 2005 which was held
at the Ritz-Carlton in Hong Kong for approval of, among others
major items, the general mandates to issue and purchase shares
and amendments to the Articles of Association. The amendments to
the Articles of Association, which were approved by the shareholders
and adopted by the Company, were made pursuant to A.4.2 of the
Code Provision in the CG Code. that (i) all directors appointed to fill
a causal vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment; and (ii) every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. In
order to bring the Articles of Association in line with the Listing
Rules, articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association were
amended with the shareholders’ approval at the AGM 2005.
Particulars of the amendments in the Articles of Association and
major items discussed in the AGM 2005 were set out in the circular
of the Company dated 13th July 2005 (“Circular 2005”). The
proposed resolutions by ordinary resolutions and special resolution
were passed by simple majority and more than three-fourths of the
votes on show of hands in the AGM 2005.

Public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the total
issued share capital of the Company was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

RARBRIEHBT2RERGABEESES

BERATZ_TTAFREBFAE €LBH
TEEXBEE OELERTREIRGZ —K
B REFTER4B A A2 1 818 R AR A AR
ZERMAZAEET HENE RS AP 2SR
MEBA42MEMMRE  EIRMAIF R 11615 E fE
fEHEN YERER -_STRERRBEAE
iAo BAA42KIER ()T B AIE R R 2= B 4
ZEMNEFEEESZEEANEARRAAE L

BEXRRER (SR EZ (BRAREEHN
EF)ERmART ELB=F R -EFIEREA

AIUNER - ZERFRRBFAEIREIESE
BZHBHEAREARR AP/ -_ZTTAFLH

TE=BZREK([ZEZTRFAER]) - ALBER
HZREFIRZRVAREZCABRERZE
TRFERFBEFREDANERZHRBAMNS
NBRALTERE
BRIBARGAEHARERNERRESFHA RA

BRERLHP ARALEHEARARTE2BEET
AR BE T L H25% -



Investor relations

The Group is committed to fostering productive and long-term
relationships with shareholders and investors through open and
prompt communication. Various channels have been established to
facilitate transparency. Key information on the Group, which is
continuously updated (including a separate corporate governance
section), annual reports and webcasts of results presentations are
available on our corporate website (www.sasa.com). In addition to
the AGM in which shareholders can put questions to directors about
the Group’s performance, press and analysts’ conferences are held
at least twice a year subsequent to the interim and final results
announcements. At these conferences, the management team
explains the Group’s business performance and future direction. The
Group also seeks opportunities to communicate its strategies to
investors and the public through active participation at investors’
conferences, regular meetings with fund managers and potential
investors, as well as through press interviews and timely press
releases. Other than individual meetings with analysts, institutional
investors and fund managers, the Group also participated in various
road shows and conferences during the year. These are summarised

as follows:

REERHF

EERNERIRBREAEEZLIRIMEE
WEGR BB UEZEEBREBEERARAM
R EBE NENERAE - SEME
(www.sasa.comBBEEE > EBEH (BIEEL
WIRRIER]IEE) MATEES THEF
BRRERETG LRHNEERE - REBFR
RAREIREITRAEEREAEEERRENE
RN EETRAMRERFEEEEREFRD
BIIMRCEBHEGRATERTE (RAHF
HRFEEER) BEEEAREENELER
RRBFERF M LINEE NS BEG2HEIEES
eF THHEASCKERETREASH BX
BREFEREMTERANREERARMELE
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Date
=i

March 2006
—ETAFZA

February 2006
—EERFE_RA

January 2006

—ETETRF—A

December 2005
—ZEERFE+ A

December 2005
—TERE+ A

December 2005
—ZEERF+ A

October 2005
—ZTRF+A

September 2005
“ETHRFNA

September 2005
—ZTTRFNA

September 2005

“EREFNA

September 2005
—“ZTTRFNA

September 2005
ZTTRHFNA

July 2005
—ZTTHRFLA

June 2005
—ETRERA

Event

B

Asian Investment Conference

SMEREEH

Hong Kong Corporate Day
BECEHENA

Retail Corporate Day
TEEENH

Road show

MO A

Road show
MmN

Investors luncheon

KREELETES

Hong Kong Corporate Day
EAECEHENA

Consumer & Tourism Corporate Day

BB RIKEREN A

10th Annual Asia Pacific Equity Conference

ETREAAREH

Road show

BN

CLSA Investors’ Forum 2005
2005 ERBHFREEHTE

Nomura Asia Day IlI

BNEFE-ERMNEEHENA

Road show
AR A

Road show

BN

Organiser
FHWEN

CSFB
htEEE - KLE

BNP Paribas Peregrine
ZEEREEY

Macquarie Securities
BERIEES

JP Morgan
FERR N @

Nomura

F &

JP Morgan
FER N @

BNP Paribas Peregrine
ZEERBEEY

Deutsche Bank

BEERTT

JP Morgan
E AR N 3@

Canadian Imperial
Bank of Commerce

MERFBEEERT

CLSA
EREH

Nomura

B E

Deutsche Bank

BETRT

Deutsche Bank

BEERTT

Location

B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
N

Singapore

%

Singapore

i

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
BE

New York
44

Toronto

Zm%

Hong Kong
BB

Tokyo
g

Singapore

g

Hong Kong
N



E.2

Voting by poll E.2
Principle

The issuer should regularly inform shareholders of the
procedure for voting by poll and ensure compliance with the

requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing

BEREFARR

RA
BETAREHBARRARETARR
WiEF WRERMT A CEMRED BB
BREFTARANRERBEITALTHOE

Rules and the constitutional documents of the issuer. BEE M
Code no. Code provisions Alignment | Remarks
JREE | FHHX BEREY | Bm
E.2.1 Chairman of the meeting should Yes The procedures for demanding a poll by the
disclose in circular procedures and shareholders were incorporated in the Circular 2005.
rights to demand a poll.
REEERNBRHKREZ KRR =] BREERKUBREFAXARANEFERIN —_ZTRFR
FARARIEF RAER - BH A o
E.2.2 Chairman should count and indicate Yes
level of proxies lodged on each
resolution, and the balance for and
against the resolution.
The chairman of the Board had duly performed the
ITREHESHARRNEZERR B E.2.2 and E.2.3 of the Code Provisions in the AGM
BRENZHNMRBAZZELH AR 2005. Abacus Share Registrars Limited, the share
ERERRUZREZRZEH- registrar of the Company, was present to assist and
ensure the votes were properly counted.
Chairman should explain procedures Yes
E.2.3 for demanding and conducting a poll EEC IR -_ZSTAFRRAFAS LEZEWT
at the commencement of meeting. SFAMRX EE2.2RE23GRMME - AR ARG BFE
CEERYEFBLERABDEEAS L RENEE
FREENRASRIFEREERR B BRRBERER-
ETUBRETARRZER-
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TEERBRE

Beyond the Code

With a view to continuously improve its corporate governance,

transparency and accountability to its shareholders, the Group goes

beyond the Code Provisions in the following aspects:—

(i)

(if)

(il

(iv)

(Vi)

the Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
cover, which is reviewed on an annual basis, for liabilities
arising out of activities from being directors of the Group;

the chairman of the Board has performed these duties and
responsibilities set out in A.2.4 and A.2.5 of the recommended
best practices in the CG Code, including to ensure the Board
works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner etc., which were incorporated into the terms of

reference for chairman effective on 1st April 2005;

the INEDs appointed represent more than one third of the
Board;

the Company established a nomination committee on 31st
March 2005, in which two-third of its committee members
are INEDs. The terms of reference of nomination committee
adopted by the Board on 31st March 2005 dealt clearly with
the Board committee’s authority and duties and incorporated
all the duties set out in A.4.5 (a) to
best practices in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the

(d) of the recommended

nomination committee with its role and authority delegated
by the Board is made available on the Company’s website
and on request. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the
nomination committee should be provided with sufficient
resources;

disclosure on significant changes in the Articles of Association
during the year, details of the last shareholders’ meeting and
major items discussed, and particulars as to voting are set
out in the section E. — Communication with shareholders of
the corporate governance report; and

disclosure on division of responsibility between the Board
and management is set out in the section A. — Directors of
the corporate governance report.

<F B B0
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(vi)

$%E§5Fﬁ?€2§1ﬂ%l‘ﬁ'jﬁ§¢
B REAARBEEFHETED
RELZEE:

EFEEEREEBITHRE AT R 2
FREBRZA24RA2 5 R
B PEBRESSEXRIEREN
ERE MEEZREEFHERIESR
EExgim LEFREEMAZ
FFENA—ARER ERBEHE Y
A

BZEZEIFRATETARBRES
BABZ=H2Z—:

ARARR-_ZBERAF=A=+—HBKI
%m%%ﬁ%’ﬁqﬂi’ﬁ —RERBIL
FRTEE R _ZETRAF=A=1+—
FHESERACIELZBSBESR

R /§%§‘J5ﬂ§$§a EHEBE
WmEARTA P ZREEARERTHRS
A45 @QEM)EMEIINEE-REEE
ERELE RREAGRESFEER
Z%ﬁﬁfﬂﬁiﬂﬂi\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaa‘%%ﬁ?
EH-REEMERE RAZ8QRE
HrERER:

IS

FRNER@ARZ2ERNES J:)z'ﬂx%j(
EHBRETWMZIERTEURER

B2 WE T E A %ﬁ/ﬁi&ﬁbZEﬁNEﬁi
REHEBIET R

AT ZHETIER
PE??J b= N

>t
HE
mf 18
B

-}é%—

o He
N ‘Eﬂ
nw A



Report of the Directors

ERgmE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”)
for the year ended 31st March 2006.

Principal activities and segment analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of a wide range of
brands of cosmetic products and the provision of beauty and health club

services.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results for the year by business
segments and geographical areas of operation is set out in Note 5 to the

financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 1283.

An interim dividend of 3.0 HK cents (2005: 3.0 HK cents) per share and a
special dividend of 3.0 HK cents (2005: 3.0 HK cents) per share were paid
on 29th December 2005. The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 5.0 HK cents (2005: 5.0 HK cents) per share and a special
dividend of 6.0 HK cents (2005: 6.0 HK cents) per share. Total dividends
paid and declared in respect of the year ended 31st March 2006 amounted

to HK$228,952,000.

EFgMAREFARFREWBAR ([AEEH]) &
ECRRRFA=STBIEFEZREREEX
B

FREBREESEOM
ARAREEERHIRERE ANB AR EENES
BRI Rz TEMIEERRHERMEED
D AR

AEEAFEREBH AR ZEE D 2 EFHR
R 2 DTN TS RIS

FENBA DB
REBARFEZ EERNFE 128G KERA-

AARBRZZEZRF+- A=+ HBIREFHR
BER30BI (ZTZRF 3.08) RIEFRRES
B30I (= TREF 3.08l) - ESSHERIK
BRI B BR5.08(L (Z2T R F 5.0080l) KFF
R B GAR6.07 M (ZZ T HEF:6.055l) -HEZ
TERFZA=T—HUEFEERREERES %
228,952,000/ 7T

©
o1

S 1 | 4 ]

FEUY

Il 53 7 vt 58 H



©
(®))

9002 / G002 Hoday [enuuy

pajwi] SBUIP|oH [eUOHEUIBIU] BS BS

Report of the Directors

ERgmE

Financial summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out as follows:

MBHE

T

AEERENEMRFE XS BERBEREN

2005 2004 2003 2002
(RESEES)] (RESEE)] (Restated)  (Restated)
(EFFIR) (EFFIR) (EFFR) (IR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FET FHETT FHETT FHETT
Turnover = 2,620,586 2,313,706 1,883,334 1,641,385 1,537,411
Operating profit A R 222,610 245,616 179,946 93,024 (63,907)
Profit/(loss) before BRETISEL AT
income tax wm Al (E518) 222,610 245,616 179,944 92,787 (64,196)
Income tax expense FriSBiFx (37,439) (43,560) (34,087) (33,478) (4,699)
Minority interest DR R e a - - - 8,913 2,673
Profit/(loss) for the year, RARE=FEEA
attributable to equity EIEFA
holders of the Company wm Al (E518) 185,171 202,056 145,857 68,222 (66,222)
Total assets BEBE 1,371,640 1,366,471 1,216,083 1,115,345 1,108,968
Total liabilities afEBE (457,813) (456,425) (367,712) (356,282)  (297,232)
Minority interests DR R e a - - - - (6,379)
Net assets BEFE 913,827 910,046 848,371 759,063 805,357
Return on equity NI 20.26% 22.20% 17.19% 8.99% (8.22%)
Working capital ratio EEE SR 2.61 2.63 3.03 2.70 3.25
Stock turnover days GFERHE(B) 89 101 90 89 89




Major customers and suppliers
The aggregate percentage of sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers respectively are less than 30% of the

total sales and purchases for the year.

Reserves
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during

the year are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are

set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year

are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

Share options

() Share option schemes
1997 Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22nd May 1997
(“1997 Share Option Scheme”). In view of the changes of Chapter 17
of the rules (“Listing Rules”) governing the listing of securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) which
govern the operation of share option schemes, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme on 29th August 2002 (“2002 Share Option
Scheme”) and the operation of the 1997 Share Option Scheme was
terminated on the same day. A summary of the 1997 Share Option

Scheme is set out below:—

(@ Purpose
The 1997 Share Option Scheme was adopted and became
effective on 22nd May 1997 for the purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees by the granting of

share options.

IREFRHER
REEAAES RFERF R 2 KSR RRER
BRI E B E R IR R L H30% -

it
AEERARRIRENFERNZ EHH BTN
M E2s.

INEEE 2 E AR R AR R 2 B EN B ESI R
BT RERFTRES

A&
RRBRARE RN 2 BB B IERER T
240
B
() BRETE
— NI FRERERTE]

AATR—ANEFERA == BRA—TEH
RRHEEHB ([— A RSB ) B
BRI BB B BHA X BERAR
(TBESSFRL) 3% LAY ([ EmiRal)) &+
EEERET AATR-EE-FNA-+
NERA—EFERENE (2T F
BB B ) T — ML AR BB 1
AIRE B & 1E o — N A FRE R Bl E 3
FIIT: —

@ B®
—NNEFBEREAER - ANEFR
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Share options (continued)

U]

Share option schemes (continued)

1997 Share Option Scheme (continued)

()

Participants
Under the 1997 Share Option Scheme, options may be granted
to any full time employee (including full time executive directors)

of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Total number of shares available for issue

(i) The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 1997 Share Option Scheme shall
not (when aggregated with any securities subject to any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company and/or its
subsidiary) exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time (excluding the aggregate
number of shares issued pursuant to the 1997 Share Option

Scheme).

(i)  Asat 29th June 20086, the total number of shares available
for issue under the 1997 Share Option Scheme was
540,000 shares, which represented 0.04% of the total

issued share capital of the Company at that date.

Maximum entitiement of each Participant

The maximum entitiement of each participant (together with any
shares issued in respect of options which have been exercised
by that participant and any shares which would be issued upon
the exercise of outstanding options granted to that participant)
shall not exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares in
respect of the Company subject to the 1997 Share Option
Scheme at the time it was proposed to grant the relevant option

to such participant.

Option Period

The period commencing on the date upon which such option is
deemed to be granted and accepted in accordance with the
1997 Share Option Scheme and expiring on such date as may
be determined by the board of directors (“Board”) which shall
not be later than 10th anniversary of the acceptance date of

such option.

B AR A ()
SRR AT E ()
—NNEFERIEE (&)

U]

)

2k
BRI NAEFBRER S ARF A A
ARFSEMBAREM2ZEEES (8

EEBMITES) BB

A FEITZ DB

0 BE-ANECFBEBRESIME
BRES K2 i BB LR (8
ARA R REMEREZE
H o B R 808 Rz (E I A D
AHEER)  TREBARQFT
BT 2 IRAN 2 10% (IRIE— L
TEBRE R RT 2 RDEH
BRI -

(i) RZZBZRESAZTIABRE
— NN F RS I AT T84T
Z 15 1 BUA540,0000%  (H AR
AR E BTAAN0.04% °

B2EE R
RE-NWNEFERESTEETE2HE
EHEZRAR (ERZH2RBERITEER
BMEZEZEMRNEEADE TZE2
B 7 BB AR TR T B 2 (A
in& GHatER) - NMEHBAR TR
BT Z A HRENHI25% ©

BRETTE IR
BERBRBZERRER - NNEFRE
PRAEETEIRIREE R REE A 2 B
i mEFE ([EFF]) ADAERK
T [E e B H R B AR 2 i B
SENBAREER M BHREER T
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Share options (continued)

U]

Share option schemes (continued)

1997 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(f)  Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised
The minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised is determined by the Board from time

to time.

(@9 Consideration on acceptance of the option
HK$1.00 is required to be paid by the grantee to the Company

on acceptance of the option offer.

(h)  Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall not be less than the higher of the
nominal value of the share and 80% of the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the option. Effective from 1st September 2001,
the exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares on the date of option grant, which must be a
business day, and (i) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant

in accordance with Rule 17.03 of the Listing Rules.

B AR A ()
R 8 (3
—NAEFERESE (B)

U]

(0

TR L AR A 2 REHR

EX BT RIRETEBRERLAR
BZEIEHR (NAE) -

IR R (E
A BRSO ARAA TR
13T

BREZETES
BRIEZITEEDRESSRRRE I
TMHER ISR Z B A KA 7 B 0
PR mER B HART I 2 A 2 W (B
BB ERTRERETRY
BURELE) 2 80%MIAA 2 Em R - i
—ET-FAA-BE BREZITEE
WIERA T MIBEREZ A ()R HER
RE AR 2B BRUAREE
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Share options (ontinued) BB IR R ()
() Share option schemes (continued) () BRERE @
1997 Share Option Scheme (continued) — NN FEREEE (8)
()  Remaining life of the 1997 Share Option Scheme () —NhtFEREEZERTFE
The operation of the 1997 Share Option Scheme was terminated —NNEFERETENEER _ZZ
on 29th August 2002 (such that no further options could be “FENAZ BRI (B EERE
offered under the 1997 Share Option Scheme) but the provisions AR — AN FRERERTE TR
of the 1997 Share Option Scheme continued to govern options i) ME— NN FERER B ESE
granted under that scheme up to and including 28th August 2002. BHEZYRE_SZT_FN A=+

HERHMNBEEABHR.

Details of the share options granted under the 1997 Share Option — NN FREREA SR 2 AR IE R
Scheme and their movements during the year are set out below: FRZEBHINT:

Number of Share Options
ERESE

*Closing price of
the shares
immediately
before the date
onwhich  Outstanding Outstanding
Vesting period the options as at asat
Subscription (from the date ~ were exercised 1st April Exercised fLapsed  31stMarch
price of grant) BHREE 2005 Granted during during
per share Exercisable  fr{EBHEH BhREmE R-¥%LE during the year the year
Dateofgrant  BREH period (BRIA BHE-% mA-8 the year RER NER
Rites 2 4] fries &t) 2B R FETRE  REARH B %%
(HKS) (HKS)

() (1)

Director
iz
Mr. LOOK, Guy 24th April 2002 080 24th April 2004 to 2years 380 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - -
i3yt ZEECERACHIA 23rd Apri 2012 3
ZTIMENAZTINAZ
“E-CEMA=T=R
24th April 2002 080 24th April 2005 to 3years 273 4,116,285 - (4,116,285) - -
e 1) 23rd Apri 2012 =% (AVG)
“EEREMACNAZ (F4E)
“F-"EmA-1=A
100
>
g O
? g
3 3
S g
g8
S8
==
o @
g



Share options (continued) BB R R )
() Share option schemes (continued) () HEREE @
1997 Share Option Scheme (continued) — NN FRERESF ()

Number of Share Options
RRESE

*Closing price of
the shares
immediately
before the date
onwhich  Outstanding Outstanding

Vesting period the options asat asat

Subscription (from the date  were exercised 1st April Exercised fLapsed  31stMarch

price of grant) RREE 2005 Granted during during 2006

per share Exercisable  f1{ER#AN BRETE R-¥F1E during the year theyear R-FFrE

Dateofgrant  SREH period (BRHA BfE-% mA-H the year RER WER  ZA=t-A

Rias B { fries i) 2B E AETE  REMRE B %% AETE
(HKS) (HKS)

(#7) (#7)

Employees Under  9th September 1997 201 9th September 1998 1o 1 year 3% 280,000 - (280,000) - -
Continuous —INEEAANR 8th September 2007 £
Employment —INENANBE
Contract ZERLENANA
EStatEe
9th September 1997 1.90 9th September 1998 to 1 year 408 614,000 = (34,000) = 580,000
-ANEEAANA 8th September 2007 -

~AANEAAAEE
“ERLERANA

4th June 2001 068 4th June 2004 to 3years 383 138,235 - (138,235) - -
“2T-4AmA 3rd June 2011 5
“ZINERAREE
—E——#xA=H
24th April 2002 08 24th April 2005 to 3years 328 675,000 - (675,000) = =
ZTEZEMAZHEA 23rd April 2012 =
“EEREMACIAZ
Z2-#MAZT=H
7823520 - (7,243,520) - 580,000
* The weighted average closing price (“AVG”) is shown where appropriate. * AU E ([FHE]) BB ERe 101
#  There is no share option cancelled during the year. # FRA RGN A T 85
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Share options (continued)

U]

Share option schemes (continued)

2002 Share Option Scheme

A summary of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(@)

Purpose

To provide Participants (as defined below) with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
Participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders

as a whole.

Participants

Any directors (including executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and employees of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers of any member
of the Group who the Board or a duly authorised committee
thereof considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed to the

Group.

Total number of shares available for issue

(i)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall
not (when aggregated with any shares subject to any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company) exceed
126,830,117 being 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on 29th August 2002, the date on which the
2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme will not be counted

for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

BRE®

AR B ()

R FERE 2

R FERETEIREFIOT:
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EERZ2EE (EHXA T RHKERE
ARRRI 2 BEERD MEEI2EE QA
ARRERRZ BRANEBREAR
ARER 2 EE-

»

ey

AEETAES (BRATES AT
EENEUIFNTER) RAKEZE
B NEESYRERERENEZESH
BRR/GERAEEERERZ AEH
EEIRK B 2 (EAI R s A B S 85
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BEBH RIEABRRBHED S
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Share options (continued)

U]

Share option schemes (continued)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(c) Total number of shares available for issue (continued)

(i)  The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed at any time
subject to prior shareholders’ approval but in any event
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of approval of the renewal of the
Scheme Mandate Limit. Options previously granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with the terms or exercised options) will not

be counted for the purpose of calculating the refreshed

Scheme Mandate Limit.

(i)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to grantees under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company

shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time.

(iv)  Asat 29th June 20086, the total number of shares available
for issue under the 2002 Share Option Scheme was

219,874,904 shares, which represented 16.3% of the total

issued share capital of the Company at that date.

(d)  Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme to a specifically
identified single grantee shall not (when aggregated with any
shares subject to any other share option scheme(s) of the

Company) in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the shares of

the Company in issue (“Individual Limit”).

The Company may grant options beyond the Individual Limit to
a Participant if (i) the Company has first sent a circular to
shareholders containing the identity of the Participant in question,
the number and terms of the options granted and to be granted

and other relevant information as required under the Listing Rules;

and (i) separate shareholder’s approval has been obtained.

B AR A ()
R 8 (3
—EE_FREREE (B

U]

(©

AT BT BE ()

(i) EAERERBAIESRLERRL
2 ISR T BERS T IASE 3 MR
R NGB R AN R R B
FPEIREREE HDBETRAZ
10% ° EETEE R 2 3ERER
BB A RIE - T T —FRRRE
3 b At st B FA#%
T2 (B ARITE BT
- IRIEBBIGEREE KU E T
2 BERE) BT TR E-

(i) WE-ZT-_FEREFTIEAN
X ) E A 8 AR B BT I A AR
BRZBHEE FRTGBER
REITREE B TIRA 2 30% °

vy RZZZERENAZTIABRE
TR T FHBRES B TRAT
ZRR17 #2805219,874,9040% 15
ARRRERDEITIRAN6.3% °

B2EEZRE

REE2(E AREARE - TE - FF
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Share options (continued)

U]

Share option schemes (continued)

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

©)

Option Period

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option shall be notified by the Board to each grantee at the time
of making an offer which shall not expire later than 10 years from

the date of grant of the relevant option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised

The minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion. The 2002 Share Option Scheme itself does

not specify any minimum holding period.

Consideration on acceptance of the option
HK$1.00 is required to be paid by the grantee to the Company

on acceptance of the option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than the

higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange

on the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding

the date of grant; and

(i)~ the nominal value of a share.
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Share options (continued) BB R R )

() Share option schemes (continued) () HEREE @

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) ZEE RS (#)

()  Remaining life of the 2002 Share Option Scheme () ZEZ_FREREEIZATFEN
The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a ZET FREARRERT B B ERAN A EAE T
period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption and will +FERER THR—_T——FN\A=+
expire on 29th August 2012, PSS

Details of the share options granted under the 2002 Share Option ZTR T FRERES BRI 2 SRR B R

Scheme and their movements during the year are set out below: FRZEHHINT:

Number of Share Options
BREYE

*Closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the date
onwhich  Outstanding Outstanding

Vesting period the options asat asat
Subscription (from the date  were exercised 1st April Exercised fLapsed  31stMarch
price of grant) RREE 2005 Granted during during
per share Exercisable  rERiEEH BRETE R-F81f during the year the year
Dateofgrant  BRERH period (BRtR BHE-% mA-A the year RERM ER
Rias AR fries i) 2B E AETE  REMRE B %%
(HKS)

(1)

Director
B2
Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, 201 June 2004 300 20t June 2005 to 1 year - 1000000 - - - 1000000
Maria “EEMERAZTAR 28th June 2014 -
EZ%E ZEEREAAZTARE
ZE-RERAZTIR
Employees Under 6th January 2003 077 6th January 2005 to 2 years 380 500,000 - (500,000) - -
Continuous g | 5th January 2013 -
Employment “ETRF-A5HZ
Contract “F-=%-AfA
EanatEs 1st September 2003 181 note (1) note (1) 363 133333 - (30,000) (53333) -
ZZZ=FnA-H () ()
1st September 2003 181 note (1) note (1) - 133,333 - - - 133,333
ZZZ=FnA-H () ()
2nd October 2003 188 note (2 note (2 - 333,333 - - - 333,333
= N Han e 105
2nd October 2003 188 note (2 note (2 - 333,333 - - - 333,333 =
L BN a0 i) %
30th October 2003 168 30th October 2004 to 1 year 367 12300080 - (566,433 (334) 743283 Z&
P=FHAZE 29t October 2013 % () ; E
PEREHAIEE el (FOM) : o

S e fize)
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Share options (ontinued) BRE @
() Share option schemes (continued) () EREE @
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) ZEE RS (#)

Number of Share Options

BRiENE

*Closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the date
onwhich  OQutstanding OQutstanding
Vesting period the options asat as at
Subscription (from the date  were exercised 1st April Exercised fLapsed  31stMarch
price of grant) BHREE 2005 Granted during during 2006
per share Exercisable  f1ER#AN BRETE R-¥F1E during the year theyear R-FEF/E
Dateof grant SR period (BRHA BfE-% mA-g the year RER HER
REAH 2 4] fries &t) bd 1 FEOE  RERRY i {itd %
(HKS) (HKS)

(&)

Employees Under 30th October 2003 1.68 30th October 2005 to 2 years 281 12,605,648 - (7,342,783) (24,333) 5,298,532
Continuous ZFEE+A=1H 29th October 2013 3 (AVG)
Employment ZTTRETA=TRE note (3) (T8
Contract “E-=F#+A-1AA i)
EENSES 30th October 2003 168 30th October 2006 to 3years - 12,665,562 = = (193332) 12,472,230
“RRZETAZTA 291h October 201 =f
R ETAZTRE note (3)
Z2-=FTAZThE fizHQ)
30th October 2003 168 note (4 note (4 337 11236052 = (0856%6) (4191052 1,950,364
“RRZFTAZTA fifzt ) izt (e
30th October 2003 168 note (4) note (4) (F4E) 11,236,044 - - (698,002) 10,538,042
ZE5-FTA=1H ) fifste)
30th October 2003 1.68 30th October 2006 to 3years = 11,285,904 = = (697,996) 10,637,908
=22 H=nH 29th October 201 =&
“ELFTAZTEE
2 =FtAZthE
4th December 2003 1.90 1st December 2005 to 2 years 281 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - -
2 3d December 2013 from date of (AVG)
“TERET-B-BZ  employment (T8
Z2-=%1-A=H [EREH
Bt F
4th December 2003 1.90 1st December 2006 to 3years - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
e S 3d December 2013 from date of
106 “ERAET-A-BE  employment
>0 “2-=%t-R=H [ERES
g g B
g g 4th December 2003 1.90 note () note () 363 1,000,000 = (650,000) (350,000) -
82 2551 -AMA k) fifite)
§ EEL 4th December 2003 1.90 note (5) note (5) - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
i -$3=5+-AnA Kt Kt
%
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Share options (continued)

() Share option schemes (continued) 1))

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of Share Options
BRiENAE
*Closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the date
onwhich  Outstanding Outstanding
Vesting period the options as at asat
Subscription (fromthe date  were exercised 1st April Exercised fLapsed  31stMarch
price of grant) REREE 2005 Granted during during 2006
per share Exercisable  fTEM#EN BRERE R-FF1E during the year theyear R-FFHE
Dateofgrant  EREKH period (B#EHA BHE-% mA-g the year RER HER
dl:L AR (i3] i) 2B FEAE  REARH B b3
(HKS) (HKS)
(&) (%7)
Employees Under 2nd January 2004 225 2nd January 2005 to 1 year 380 500,000 - (600,000) - -
Continuous “ZEM-A-RE 1st January 2014 £
Employment ZZRRE-ACRE
Contract “E-I5-A-A
ERanEs 201h January 2004 280 201h January 2007 to 3years - 66,666 - - - 66,666
“ZINE-A=1H 19th January 2014 3
“ZTYE-A-TRE
“2-mE-AtNA
20th January 2004 280 note () note (6) - 66,667 - - (32,667) 34,000
ZZTME-AZTH T34 fiiz6)
20th January 2004 280 note (6) note (6) - 66,667 - - - 066,067
ZZTME-A=TH T34 fiiz6)
1st March 2004 285 14th January 2007 to 3years - 183,333 - - - 183,333
“ZEME=F-H 28t February 2014 from date of
“ETLE-AtMAZ  employment
“E-mE_AZTI\R [ERRH
Bi=F
1st March 2004 285 note (7) note (7) - 183,333 - - - 183,333
“ZEME=A-A B iR
1st March 2004 285 note (7) note (7) 363 183,334 - (166,000) (17,334) -
“TIME=R-A B iR
3rd March 2004 2.78 5th July 2007 to 3years - 333,333 - - - 333,333
“ZEMF=A=A 2nd March 2014 from the date of
“TTLELARAE  employment 107
“TMESASR ERAY .
5 &
e :
H OB
3rd March 2004 2.78 note (8) note (8) - 333,333 - - - 333,333 Z g
e . s z
FENE= A=A i iz 25
A
3rd March 2004 2.78 note (8) note (8) - 333,334 - - (31,334) 302,000 § E
S . s ®
~Z3MEZAR=A g fiize)
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Share options (ontinued) BRE @
() Share option schemes (continued) () EREE @
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) ZEE RS (#)

Number of Share Options

BRiENE

*Closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the date
onwhich  OQutstanding OQutstanding
Vesting period the options asat as at
Subscription (from the date  were exercised 1st April Exercised fLapsed  31stMarch
price of grant) BHREE 2005 Granted during during 2006
per share Exercisable  f1ER#AN BRETE R-¥F1E during the year theyear R-FEF/E
Dateof grant SR period (BRHA BfE-% mA-g the year RER HER
REAH 2 4] fries &t) 2B R FEAE  REARE i {itd %
(HKS) (HKS)

(&)

Employees Under 2nd August 2004 312 28th July 2007 to 3 years - 183,333 - - - 183,333
Continuous “ZIMENAZR 1st August 2014 from date of
Employment “ERLELACTNAE  employment
Contract “2-mENA-A [EREH
EanatEs =

2nd August 2004 312 note 9) note 9) = 183,333 = = = 183,333
“ZEMENAZH ffzto) M)

2nd August 2004 312 note (9) note (9) - 122,222 - - (24,222) 98,000
“ZEMENAZH i) GRS

30th November 2004 390 25th October 2007 to 3 years = 100,000 = = (100,000) =
ZERMET-A=TH 29t Novermber 2014~ from date of

“FELEHA-1RAS employment
STRE-ACTAE RREN

EH=F
30th Novermoer 2004 390 note (10) note (10) = 100,000 = - (100000) =
“TRRFH-A=tA Hiz£(10) HfzE(0)
30th November 2004 390 note (10) note (10) - 100,000 - - (100,000) -
“TRRFH-A=tA Hiz£(10) HfzE(0)
1t December 2004 385 13th September 2007 to 3years - 116,667 - - - 116,667
1k e 30th Novermber 2014~ from date of

“TELEAATZAE employment
ZI-WE+-A=1A [ERBH

B=F

108 15t December 2004 385 note 1) note (11) - 58333 - - 26,000
>0 ZEEMET=A-A k(11 HisH(11)
S ? 1st December 2004 385 note (11) note (11) - 116,667 - - - 116,667
D 2 _— man
g7 ~EEME+-f-A HiEE(11) Iifzk11)
=3
§ g 1st December 2004 3.85 2nd December 2004 to - - 278,666 - - - 278,666
8s
~ T == -B—
= g_L “FEME+-f-A 30th November 2014
2 8 015 o

2 “F-RET-A=TR

Q



Share options (continueq) BRE @
() Share option schemes (continued) () BREE @
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) T FEREE (B

Number of Share Options
BRiEyE

*Closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the date
onwhich  Outstanding Outstanding

Vesting period the options asat asat
Subscription (from the date  were exercised 1st April Exercised fLapsed  31stMarch
price of grant) Ry Re 2005 Granted during during 2006
per share Exercisable  TiEdi&EN BRETE R-¥F1& during the year theyear R-FF/E
Dateof grant SR period (BRHA BfE-% mA-g the year RER PER
REAH AR (i3] &t) 2B FEOE  REARE i {it'd b3
(HKS) (HKS)

(%7
(B7)

Employees Under 1st December 2004 38 30th October 2005 to 2 years from - 218,667 - - - 218,667
Continuous Z2RPETZA-H 30th Novernber 2014 20th October 2003
Employment “ZTRETAZTRE TRRCE
Contract Z2-PET-A=TH TAZTR
EglalRs E=F
1st December 2004 385 30th October 2006 to 3 years from - 278,667 - - - 278,667
“RTMET-A-H 30th November 2014 20th October 2003
ZETNETA=TEE 3
“Z2-MEt-A=tH TRA=tH
E=F
1st December 2004 38 1st October 2007 to 3years from - 06,060 - - - 06,060
“RTMET-A-H 30th November 2014 1st October 2004
“EStETA-RE “3ImE
“E-PEt-A=1A i
E=F
1st December 2004 385 note (12) note (12) - 33,333 - - (7,333) 26,000
“ZIMET-A-H fiE(12) iz (12)
1st December 2004 385 note (12) note (12) - 66,666 - - - 66,666
—2RMEt-R-H (12 (12
22nd December 2004 415 22nd December 2007 to 3 years - 183,333 - - - 183,333
1 21st December 2014 from date of
“EELEF-ATSRE employment
ZZ-ME+-AZt-A [EREH
= 109
22nd December 2004 415 note (19) note (19) - 183,333 - - - 183,333 =%
“2EMEL=A=12R e K1) %
Za
71,472,478 - (15880852)  (6,653605) 48938021 § i’é
A B
gﬁ G|
* The weighted average closing price (“AVG”) is shown where appropriate. * hniEEEUTE ([FF5E]) B EE R

#  Thereis no share option cancelled during the year. # FRI MR T8
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Share options (continued)

U]

Share option schemes (continued)

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

M

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 31st August 2013.

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 1st October 2013.

On 30th October 2003, the Company granted share options to employees
who had completed a minimum of 5 years of employment with the Group
as at 30th September 2003 to subscribe for shares at an exercise price
of HK$1.68 per share in order to reward them for contributing to the long
term success of the business of the Group and to encourage and motivate
them to continue to contribute to the success of the business of the
Group.

On 30th October 2003, the Company granted share options to employees
of the Company who are of managerial level or above to subscribe for
shares at an exercise price of HK$1.68 per share in order to encourage
and motivate them to continue to contribute to the success of the business
of the Group. The exercise of the share options is subject to certain
performance targets that must be achieved by the employees.

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 3rd December 2013.

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 19th January 2014.

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 28th February 2014.

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 2nd March 2014.

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 1st August 2014.

U]

B AR A ()
SRR AT E ()

ZEE_FEREE (8)

S

)

ZEEEBEERETRERESTAERT
R R ERRELATER S —=F
NA=+—HTE-

BER BB E TR A AT
EMRE R EMELATER T =4
+A—AfE

ARRR_BR=F+ A=+ HRNBRET
REZEZZTT=FNA=1+HIRBELEET
IREFRE UREZFREHAREREYE
RSBERIFHERMESE M EBZFREELE
EEBRGEREEFLER E1TREARE
fi&1.68/ 7T

AREN-EZ=F+A=+ARLBRET
EIBRSSA L2 EE USBREDZEES
HEBREBRGBREFELER B1TEE
AER1.688TT-FRERLVRERETRA
BET A ERITEBRE.

ZREENWEENETRBEEI A ERBT
FRERE ZEEREVATEN S —=F
+=—A=A17F-

ZAERVRETETRUEES FAERT
R SRR LA TERN — T — 04
—RtARTTfRE.

ZEREBWEENETRBEEA FEERTT
(EREAIE - % SRR N AT EN =T —MF
ZAZ+HN\RTTfE.

ZARERBRVAEENETREERS TAEART
BRI SRRV ATER —F—F
=AZR1TE-

ZAERVREIETRUEES HAERT
R E R LA TERN — T — 4
NA—B1TE.
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Share option schemes (continued)

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(10) The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 29th November 2014.

(11)  The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 30th November 2014.

(12) The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 30th November 2014.

(13) The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance targets
that must be achieved by the employee. The share options shall be
exercised by the employee not later than 21st December 2014.

BB AR A ()

U]

BT & (&)
ZEE _FEREE (8)

BiFE: (48)

(10) ZBEENWEEIETRBEZIGEERT
FRERE - SRR VBT BN — 2 — 4
+—RAZ+NBATfE.

(1) HBRALERRET RS HARST
BB R SBIREL ATER —F
+—A=tafE

(12) ZBEBMRENETREREAIFAERT
EiERE - 2 SRRV A TEN —E—MF
+—A=+81E

(13) Z%EEBNWEEIETRBEEAFEERT
IR E - SRRV A TERN S —NF
+=R=+—B17E

Fair values of share options, measured at the grant date of the options,
are estimated using a binomial lattice methodology that is based on
the underlying assumptions of one of the commonly used employee
share option pricing models. No option was granted during the year
ended 31st March 2006. The fair value of options granted during the
year ended 31st March 2005 was HK$3,134,000. The significant inputs

into the share option pricing model were as follows:

BB A A E 2 B A TEE R
RMEtEIDE R PR —ARANER
BREGEEXNEARR-BE_TTRF
ZA=t+—BEFEWERLERE-REE
“ETRF=A=+-HILFERLZERE
BV BB 4A3,134,000/8 T s BRE (L EE
ARz T 2B T:

Being the share price on the grant date ranging from 6th January 2003 to

—F—ARNHEZZZENF+-_A=-+=-HHHE

Share price — HK$0.76 to 4.15

AR & 0.76E4.15%8 7T 22nd December 2004
Bl g 8 B =2
HIRZEER

Exercise price — HK$0.77 to 4.15

TTE(E

0.77E4.15%8 T

Being the exercise price ranging from 6th January 2003 to 22nd December
2004

BRI B R B B = 2= —ARAES
TR (ER

TEPFE+— =+ F I

Being the approximate yields of 10-year exchange fund notes issued by the

BBz AMEE T FHINER S RENS2ERaAE

Being the annualized volatility of historical share price of the Company from

1st April 2000 (approximately 3 years after the initial public offer) to 31st March

BIARRBAR —TETFNA—H (LTRH=F) E-2LRF=A=1+—H
MRS RWRH(EZ FEKE

Risk free rate — 3.59% 10 4.70%
42 [ g ) 2R government
Expected volatility — 45%
TEHRK 8

2005
Expected dividend yield — 4%

TEHIRR Bk

Being the prospective dividend yield of shares of the Company
BVAR AR 2 AR B &

—
—
S

S 1 | 4 ]
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Share options (continued)

() Share option schemes (continued)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)
The model is only one of the commonly used models to estimate the
fair value of the employee share options. The value of an option varies
with different assumptions. Any changes of the assumptions may affect

the estimation.

(I) Share options under an ex-director’s service agreement
The Company granted to Mr. KING, Roger (“Mr. KING”), an ex-director
of the Company, share options in accordance with the terms set out
in a service agreement entered between the Company and Mr. KING
on 2nd August 1999 (“Service Agreement”) which was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting
held on 14th September 1999. Details of share options granted under
the Service Agreement and their movements during the year were set

out below:

*Closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the date
on which

the options

5 IR fE )

() EREE @
—EE R ()
ZERERMETHEBEREGENTAEXZ
— - BRENBEEETRNREMAEMT
B B REREN L EESERTE-

(I FIESRBHRBRE
ARFMRER—NNNENA—AEES=S
Lmiht ([R5 BFATZRB A (1R
Was ) ) IR A & S AR T —HLRBAE - IR75
BAECR—ANNFNATHEAERRFRR
FRIA SR - RIBIRIE AR b 2 R =
BRI EEEIT -

Number of Share Options

EREYE

Outstanding Outstanding
asat asat

Date of grant
RHBH

Subscription
price

per share
SRRk
21
(HKS)

(%m)

Exercisable
period
fries

were exercised
IR RE
RRERE
LIRS

bl 1

(HKS)

(%m)

Vesting period
frEaRss

1st April
2005
R-§%LE
mE-A
FETE

Exercised 31st March

during

“Lapsed
during
the year the year
RER RER
B %%

Granted
during

the year
REARY

14th September 1999 to 0928 14th September 1999 to - 380 5,513,087 - (500,000) - 5,013,587
9th May 2002 note (1) 2nd February 2007
—WAAERATREZE “NANENATREE
ZZ2-ERANAKGE() ZZ2YE-ACH
* The weighted average closing price (“AVG”) is shown where appropriate. * hniEFEETE ([FEE]) B EEE T
112 # There is no share option cancelled during the year. # FRI B RIEE T8
20 Note: B e
£ ¢ ‘ i
z= (1)  The dates of grant were summarized due to various grants of options (1) BRRBERGHZEESARENBRESER
SE under the Service Agreement. % AMERHET| -
58 The accounting policy adopted for the share options is described in note T B R B AN B0 = R ISR 0 A B S SRR MY T
- ﬁ 2(n)(iv) to the financial statements. 2(n)(iv)°
3
:



Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles of Association”) and there are no restrictions against

such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2006 are

set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

Bank loans and overdrafts
As at 31st March 2006, the Group has no bank loan nor overdraft.

Capitalised interests

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

Distributable reserves
As at 31st March 2006, the reserves of the Company available for distribution
amounted to HK$739,196,000.

Donations
The Group made donations during the year totaling HK$ 1,200,000, details
of which are set out in the “Social Responsibility” in page 40 of this annual

report.

BRBERE

A RHERERANRY ([S124081)) I MmA TS S
B2 ERE MHSREEFIEE BN 2
AR

e HESEER S
AR REMARMBARREASERED L EkiE
BIARA R _E S

WE’E
ARRAR-ZERF=A=t—RZIEHEL
BRI HRE 29 -

RITERREX
R-FTAF= A=+ A FEEPERTERR
BEXe

MEERE
REERFARLEASH BERE-

Al 7 ki
—ETXEZ A=+ R ARR RS IR 2 REE
#739,196,00078 7T °

%

B
REBRFAEL BRI AE1,200,0008 7T 15
N ARFRBL0B 2 [FIEHLEE] BT
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Report of the Directors
=EEEHE

Directors and service contracts
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor (Vice-chairman)

Mr. LOOK, Guy (Chief financial officer and qualified accountant)

Non-executive director

Mrs. LEE LOOK, Ngan Kwan, Christina

- re-designated from an independent non-executive director to a non-
executive director for a term of three years commencing 24th June

2004

Independent Non-executive directors
Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee, J.P.
- term of directorship extended for a further term of three years

commencing 1st November 2005

Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas, J.P.
- term of directorship extended for a further term of three years

commencing 1st January 2006

Ms. TAM, Wai Chu, Maria, GBS, J.P.

- appointed for a term of three years commencing 24th June 2004

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor, Mr. LOOK, Guy and Ms. TAM, Wai
Chu, Maria will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors offering themselves for election or re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into any
service agreements with the Company which is not expiring or determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).

As required by the Listing Rules, the Company received a written confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his/her independence to

the Company and considers all of them to be independent.

BEERBRKEEN
FRARBEAREREE O RTEERES AL
T

BITES

BB (E/F RATIRAEEL)
MEEDLL (BIEE)

PRt A (BEVBRERABERE )

FHTES

FIBERER &+

- HEEOTESIHIRIFNTES M=
FETEMERATEOBRER

MFHITES
(ERERE G SN
- EREHH-ZT
F

HEF+—A—BEfiER=

ZEEE L KTt
- EBEREHR_TTRF A -REFER=F

BENNE SEHESE AFEL
- RIZTEEFAA-THARERE TH=F

Tiﬁ

REBARFEBEEF6EZRTE BEEZ L
& BERE S KRS ME S R R T 2 IRRBF
RNE LIWESR-BERD LT BEEELE BRI
NEB BRI AR

B L EEE N SN BE RIT 2 RERIBFRE L
ERBEzER WEE WAREWNRE HE ZF

B TEARBE—F A NN TREE CEERE
RO BB T AR b
R ETRANBE ARERBERELIFNTE

EUEMREREAENARNELE WRAAEE
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures
As at 31st March 2006, the interests or short positions of the directors and
chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) were set

out below:

Long position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company

Name of director

EERA

Mr. KWOK; Siu Ming,

Capacity
S

Interests of a controlled

Personal
interests

AR

Simon corporation (Note 1)
BLREE FE B ao iR ()
Beneficial Owner 20,364,000
EmEAA
Mrs. KWOK LAW, Interests of a controlled =
Kwai Chun, Eleanor corporation (Note 1)
BEEDLL FrE B a s ()
Mrs. LEE LOOK;, Ngan Interests of a controlled -
Kwan, Christina corporation
MFEfER 2 L AR R e
Beneficial Owner 1,000,000
EREAA
Professor CHAN, Beneficial Owner 650,000
Yuk Shee EnEAA
B %

EERFETHRAERRG HEBRO K
BHEZEERAKR
RZZTRF=A=+—H ARAESRFETH
ABRARATISCEEMERAE (F& REFRPE
1 ([ A& ) EXVED) A RIRE HFIEHIEXV
EBET R E8H EPAG AN A R RIS FrvAR (S - AE
Wl R fE5H 2 sk R (BRERSRBESF G2
FZEGESOEBRRIR RER 2w AR ) St
AR BHRE S 1GHIB35218B B F 2 B i
AR SR FTT AR EREITEARZ HHIE
AESPRI (MRAESPA) ) B & AN A B REF X FTE ME
kBT

N

\al

() BERIRARD EEROREZZHR

Number of shares in the Company

Family
interests

Rkt

AATZRHEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate Other Total shareholding
interests interests interests olledid
ATER Hbigz il 4] =514
898,506,400 - 898,506,400 66.70%
- - 20,364,000 1.51%
898,506,400 - 898,506,400 66.70%
148,000 - 148,000 0.01%
- - 1,000,000 0.07%
- - 650,000 0.05%

—
—
(@)
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures

BEERTETHAERKRG HERDR
BECEBRAR @)

(continued)
() Long position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of () HEARRMD HEARDRESZFR (&)
the Company (continued)
Note: BieE
1.  These shares are held as to 696,780,000 shares by Sunrise Height 1. ZE 7 E 1 696,780,0004% H1Sunrise Height
Incorporated and as to 201,726,400 shares by Green Ravine Limited. Incorporated# A m201,726,4008% A Green
Both Sunrise Height Incorporated and Green Ravine Limited are owned Ravine Limited 57 8 AR S 4 R ZBEEE L 2
as to 50% each by Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon and Mrs. KWOK LAW, 1 %455 Sunrise Height Incorporated 2 Green
Kwai Chun, Eleanor. Ravine Limited 50%# z ©
Details of the interests of directors and chief executive in the derivatives BEEREETBRABREE_SZEF=H
interests in the Company for the year ended 31st March 2006 were =+ —RALFEEERRBITET AR 5
disclosed under the section headed “Share options”. BER (MR | T8 T iR
(1) Long position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of (I EBEWEEEERG EERORESZHR

associated corporations

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon and Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor
are each taken to be interested in all the issued non-voting deferred
shares (“Deferred Shares”) of Base Sun Investment Limited, Matford
Trading Limited, Sa Sa Cosmetic Company Limited and Sa Sa
Investment Limited, all wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor is also taken to be interested in
all the Deferred Shares of Vance Trading Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Details of interests in the Deferred Shares
were set out below:

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon

BLRARERPEED LD RIBEREENS
RIREBRAT ERBESERAF SFHEME
mBRABIRIIREGRAR Z2HEETT
BERSEIEEMR ) (BRIELD ) 22 At
RAERARRZEWNB AR -BEEE LT
TMERARAE RN AR ZENBRARARESE
[RAFEEBE FITIREMR () 2 s IR
2RISR :

BLEREE

Number of Deferred Shares in the associated corporation

HEEEZBERGBE

Name of

Percentage of
shareholding
to all the
Deferred
Shares of
associated
corporation

associated
corporation

AR EE

Capacity
5

Total {4iEEZEIZ
interests FTARERH
el ] =504

Other
interests

itz

Corporate
interests

AT

Family
interests

Rk

Personal
interests

fE A8

Base Sun Investment Interests of a controlled = = 2 = 2 100%
Limited corporation (Note 1)

ERREBRAR sl EEE s (i)

Matford Trading Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 3 = = = 3 50%

EREFERAF EnfEs A (o)

Sa Sa Cosmetic Beneficial owner 1 = = = 1 50%
Company Limited BERBEEA

BB EmABR AR

Sa Sa Investment Limited ~ Beneficial owner 1 = = = 1 50%

PHREBRAT

EREBA



Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures

(continued)

(I) Long position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
associated corporations (continued)

Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor

EERFERTRAEBRKRMD HERG K
B2 HERAR ¢

(I ERAEBEZERG -HRARORESZHE

()

DERYLZL

Number of Deferred Shares in the associated corporation

HEEEZBE RGBS E

Name of

associated Personal Family

corporation Capacity interests interests

A E 2 5 fE ARz Rk

Base Sun Investment Interest of a controlled = =
Limited corporation (Note 1)

ERREBRAR PGl AR A (1)

Matford Trading Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3) 3 -

EREFBERAT ity NG E)

Sa Sa Cosmetic Beneficial owner 1 -
Company Limited BnEEA

DA RERRA

Sa Sa Investment

Limited Beneficial owner 1 -
HHREBRAR EaBEAA
Vance Trading Limited Beneficial owner 1,600,000 —
ERESHBRR ERBEAA
Notes:

1. Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon holds 2 shares in Base Sun Investment
Limited through Link Capital Investment Limited and Modern Capital
Investment Limited. Link Capital Investment Limited and Modern Capital
Investment Limited are companies owned as to 50% each by Mr. KWOK,
Siu Ming, Simon and Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor.

2. Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon holds 3 shares in Matford Trading Limited
through Mr. YUNG, Leung Wai who acts as a nominee shareholder.

3. Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai Chun, Eleanor holds 3 shares in Matford Trading
Limited through Ms. KWOK, Lai Yee, Mable who acts as a nominee
shareholder.

Corporate
interests

AT

Percentage of

shareholding

to all the

Deferred

Shares of

associated

corporation

Other Total {5HREZEEZ
interests interests FTARERH
HipiEds BiEn =514

= 2 100%
= 3 50%
= 1 50%
= 1 50%
= 1,600,000 100%

S BASEA£EBLInk Capital Investment
Limited &zModern Capital Investment Limited
FAEIERIREBR D RIMARAR D -FF B E
RSB REY 221+ &4 A Link Capital Investment
Limited &zModern Capital Investment Limited
50%#za°

BLRAKRLBRTRELE FRERIEAR
R)BEXEESARAR =MD

Eﬂ“ﬁ'ﬂipﬁiLﬁﬁ?KE&%/J\ﬁﬁ (ERERIEA
R HEXEESARABT =MD

—
—
~
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures

(continued)

() Long position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of associated corporations (continued)
Save as disclosed above, no directors or chief executive have any
interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which were taken or deemed to be have under such provisions), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code.

Directors’ benefits from rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed under the section headed the “Share options”, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or its
subsidiaries or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company, a party to
any arrangements which enabled the directors of the Company (including
their spouses or children under 18 years of age), to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debenture of the Company or any

other body corporate.

BEERTETHRAERRE HEROK
BECEBZRAR @

(n

BEERBEERG HRARGRESZFA
€))

B EXFTiREEIN S EERER
EIERARSEEESEE (F& RE
XVER) HEA IR IR E GBI EXVERE 7 R 585 F
AME RN R R FTERR S  HERARR (D R (&
H 2 ERIAR (BIERSRBFFEO 2%
SHSRRESIR ARG 2 sk R) 3R
HNERNAIRE RGO FEI2FREF 2 EA
MRS E SRR EFRIAME R
DA RE A TR BOK R

TTERAB R

ol SUES]

EEBREROAUESERN ZFE
BR[| E TP EE N AR E) B AR

HEMEB QRN FRERESEGES SR

EIVA=SCIN

FHLARFZES (BREEREZREBHTN\RAT
ZFL) FIFEWEE A A RIS R A A B 2 B i

HEZFMES

2o



Interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares of shareholders

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at
31st March 2006, shareholders, other than a director or chief executive,
who had interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which would have to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions), or which were recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

() Long position of substantial shareholders in the shares of the

Company

Name of company

AEEH

Capacity

Sunrise Height Incorporated Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

EaEBA

Green Ravine Limited

Note: Both Sunrise Height Incorporated and Green Ravine Limited are owned as
to 50% each by Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon and Mrs. KWOK LAW, Kwai
Chun, Eleanor.

(I) Long position of other persons in the shares of the Company

Capacity
AT &R S

Name of company

Matthews International Capital Investment Manager

Management, LLC T AT

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any person
(other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions), or which were recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

BRERRER G RAABERGNERRAR

BRAAREEREBTRABIA KRBT F=
A=+— R BEREFHEHIEXVITE2REID
ERZA M AN A T R B 32 T B R RO AR sk AR RARR 19 2 48
AR (BIEHEREES GO 2 2B IR RE
AR AHE 2 AR A ER AN A AIRE S
B 5E 33615 BE T 2 Z MRS sl A B 2 IR
RIAT:

() EERRERFQIARGZHFE

Approximate
percentage of

No. of shares held shareholding

iR E HERRE S
696,780,000 (Note) 51.72%
(BI=E)
201,726,400 (Note) 14.97%

(P &)

BisE: $BBRSE A N BB &4 & A Sunrise Height
Incorporated } Green Ravine Limited 50% M4 o

(I HMALHERFQARARGZIFE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

BHERFIRBE L

No. of shares held

FeigE

94,844,000 7.04%

B EXPIERE SN AR RW BB AA L EAR
R EGIEXVEREE2 K B3 #RZAIAI AN A BB 2
FREEEE B SRR D (R AR B EERR ST
ABSN 2R (BRRERIBEESF R Z %
FHRBRIR AL 2 ERATAR) KL HR
RRAIREFEPIE336IFAET < B M AR

HAAA

—
—
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Contracts of significance

No contracts of significance between the Group and its controlling
shareholders or its subsidiaries and in which any director of the Company
is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisting during

or at the end of the year.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

Connected transactions
During the year, there is no connected transaction or continuing connected

transaction that is not exempted under the Listing Rules.

Public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital

of the Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditors
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board
Kwok Siu Ming, Simon

Chairman and chief executive officer

Hong Kong, 29th June 2006
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Auditors’ Report
ZE RS

PRICEAWATERHOUSE( COPERS

BERBKESTMEBAR

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 123 to 192 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible to prepare financial statements which give a
true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and
fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected

and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit,
on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company

and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Auditors’ Report
2 Gllkares

Opinion 2R

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state TIZEENER A EulA SR R AEERA T
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March 2006 and of T~ BERRE EEBER-ZETF=-A=+—H
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have been HEEBZBBRR R BEEEEZALEFE R
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the FRBEERE WEBREBSAGEHNZBRERTELA

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 3o
PricewaterhouseCoopers BEFKESTHERAT
Certified Public Accountants HESEHRD

Hong Kong, 29th June 2006 BE ZTEREXAZTAB




Consolidated Income Statement

= Nz
e lEE

For the year ended 31st March 2006
HE-ZZRF=-A=1+—HLEFE

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Restated
EEI
Turnover -0 5 2,620,586 2,313,706
Cost of sales SHEMA (1,475,495) (1,321,817)
Gross profit EFI 1,145,091 991,889
Other gains and revenues H ) R deas 5 60,133 27,505
Employee benefit expenses EERAFAL 6 (433,443) (384,903)
Depreciation and amortisation TE K gH 13814 (64,281) (39,502)
Other operating expenses HEihag =& A (480,341) (363,077)
Fair value changes on investment KEMZER
property and buildings BFZAFEEE 13(b)&(c) 2,135 3,581
Reversal of impairment losses on TAE Tt 2 R EEE
leasehold land 5 14 10,766 6,061
Net exchange (losses)/gains X (B518) /et F58 (17,450) 4,062
Profit before income tax BRETS M A A 8 222,610 245,616
Income tax expense FriSfi Az 9 (37,439) (43,560)
Profit for the year, attributable to equity ARQ A=A AN
holders of the Company FAH A 10 185,171 202,056
Dividends e 11 228,952 224,889

Earnings per share for profit attributable to AR GEHEZSIHFA A

equity holders of the Company R FERRFZ
during the year (expressed in FRREF
HK cents per share) (AL B ERRER) 12
Basic HAR 13.9 15.5
Diluted B 13.7 15.1
The notes on pages 129 to 192 are an integral part of these financial 212921928 v ik Rt FWBIME 2 ERE S -

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

FRBEERER
As at 31st March 2006
NZZERE=ZA=+—H

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BT
Restated
IR
ASSETS =3
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment e TN ] 13 161,012 124,275
Leasehold land FHE L 14 17,892 7,527
Other assets HipEE 16 54,687 47,559
Deferred income tax assets FEFMEREE 17 16,085 16,034
249,676 195,395
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 18 359,824 363,684
Trade receivables FEUBR X 19 22,091 20,075
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWRIE RE R
prepayments SEANE O 19 43,320 43,923
Income tax recoverable TEBFTS R 1,033 260
Bank deposits over three months to =EAEEEZ
maturity IR 20 105,018 290,795
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EMEEE 20 590,678 452 339
1,121,964 1,171,076
LIABILITIES Bff
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and bills payables FERERRRER 21 142,987 120,712
Other payables and accruals H A e RIE R FEET & 90,395 109,113
Current portion of receipts in advance TEWFIEZ B A EES 188,241 175,593
Financial liabilities at fair value through BN ESABESER
profit or loss 2% BE 22 262 -
Income tax payable FER TS HL 8,067 40,105
429,952 445,523
Net current assets BREEE 692,012 725,553
Total assets less current liabilities BEGERBREBARE 941,688 920,948




2006 2005
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FfaE BETT BT T
Restated
EHIR
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Receipts in advance LG 7,159 -
Retirement benefit obligations RIRTERAEYE 23 10,059 9,435
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFTSRAE 17 5,058 1,467
Other payables HAb BRI RIE 5,585 -
27,861 10,902
Net assets FEE 913,827 910,046
EQUITY W
Capital and reserves attributable to EATESRHBAEBIERE
the Company’s equity holders Rl
Share capital A&z 24 134,711 132,349
Reserves (e 25 630,724 631,980
Proposed dividends R B 25 148,392 145,717
Total equity B 913,827 910,046

On behalf of the Board REXEFE

KWOK Siu Ming, Simon 28483 KWOK Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor Z#EHY

Director #Z% Director #E%

—
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Balance Sheet
BEAER

As at 31st March 2006
RZEZERF=A=+—H

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in and amounts due from RHTEBA R 2 18E R IEW
subsidiaries NG o S 15 610,321 432,920
Other assets HEh&E 16 750 750
611,071 433,670
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWRIE RE R
prepayments TEfIFRIA 19 1,201 2,191
Bank deposits over three months to =@A%IE
maturity RITIFR 20 77,601 258,777
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEIER 20 219,233 200,446
298,035 461,414
LIABILITIES Bff
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals H At R IE R IEET & 384 686
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFABREREZ
profit or loss M aTE 22 202 -
586 686
Net current assets BRBEE 297,449 460,728
Total assets less current liabilities BESERREGRE 908,520 894,398
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfFHIB AR Z A 15 97 1,742
Net assets FEE 908,423 892,656
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to AATHERHA ABERE
the Company’s equity holders Rl
Share capital &7 24 134,711 132,349
Reserves & 25 625,320 614,590
Proposed dividends BRI S 25 148,392 145,717
Total equity HELSAEER 908,423 892,656
On behalf of the Board HREXZEZE
KWOK Siu Ming, Simon 28483 KWOK Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor Z#EHY

Director ZEF

The notes on pages 129 to 192 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Director EF
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= Al A==
A Eﬁimui%
For the year ended 31st March 2006

HEZZZXRF=-A=1+—HLFE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Cash flows from operating activities  {E&EBEZRLSHE
Cash generated from operations SR EE 2R S 26 292,961 239,787
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEHEENEH (62,469) (26,010)
Overseas tax paid BE&EIINHIR (4,228) (5,711)
Net cash generated from operating HEEBEEZ
activities B 226,264 208,066
Cash flows from investing activities BEEBZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and FEE 3 a8
equipment P& (99,425) (64,388)
Proceeds from disposal of property, I EM S R AR
plant and equipment Pt sRIg 715 418
Redemption of investment securities FEII B EH - 35,381
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits =(BR &2 RTT
over three months to maturity BaERD, (35n) 185,777 (78,798)
Interest received W BRI S 17,572 13,964
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEBELE (FR)
investing activities ZiFRE 104,639 (93,423)
Cash flows from financing activities AEEBZEALRE
Proceeds from share issued upon 1TIE s AR 1T 31 TRR 1D
exercise of options Z P RaE 33,695 42,065
Dividends paid PIEEE N (226,619) (196,580)
Net cash used in financing activities RIS ERAERE (192,924) (154,515)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and & RIRSZEIER
cash equivalents TR GRD) 137,979 (39,872)
Cash and cash equivalents RENZBRERFE
at beginning of year Z{HIEH 452,339 492,957
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes R0 -7 360 (746)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REXRZIHERIASZLEERH 590,678 452,339

The notes on pages 129 to 192 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

,J_—| /\ e [N %%—I%
FeEnEBR
For the year ended 31st March 2006
HE-_ZZRF=-A=1+—HLEFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
AATHERHFAANEL
Share capital Reserves Total
[;i:Z.3 ] ELEE]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BRI
At 1st April 2005, as per below R-FZHEEMA—AB WT3 132,349 777,697 910,046
Profit for the year FEnF - 185,171 185,171
Translation differences recognised BRI EmER L
directly in equity & 5= - 266 266
Total recognised income for the year FRERUA B - 185,437 185,437
Employee share option scheme: & B AR ERT 2l
Value of employee services EBIRKER 2(a) - 11,268 11,268
Proceeds from shares issued upon TR M EE AT
exercise of options B&1n 2 FTisRIA 24(a)825(a) 2,362 31,333 33,695
Dividends BRE
2004/2005 “TTN/TTRF
Final and Special dividends RERBFRIAR S - (146,059) (146,059)
2005/2006 ZTTH/ZTTRF
Interim dividend FERRR S - (40,280) (40,280)
2005/2006 “TTH/ZTTRF
Special dividend Frpllig S - (40,280) (40,280)
At 31st March 2006 R E=RA=+—H 134,711 779,116 913,827
At 1st April 2004, as previously R-FFTNEMNA—A:
reported as equity ZHIRRBER 129,306 720,278 849,584
Prior period adjustments resulting from BERAEASEERE175
the adoption of HKAS 17 m{EL 2 ATEA R 2(a)() - (1,213) (1,213)
Balance at 1st April 2004, as restated N-ZBFNEMNA—BEE EHIIR 129,306 719,065 848,371
Profit for the year FRER - 202,056 202,056
Translation differences recognised BEERNERERZ
directly in equity [ 5 =8 - @17) @17)
Total recognised income for the year FAERBABE - 201,639 201,639
Employee share option scheme: & B AR ERT 2l
Value of employee services EERKEE 2(a) - 14,551 14,551
Proceeds from shares issued upon IR ML T
exercise of options &5 2 Fr iR 24(2)825(a) 3,043 39,022 42,065
Dividends fRE
2003/2004 —TT=/TTHF
Final and Special dividends RERBFRIAR S - (117,408) (117,408)
2004/2005 —TTWN/TTRF
Interim dividend HHIRE - (39,586) (39,586)
2004/2005 “TTWN/TTRF
Special dividend KRR S - (39,586) (39,586)
At 31st March 2005 and R-BBRF=A=+—-HR
1st April 2005 “EFRFENA—H 132,349 777,697 910,046

The notes on pages 129 to 192 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b et N

General information

Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing and
wholesaling of a wide range of brand name cosmetic products and

the provision of beauty and health club services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman

Islands.

The Company has its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

As at 31st March 2006, 51.72% of the total issued shares of the
Company is owned by Sunrise Height Incorporated, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The directors regard Sunrise
Height Incorporated as being the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong
Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Director on
29th June 2006.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of buildings, financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and an investment

property, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

—REH

SHEGERERAR ([ARA) REME
AF (G (A% E]) TBRES BRI
B2 BERHR RIRHERREET LRS-

AARIRIFHERESEMKILZBRAR 7
=g it AP.O. Box 309GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town,

Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslandse

ARTRNEBHAZAFERAR L

RIZZETERF=ZA=+—RH AR A2HD %
TTRE1D 2561.72% R KB s 2 B S e A Nz
2 A TSunrise Height Incorporated A - &%
2 A3Sunrise Height Incorporated A7ZN A &1 & 48

IR A

BREEREIN EMBHRRIGUEET T
FHEUSEHBRRER -TTRFA-T
NAEEESHETIE-

BEEETRRAE

R S BHRERAIRA 2 T ERH RS
T B RAERES W E RS 2
EEHER-

(a) HwWHEEE
MBHRERTDHRIBEE BT B RS ERNIRR
FEERAFERERE WEBHET R
RNHEINBGER M BEENTEA
B AR HEINEZREDE T IAE
&l

RIEEBI RS E R BIHRERA
ERE TSRS MEEERNER
AT EFHBERRIAEHHIE -5 R A
HERKFHERE AR BENE
BRRREAEYBRRMEBERNZ
EHS - TOROT A EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b et N

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

During the year ended 31st March 2006, the Group adopted the
new/revised standards and interpretations of HKFRS below,
which are relevant to its operations. The 2004/05 comparatives
have been amended as required, in accordance with the relevant

requirements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates
and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet
Date

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

HKAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition

(Amendment) of Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

HKAS 40 Investment Property

HKAS-Int 15 Operation Leases — Incentives

HKAS-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of
Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets

HKFRS 2 Share-based

Payment

2.

BEESHBERME @

(a)

REEZE ()
SRR AR TR BB AR A

BEZTRF=A=+—HILFE K
SEERMATATERNEEEXBERNTE
BB IRE R, SRR R
R _TENE CEERFIHBE

FENEFTERRIEAMREEHER]-
BEGHENEIT MBERZZ2)
BEeirRlEsE FH
BRGTEMNETR  BRERER
FEGTENESR S BE g5
B E
Rz
BRGHENEI0% BEEERA
N2

BEGHER 165
BEGHERNSETH

HE

BEGHERS215  INEERZDE
vz
EREERE4  BBHATHE
EEEERISE7H  RARBYHE
W&
EREENERE B BE
e
EHGERSER BREAT
EEEHENENY  AERNE
EEEERISE30N BB IE R
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EEGHENEN  HBEERNS
(&zT) AENBER
NEHER
EREGHENSI0N BREADE
BEGHERRE meRE B8
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BRGTERRE
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EBMEREER  URH I
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 21, 24,
27, 33, 36 and HKAS-Int 15 did not result in substantial changes

to the Group’s accounting policies. In summary:

- HKAS 1 had affected certain financial statement disclosures.

-  HKASs2,7,8, 10, 16, 27, 33, 36 and HKAS-Int 15 had no

material effect on the Group’s policies.

-  HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s policy. The
functional currency of each of the consolidated entities has
been re-evaluated based on the guidance to the revised
standard. All the Group entities have the same functional
currency as the presentation currency for respective entity

financial statements.

- HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related parties

and some other related-party disclosures.

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy relating to the reclassification of leasehold land
from property, plant and equipment to operating leases. The up-
front prepayments made for the leasehold land are expensed in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is expensed
in the income statement. In prior years, the leasehold land was
accounted for at fair value less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment.

2.

BEESHBERME @

(a)

RBLEE ()

ERANATARM, #ENEET B T 4R & 28R
(#)

PRINFT R, EIERT BB G ERE
1-2-7-8-10416-21-24-27-33-36
REEGHERREE 155U REBAR
SEMEFBRRERERES -HE2:

- AREFENSIRYETHBER

REBEERYE

—  EEgFPERIE2-7-8-10016"
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FI5REAEE Y BRI &
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— AEGIERE21REAERZ
BRABBAFE -SRAERL
W BB RREETERIES
EXTRHE R EE T PAE AR
HERZDEEEEEZ QR MB R
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ZHERRL SR EBALTHNE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b et N

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (continued)

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a change in
the accounting policy for recognition, measurement,
derecognition and disclosure of financial instruments. Following
the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39, the Group’s rental deposits
are measured at amortised cost and the carrying amount of the
assets is computed by discounting the future cash flows to the
present value using the effective interest method. In addition, it
has resulted in the recognition of derivative financial instruments

at fair value.

The adoption of revised HKAS 40 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy of which the changes in fair values of investment
properties are recorded in the income statement. In prior years,
the increases in fair value of investment properties were credited
to the investment properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in
fair value were first set off against increases on earlier valuations
on a portfolio basis and thereafter expensed in the income

statement.

The adoption of revised HKAS-Int 21 has resulted in a change in
the accounting policy relating to the measurement of deferred
income tax liabilities arising from the revaluation of investment
properties. Such deferred income tax liabilities are measured on
the basis of tax consequences that would follow from recovery
of the carrying amount of that asset through use. In prior years,
the carrying amount of that asset was expected to be recovered

through sale.

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for share-based payments. Until 31st March
2005, the provision of share options to employees did not result
in an expense in the income statement. Effective on 1st April
2005, the Group expenses the cost of share options in the income
statement. As a transitional provision, the cost of share options
granted after 7th November 2002 and had not yet vested on 1st
April 2005 was expensed retrospectively in the income statement

of the respective periods.

2.

BEESHBERME @

(a)

RBEE ()

FANATRR A, #ENEET B 5 iR & 22
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RMERGTERFER2 KRR TR AR
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B BERLREE RN E B GRS
3239 E ANEE 2 HEIR S AR
BARAFE MEERIENABRNE
ERARReREWRBRAFHRE
ST E S B TR R AR ERER

RNEIERI BB G HERIE405%1E |
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (continued)

All changes in accounting policies have been made in accordance
with the transitional provisions in the respective standards, when
applicable. All standards adopted by the Group require

retrospective application other than:

- HKAS 16 — the initial measurement of an item of property,
plant and equipment acquires in an exchange of asset
transaction is accounted at fair value prospectively only to

future transactions;

- HKAS 21 — prospective accounting for goodwill and fair

value adjustments as part of foreign operations;

- HKAS 39 - does not permit to recognise, derecognise and
measure financial assets and liabilities in accordance with

this standard on a retrospective basis;

- HKAS 40 - since the Group has adopted the fair value
model, there is no requirement for the Group to restate the
comparative information. As there was no revaluation
surplus as at 31st March 2005, no reclassification of any
amount held in revaluation surplus for investment property

is necessary;

- HKAS-Int 15 — does not require the recognition of incentives

for leases beginning before 1st April 2005; and

- HKFRS 2 - only retrospective application for all equity
instruments granted after 7th November 2002 and not
vested at 1st April 2005.

2.

BEESHBERME @

(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
I ERR M5

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. EEESTBEREEmw

(@) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) MRBEE (&)
()  The adoption of revised HKAS 17 resulted in a decrease in () ERANEEETEBEERE17R
opening retained earnings at 1st April 2004 by BY_ZTNFHHA-HHRIE
HK$1,213,000. s AR A1,213,000% 7T

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’'000
AR BT
Decrease in property, plant and equipment Y5 R KRR 17,892 7,527
Increase in leasehold land FHE 1 b3 N 17,892 7,527
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTIS T B EIE N 175 175
Decrease in deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS T & EE R > 1,038 1,038
Decrease in depreciation neERD 401 290
Increase in amortisation BESHIE N 401 290
(i)  The adoption of revised HKAS 39 resulted in: (i) IRALIEFTBL G ERIE395
LB
Group
A5E
2006
HK$’000
BETT
Increase in financial liabilities at fair value BATFEIIAERRZ
through profit or loss g3 =N el 262
Increase in fair value losses on forward REINEE N2 ATE
foreign exchange contracts EEIE N 262

Decrease in basic earnings per share (HK cents)  ERXEAZFR A GEL) -

Decrease in diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SR EESEZR T GB1L) -




2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i)~ The adoption of revised HKFRS 2 resulted in a decrease in
opening retained earnings at 1st April 2004 by
HK$5,218,000:

Increase in employee share-based R HMEE
compensation reserve and P <& 18 4 K%
share premium A&7 Ve (B HE

Decrease in retained earnings BIF AR

Increase in employee benefit expenses & BAEAIF s m

Decrease in basic earnings per share BRERBFHD
(HK cents) (L)

Decrease in diluted earnings per share ERREE R F) Rk
(HK cents) (B

2.

EEETHEBE @
(a) MEEE )
(i)  ERANVHEET BB MG LRE2
REFR_ZTZENFMHA—HBHZ
BRI AT ARk 25,218,000/ 7T -

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BETT

31,037 19,769
31,037 19,769
11,268 14,551
0.8 1.1
0.8 1.4

No early adoption of the following new Standards or
Interpretations or Amendments that have been issued but are
not yet effective. The directors anticipate that the adoption of
these Standards or Interpretations or Amendments will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Group and will
not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting

policies.

AR FIW AR R RN A T $ARAIER £
W2 FER AR RIER] - EE F IR
SEAREBRRETHARERBRK
BEEAFE NG EHASE G
HERHREARE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS R R M T

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)
HKAS 21

(Amendment)
HKAS 39

(Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4

(Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 6 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7

HKFRS - Int 4

HKFRS - Int 5

HK(FRIC) - Int 6

HK(FRIC) - Int 7

Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group
Plans and Disclosures

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup
Transactions

The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Liabilities arising from Participating in
a Specific Market — Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment

Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting

in Hyperinflationary Economies

EESHBERBE @
REEE (40)
BASIERET  BBREREN:
(&30 BAHR
BEGHERZE19% BEER £EHIR
(&30 #"E
BRGHENENR  ERRZRETE
(3D
BRSIEREY  EBHEERALAE
(&30 RHZREME
HhertRE
BEGHERFE0T  EENATEAR
(&30
BEGHERE0F  MBERED
REBRBRE
AERIZEA5R (1E7T)
BB EREER BIRRINE BT
£1% (B3] WE%R
BBUBREER REARHR R
65 (B3]
BHUBREED PRI FHR
EX
BB EREER EELHRE
REEAR BIEEE
BHUBREER BILEIE BRRIRE
RIEEST EEESESER
ZHER|
5 (ERBHRE SEEETMBEAZ
RBZER)RE BE-EEENR
£6% BFRE
5 (EREBEHRE  REEELHER
ZBZE®) FOFEERR
REETHR KER 2 IBRE
RSN



2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(©

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to

31st March.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when

assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered an impairment
indicator of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis

of dividends received and receivable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time of cash receipt for retail sale or the time of delivery for

wholesale sale.

Revenue from beauty and health club services represents
membership fee and service fee income in connection with the
provision of physical fitness and beauty treatment service.
Membership fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over
the contract terms. Service fees received in advance are taken
to the receipts in advance account and are recognised on a
systematic basis in accordance with service usage over a

maximum period of five years.

2.

BEESHBERME @
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(©)

(d)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using

the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the

Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,

being the estimated future cash flow discounted at original

effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding

the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired

loans is recognised either as cash is collected or on a cost-

recovery basis as conditions warrant.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

Property, plant and equipment

()

Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by group

companies, is classified as investment property.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease

is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including

related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is valued
annually by external independent valuers and carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or

condition of the specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current

market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

()

(i)

Investment property (continued)
Changes in fair values are recognised in the income

statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories, retail outlets and offices.
Buildings are stated at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers,
less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
buildings are credited to other reserves in shareholders’
equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same
asset are charged against fair value reserves directly in
equity; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Each year the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
expensed in the income statement and depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost is transferred from fair value

reserve to retained earnings.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
income statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in other reserves are transferred to

retained earnings.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued
amounts to their residual values over the unexpired periods
of the leases or their estimated useful lives, whichever is

shorter. The principal annual rates used for this purpose

are:
Leasehold buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements 15% t0 33.3%
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 15% t0 33.3%
Motor vehicles and vessel 20% to 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

(i) Assets under construction
Assets under construction is carried at cost which includes
development expenditure incurred and interest and other
direct costs attributable to the development of plant and
equipment less any accumulated losses. No depreciation
is provided for assets under construction. Upon completion,
the associated costs are transferred to appropriate

categories of property, plant and equipment.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are expensed in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(9)

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.

Financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivables and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

() Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as “trade and other receivables”

in the balance sheet.

2.

BEESHBERME @

(f)

BEERME
ERER(ERENEERBEEN A
D EFETRERR N EEEBL
RE SRR AR (E R A ER @
EITRERR R BEANELES
BB R SRR REREER e AN
BB - T TR EROR R EBRIRE B
EEBHE AR OISR 2 SRR AR
ARl R A E A TERE B Ak
EREE (REREE) st hRENS -
BERBIAHNRSRE REeEEL
i) RIEKFHREOREZFFMBEE
(FERIN RERRARBIATREHIRZ

A ERE -

MBEE
AEEZRIE RN EEZ B #
HEBEED BRER R EURFIRAR
BAHEIIABRE . MBaE-EEE
RERERRREMBEE 2 DERR
BEWEREHFEEEEN B

()  EHRERTRE

ERRIERFTARBRIEITEN
BB EE FHBEELAHE
R (IR TS
RERE) <UL FH B BIERD
BE BEHHEEREFTER
EAKIER AIFERIERSEE-
B K EYGRIEENABERE
22 0 [ B R % L A Mk
Hle

—

S Sk | N R A ]

41

2l v 7 R e R R



142

9002 / G002 Hoday [enuuy

pajwi SBUIP|oH [eUOHEUIBIU| BS BS

Notes to the Financial Statements
b et N

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading or those designated at
fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial liability
is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by

management.

Liabilities under this category are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Changes in
fair value of the liabilities are recognised in the income

statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are carried at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Inventories
Inventories comprise merchandise and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. In general, costs
are assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the price at which inventories can be sold
in the normal course of business after allowing for the costs of

realisation.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of
the provision is recognised in the income statement with “other
operating expenses”.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

0

(k)

(0

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities

on the balance sheet.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Foreign currency translation

() Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

2.

BEESHBERME @

)

(k)

RERRELEEEAR

ReMReSEERBETFHRERES RT
AER EMRAFHARS=EARZ
RASREIEIRE U RRITHE L -IR1T
BXREERBERARBDAEBERTZE

E3IRe

EEFTEH
BEFFBHERBREEIREERBRE
ZRERT IR S B HRR 2 REE
&2 B E R ERUERTEMS
BERAIEE B EEM e EE R I
HINE BRI S T E E SR SR P
BHaEEERERZHEREE-

IEFFIS I AT A Al BEAS R SR FERR
Boa A B R B A 2 B i 2 RS M AR

EIEFRIS BTSN B A BRE 2
Z MR - (EFRE AT A AR SR e ) B 22
ZBEIR R YA R ER ER ARG
B E AR SN

SNEIRE

() DEERZINEH

SHPBIRKRTVAR AR Z AL
FIEEBE R

—

S Sk | N R A ]

43

2l v 7 R e R R



144

9002 / G002 Hoday [enuuy

pajwi SBUIP|oH [eUOHEUIBIU| BS BS

Notes to the Financial Statements
b et N

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
() Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follow:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses

are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equity held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair

value gain or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Provisions

(n)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,

and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provision are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised in the income

statement.

Employee benefits

() Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlerments to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates a number of defined contribution and
defined benefit retirement plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
retirement plans are generally funded by payments from

employees and by the relevant group companies.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available to all qualified employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated at a percentage of employees’ salaries or a

fixed sum for each employee where appropriate.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(i)

Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as incurred and are reduced
by contributions forfeited to those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, where

appropriate.

For defined benefit retirement plan, retirement costs are
assessed using the projected unit credit method: the costs
are charged to the income statement so as to spread the
regular costs over the service lives of employees in
accordance with the advice of the actuaries who carry out
a full valuation of the plan each year. The retirement
obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of government
securities which have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised over the average remaining service lives of
employees. Past service costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the average period

until the benefits become vested.

The Group’s contributions to defined benefit retirement plan
are charged to the income statement in the period to which

the contributions relate.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of amounts payable
on cessation of employment in certain circumstances under
the employment law of the respective countries in which
the Group operates is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the

current and prior periods.

Long service payments are assessed using the projected
unit credit method. The cost of providing the long service
payment liabilities is charged to the income statement so
as to spread the cost over the service lives of employees in

accordance with the advice of the actuaries.

2.

BEESHBERME @
EBEFEA (@)

(n)

(i)

(i)

BRIKGEFALE (&)

SB[ ERHEFURAG BIER Z
HHREEERUBERE MET
EEEEHSH TR NS
B 2 B & B IEN

UL TR (AE ) ©

ShIERRIR ARG BT 5 - RIREK
ARG B BRDEN M RIR
BEAMRA S GFETHNREMG
B RERARES R AER
BRAR AN EEREFHER
B DR AR RN T IR hET R
HEHR e HE 2R E FIF EAERE
BEEERBUZBRESZE
SHEBEREZRES TR
TS ERERR - B 2 IRIE A A TiR
FHEHMNERERH EERE
ZELFREMNBLL-

SR8 1) FE AR A MR IRRT &) 2 30
AERIERI R a2 X 8

RHREE
REERE2ERK ZRE RS
EETERTHRELERENZ

SRAEFE REERAHR
AT AR (AR TS RER 2 (2 3t 2 R 2R
MEmEER-

REARG 2 TG B ERE
FHE-RERBEBEZRATIR
WER R IR - AR R AN HRAE E D 2
P ME B RIS F I Y



2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Long service payments (continued)

Long service payments are discounted to determine the
present value of obligation and reduced by entitlement
accrued under the Group’s defined contribution plans that
are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised over the average
remaining service lives of employees. Past service costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the average period until the benefits become vested.

Share-based payment

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining

vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees

and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liability for bonus plan is expected to be settled within 12
months and is measured at the amount expected to be

paid when it is settled.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

(P)

(a)

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segments

operating in other economic environments.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group and of the
Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly

within the control of the Group and of the Company.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset will be

recognised.

Comparative figures

Where necessary, prior year amounts have been reclassified to
conform with changes in presentation in the current year. The
major reclassifications for the 2004/05 comparative figures include
reclassification of certain items from other receivables, deposits
and prepayments to other assets, and reclassification of certain

receipts in advance from non-current to current liabilities.

2.
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Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s

overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance. Risk management is carried by management

who identifies, evaluates and mitigate financial risks in close co-

operation with the Group’s operating units. The Group manages and

monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries/locations and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from non U.S. dollar foreign
exchange exposures. Foreign risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation.

Most of the assets, receipts and payments of the Group are either
in Hong Kong and U.S. dollars. The Group will monitor its foreign
exchange position and, when appropriate, the Group will mitigate
part of its non U.S. dollar foreign exchange exposure by way of
forward foreign exchange contracts.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of customers. Majority of the
Group’s turnover are cash or credit card sales. The Group has
policies in place to monitor the financial viability of customers. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Derivative
counter parties and cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial institution.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and making available an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities with staggered maturities to reduce refinancing
risk in any year and to fund working capital, debt servicing,
dividend payments, new investments and close out market
positions if required. Based on the Group has steady cash inflow
from operations and has adequate financial resources to fund its
operations and future expansion.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk resulted from timing differences in
the repricing of interest bearing assets. Major interest bearing

assets of the Group are bank deposits.

The Group monitors its interest rate risk through management of
maturity profile, currency mix and choice of fixed or floating interest

rates.

Besides, the Group continues to adopt a conservative approach
to financial risk management with no significant borrowing during

the year. The interest rate risk resulted from borrowing is minimal.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed

below.

(@

Deferred income tax

At 31st March 20086, deferred income tax assets of HK$2,184,000
in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. Estimating the amount of deferred
income tax asset arising from tax losses requires a process that
involves determining appropriate provisions for income tax
expense, forecasting future year’s taxable income and assessing
our ability to utilise tax benefits through future earnings. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than expected,
a material reversal of the deferred income tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the income statement for the period
in which such a reversal takes place. While the current financial
models indicate that the tax losses can be utilised in the future,
any changes in assumptions and estimates and in tax regulations

can affect the recoverability of this deferred income tax assets.

3.

BEREREE @

(d) FIEERR
HARASETEERTEEE HAKE
ZWAREER S REHABEBILR
LEZIEL

AEEZFHRARETAAESTER
2B RSB AEEARS R EER
B

REBEEEERRAS EREANE
T RGEER DA GIN R Ak

Sg'

SN AR SR BB TS R B SR AR AR SRR
RS RERNLBERERBRAE
7 MR BRI SE

BARESHfhET R A E

i BB IS THIET (BT AR R AR
ZRE BERZSHA TR RS RRASA
CESLE

AEELARIIEHEE RRR-BREE g5t
MEHRAOERMBAERIER T Xa ]
eS| N AR FEz EEMA ERmE
AIEHEAFR Z Mt AERER-

NN

(a) EIEFTEH
R-ZZRF=A=+—R EREMAH
BEREBZBEERBHREER
2,184,000/ 7T ENFABEEREBERA
R AR R B HBE R ZRIEMSHE
EEBRESRETEE SR H
B TRRIR R BRI - AT
FHA A S [ B R R B e R A TR
fRFTEL 2 BB ARREFNERTA
FAEPTISTR A B P RE AR B 2] 3
R R EA R R e 2R PO ERR - B RSR B IR
M BSE R  THIRE IR AT R fE
R BRI R A FRER - A BB
BATMES RIAIREE R B UL HEE T
BHEENEN-

H AI3E



4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Impairment of assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable or tests for impairment annually
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.
Determining whether an asset is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use, which requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. In 2006,
after reviewing the business environment as well as the Group’s
objectives and past performance of the investments,
management has concluded that there was no impairment loss

for assets at 31st March 20086.

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an estimate of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the use of estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such estimate

has been changed.

Fair value estimation of share options

The Group estimates the fair value of share options using a
binomial lattice methodology which involves the use of estimates.
Details of the significant inputs to the valuation model are

disclosed in Note 24.

4,

RS THEET R M E @

(b)

()

(d)

BEERE
BEMEHEESREBCBEREER
EERRE A O AEE S EEE
TTRERR SIRB AR ST ER B A E
ETFERENR - EEEERSDHIUR
ERHHEEREE-EAEERER
B AEEEAMGF AR SIRE WAHE
ENMREAERE-WERBRESR
BERRIEH BT R E HIREARER
BN ZBERFE ERTEFREAR
AEERERRIOBERBR EEER
R RIBBERF=ZR=+—H EEY
BRI EARERE-

WRFEZET#REE
AEEREBHEFEEIR BN 2 E MR
FEEAERME-WMELEENHBERE
BERERATRE R B IR TR
OB BARURBIE R At BRIz &
HEREGTAERE EHEEKE
R RN ESRRA Y EFE 2R
[ENEVSE e

WA 2 ATl
AN BRI oA R 2 2
T8 BT RS Rkt ot B AT
B2 = ERUESE R EEAR E B

—

S Sk | N R A ]

51

2l v 7 R e R R



Notes to the Financial Statements
I ERR M5

5. Revenues, turnover and segment information 5. W - EEBERITFER
The Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of a REFBFEXBREEZBRBCIERCTE
wide range of brand name cosmetic products and the provision of RBLE - RIRMHER REEFER O RBEERBR
beauty and health club services. Turnover represents the invoiced sales KEMERBRHETERE 2 RIRHEEBE-F
value of goods and of services supplied to customers. Revenues AR 2 WA T :

recognised during the year are as follows:

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Turnover B
Retail and wholesale TE Rt 2,425,314 2,122,215
Beauty and health club services A REER LRSS 195,272 191,491
2,620,586 2,313,706
Other gains and revenues Hfth 1 B e 25
Interest income A EUA 17,518 12,357
Slide display rental income 2 R BR5IFE S WA 16,873 13,612
Rental income HB WA 831 600
Provision for staff costs, including discretionary bonus, B ERTFEEL B TR
made in previous years written back (BIEWISTEAD) #th 23,923 -
Sundry income HIEUA 988 936
60,133 27,505
2,680,719 2,341,211
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, DEEETEDEME WBRREE HEL
leasehold land, inventories, receivables and operating cash, and - FE UGB REERE TRECEE
exclude certain corporate assets and tax. Segment liabilities comprise RETRARBERMIE-DEBERELCEAE:
operating liabilities and exclude financial liabilities at fair value through TEIEZIER BIRATEIABRECMEE
profit or loss and tax. Capital expenditure comprises additions to BERBIB- BN BEBAYE MRk
property, plant and equipment and leasehold land. BEREE e
152
39
2 0
s 2
=
gg
58
5



W -EEBEEIHER @

5. Revenues, turnover and segment information 5.

(continued)
(@) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) EEIPHRE K5I @A)
Beauty and
health club
Retail and services 2006
wholesale EFhEE Total
TERRE ol IR TS EOEE]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
Turnover | 2,425,314 195,272 2,620,586
Results E
Segment results DEBELE 220,248 (10,607) 209,641
Interest income F BUA 17,518
Fair value changes on investment RENMEREFZ
property and buildings NTEEE) 2,135 - 2,135
Reversal of impairment losses on AE L ZmE
leasehold land iggictadm 10,766 - 10,766
Net exchange (losses)/gains & (E518) e
et (17,488) 38 (17,450)
Profit before income tax R PG 35 Al g 222,610
Income tax expense s Ei A (37,439)
Profit for the year FE R 185,171
Segment assets PEEE 1,272,747 81,025 1,353,772
Unallocated corporate assets ROEEEEE 17,868
Total assets EEEE 1,371,640
Segment liabilities SEEE 221,338 223,088 444,426
Unallocated corporate liabilities AoEEEER 13,387
Total liabilities BEEE 457,813
Other information Hin&EH
Capital expenditure BRI 91,052 8,373 99,425
Depreciation e 47,385 16,495 63,880
Amortisation BH Y 401 - 401
Write-off of property, plant and LIERY SN
equipment R AR 804 8 812
Provision for impairment losses FEUBR SR (B 518
on trade receivables e - 27 27
Provision for slow moving inventories T E R I8
and stock shrinkage FERE 17,320 135 17,455

—
(o)}
w
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R - EEENHER @

5. Revenues, turnover and segment information 5.

(continued)
(@) Primary reporting format - business segments (continued) (a) EEITHE Ko @
Beauty and
health club
Retail and services 2005
wholesale EARESE Total
TERBLE AR TS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
Restated Restated Restated
IR AR IR
Turnover | 2,122,215 191,491 2,313,706
Results e
Segment results DEBFELE 222,789 (3,234) 219,555
Interest income FEHA 12,357
Fair value changes on investment REMEREFZ
property and buildings NTEEE) 3,581 - 3,581
Reversal of impairment losses on THE T2 BB
leasehold land [E5tE Tl 6,061 - 6,061
Net exchange gains/(losses) P& R as (E518)
HER 4,317 (255) 4,062
Profit before income tax BR PS5 Rl A 245,616
Income tax expense FriSfiAZ (43,560)
Profit for the year F A 202,056
Segment assets NHEEE 1,272,613 76,694 1,349,307
Unallocated corporate assets ROEEEEE 17,164
Total assets BEEH 1,366,471
Segment liabilities NEEE 210,195 204,658 414,853
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROEEEER 41,672
Total liabilities =TEft] 456,425
Other information Hithigst
Capital expenditure BRI 51,068 13,320 64,388
Depreciation e 25,678 13,534 39,212
154 Amortisation 31 290 - 290
ze Write-off of property, plant and LIERY i TR )N
58 equipment R AE AR 903 22 925
D 2
5 g (Reversal of provision for)/ (B = FE N AR FORE
= provision for impairment losses EIaRHE) /IR
8 g_x on trade receivables BRI BB R (109) 18 91)
% Provision for slow moving inventories Vick=LEN =W & =Y <5
- and stock shrinkage FERHE 22,586 217 22,803




5. Revenues, turnover and segment information

(continued)

(b)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group operates in Mainland China, Taiwan and South Asia.

Mainland China includes Hong Kong and Macau. South Asia

comprises Thailand, Malaysia and Singapore.

W -EEBEEIHER @

(b) REBIEB®ME —HEDHP

REERFEARE 58N FEDibREE

EB-hEAEREREE MR B

[ SN PRSI

Mainland South 2006

China Taiwan Asia Total

ch g K P /& A E 1k

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Turnover o 2,330,351 88,962 201,273 2,620,586
Segment assets PEEE 1,189,657 39,274 124,841 1,353,772
Unallocated corporate assets AOEEEEE 17,868
Total assets BEHHE 1,371,640
Capital expenditure B 83,721 7,875 7,829 99,425

Mainland South 2005

China Asia Total

AR B R [ 28 b & 1R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT IT BT IT BT IT BT T

Restated Restated Restated Restated

IR IR IR BHHIR

Turnover = 2] 2,071,828 62,639 179,239 2,313,706
Segment assets NEREE 1,204,933 29,954 114,420 1,349,307
Unallocated corporate assets KPMEBEE 17,164
Total assets BEEHEE 1,366,471
Capital expenditure BEAMRX 49,108 4,323 10,957 64,388

Turnover are allocated based on the places in which the

customers are located.

Capital expenditure, comprises additions to property, plant and

equipment and leasehold land, is allocated based on where the

assets are located.

ERBZOBRREEREE.

EAERXBREBAYE #sRRER

THE L3 B8R TR & BE PR T 5E
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6. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ 6. EERAAX (BRESHE) — X

emoluments) - Group 8
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BRI
Restated
EpiiRdlln
Directors’ fees EEHE 1,032 914
Wages, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances T& Fe BEEZEL
and benefits in kind H 200 R EYH= 399,272 353,018
Provision for unutilised annual leave REVAFREE 1,781 105
Retirement benefit costs (Note 23(b)) RNERIBA (Bt 5E23(0) 20,090 16,315
Share-based payment LARR A SZ AT A 32 H 11,268 14,551
433,443 384,903
7. Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 7. EEREREEAEZ#HME
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=
The remuneration of each director of the Company during the HEZTTE=-A=1T—HLFE K
year ended 31st March 2006 was set out below: RAIBEEZMEHIIT:

Basic
salaries,
housing

allowances,
other
allowances
and benefits

in kind Retirement Share-

EX#H£ Discretionary benefit based

REERM bonuses costs  payment (i)
Fees HZHR ByiEsEs BHEN  URHH Total
e ENFiE 2 7%, B3t (i) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
it BT BT BT it it

Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Kwok, Siu Ming, Simon POREE - 2,358 238 200 - 3,296
Mrs. Kwok Law, Kwai Chun, Eleanor PBRHD LT - 2,59 216 181 - 2,991
Mr. Look, Guy Bt - 2,480 - 139 - 2619
Non-executive Director FoiTES
Mrs. Lee Look, Ngan Kwan, Christina MR LT 240 - - - - 240
156
Independent Non-executive Directors  BIIFEHTESE
g 2 Professor Chan, Yuk Shee, J.P. CER e A i 288 - - - - 288
; % Dr. Leung, Kwok Fai, Thomas, J.P. REERL K T4t 256 - - - - 256
% §= Ms. Tam, Wai Chu, Maria, GBS, J.P. EEME
% % EHES
8s K¥at 248 - - - 216 524
% 1,032 7,082 454 520 276 10,214




7. Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 7. EEREAEEAEZHME @

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEBEME @
HE_ZERAF=-A=T—HILFE K
NABEZZHEEINMAT:

The remuneration of each director of the Company during the
year ended 31st March 2005 was set out below:

Basic
salaries,
housing

allowances,
other
allowances
and benefits

in kind

Fees
ks
HK$'000

BT

Discretionary
bonuses

Retirement
benefit
costs
RIRER
e
HK$'000
BETR

Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Kwok, Siu Ming, Simon HOEREE - 2,722 298 191 3,211
Mrs. Kwok Law, Kwai Chun, Eleanor FEEY LT - 2,470 271 173 2,914
Mr. Lok, Guy BERE S - 1,980 567 138 2,685
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mrs. Lee Look, Ngan Kwan, Christina FIRERER 22+ 234 - - - 234
Independent Non-executive Directors  BIIEHITES
Professor Chan, Yuk Shee, J.P. PR E A s APt 258 - - - 258
Dr. Leung, Kwok Fai, Thomas, J.P. REEG L ATL 242 - - - 242
Ms. Tam, Wai Chu, Maria, GBS, J.P. BRI

SEHAEE

K+ 180 - = - 180

914 7,172 1,136 502 9,724

Notes: B7E

i) Share-based payment represents amortisation to the income

statement of the fair value of share options measured at the BERERE BB ATE M wmER

respective grant dates, regardless of whether the share options R DEITE.

would be exercised or not.
No compensation for loss of office has been paid to the directors HE-ZT /_&:275 hE=A="+—
for the years ended 31st March 2006 and 2005. AIEFE WEGATE ST REEmE-
No director of the Company waived any emoluments during the HE-_ZZAR_TETAF=-A=*+—
years ended 31st March 2006 and 2005. AIEFE: @ﬂ%%?ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁl%H&WE

Bl o

() AR I EORI SRR s R SRR AL

=
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~l
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7. Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 7. EEREREEAEZHE @

(continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EUBSHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the REESSHM 2 AATHEE=A
Group for the year include three (2005: three) directors whose EE(CZTRF =) -HEZHEE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The REXDIT EHMUALT (ZEF
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2005: two) individuals F W) RERBEIT:

during the year were as follows:

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’'000
AR BT
Restated
BT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EXEre FEEEM By
allowances and benefits in kind AR EYF 2,445 2,055
Discretionary bonuses BEBR e 198 369
Retirement benefit costs RORAEFIBE AN 171 132
Share-based payment LARR S 2 S B 2 1,119 228
3,933 2,784
The emoluments of the individuals fell within the following bands: NFTHHEEHE 2 AT
Emoluments bands Number of individuals
[t A
2006 2005
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 1 -
2 2
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9002 / G002 Hoday [enuuy

pejwr SBUIPIOH [BUONBUIBIU| BS BS



8. Profit before income tax — Group

Profit before income tax is stated after crediting and charging the

8. MFHEBAINA - AEE

BRPTSBRDEN Dt AR TF8E |

following:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR BT
Restated
Epizdiln
Crediting A
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment WS RS R BRI 690 102
Net exchange gains M 5 W e 5 58 - 4,062
Reversal of provision for impairment losses 1 [0l FE U BR FURE
on trade receivables R - 91
Compensation from landlord for early termination RERIEEERN 2
of lease agreement FEERME 5,500 -
Charging il
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y- HER R REITE 63,880 39,212
Amortisation of leasehold land BN E 401 290
Write-off of property, plant and equipment ERY SNt i 812 925
Write-off of other asset H{th & EMER 120 -
Provision for slow moving inventories and stock shrinkage & 17 & & 18517 S & 17,455 22,803
Provision for impairment losses on trade receivables FEURBR FOR (B s 1R R A 27 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings T REFZELEROES
— minimum lease payments —EBEERK 237,024 182,903
— contingent rent —AEEEH 4,994 3,499
Net exchange losses & 5 B8 558 17,188 -
Fair value losses on forward foreign exchange contracts &= HAINE S 49 2 A F{EEE 262 -
Auditors’ remuneration ZER N & 2,264 1,873

—
(o)}
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9. Income tax expense — Group 9. FISHAX—AKE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT T
Hong Kong profits tax BENSH
Current AEE 31,229 36,862
Under/(over) provision in previous years TERETR (BREREE) 38 (2,114)
Overseas taxation INHIR
Current KEE 4,195 5,205
(Over)/under provision in previous years T (B BETR (1,582) 992
Deferred income tax relating to origination and reversal Lﬁfr SHERERENES
of temporary differences (Note 17) = (M=E17) 3,559 2,615
37,439 43,560
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2005: BEFE ﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁiﬁéﬂL‘M}%%
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on 17.5% (ZZZRF:17.5%) REEE BN
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable AR B A [E A 5T FE ARt M) LA SR A
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in ¥R 2 AT R H -
which the Group operates.
The income tax expense on the Group’s profit before income tax differs RE BB AR PTS BRI 2 FTS B 52 SRR
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of ERARATRMAE 2 BmBiE 2 25|
Hong Kong as follows: T
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT PEMEFIT
Restated
EFiglIN
Profit before income tax BRETS AT A 222,610 245,616
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% EHE17.5% (ZETHF:
(2005: 17.5%) 17.5%) 58 2 BB 38,957 42,983
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries HMER TR R 2 HE (774) (390)
Income not subject to income tax BABMATET 2 WA (6,315) (2,780)
160 Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes A HBRATER 2 2 H 3,117 4,924
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FREARERER BB (1,385) (440)
>
3 § Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised R ERRIEIEFH & E 2 Fi 18 5,383 385
s 2
e Over provision in previous years EFRREAE (1,544) (1,122)
@ ? Income tax expense FTiSHips 37,439 43,560
5



10. Profit for the year, attributable to equity holders of

11.

the Company

Profit for the year, attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$197,423,000 (2005: HK$339,032,000, as restated).

Dividends — Company

Interim, paid — 3.0 HK cents (2005: 3.0 HK cents)

10.

11.

RRBERFBEARGEFARRR

SEARD R B ER 2 AR RS A ARG

FRE M A197,423,0008 7T (Z T T R5F:

339,032,000/ 7T EFFIR) °

,w jgf\i

2006
HK$’000

2005
HK$’000
BT

AEETR

BEIRA A% 2 — = AR3.0 Il

per share (ZZZHF:3.08510) 40,280 39,586
Special, paid — 3.0 HK cents (2005: 3.0 HK cents) B IRFFRIRR B — FAR3.04 1L
per share (ZZ2ZHF:3.0810) 40,280 39,586
Final, proposed — 5.0 HK cents (2005: 5.0 HK cents) FORARAIR S — B A%5.07541L
per share (ZZZHF:5.08510) 67,451 66,235
Special, proposed — 6.0 HK cents (2005: 6.0 HK cents) FORRFRIIR S — B A%6.0751L
per share (ZZ2ZHF:6.0/851) 80,941 79,482
228,952 224,889

12.

At a meeting held on 29th June 2006, the directors declared a final
dividend of 5.0 HK cents and a special dividend of 6.0 HK cents per
share. These proposed dividends are not reflected as dividend payables
in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation

of distributable reserve for the year ending 31st March 2007.

Earnings per share

(@ The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$185,171,000 (2005: HK$202,056,000, as restated).

(b) The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
weighted average of 1,332,919,316 (2005: 1,306,760,549)

shares in issue during the year.

(c) The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
weighted average of 1,332,919,316 (2005: 1,306,760,549)
shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average of
21,410,603 (2005: 30,828,044, as restated) shares deemed to
be issued if all outstanding share options granted under the share

option scheme of the Company had been exercised.

12.

RIBERFRAA-TNARRTZzEHE L&
FEMIRE RIS SRS 0B K RIS
6.0 - i FHURAL B AR A R
HIMERMNIE RN EE—_TTLF=A
=+ — B IEFEIER DIk DB

BREF

@ B ERREERF RIEARDAIE
=B AEEF185,171,000% 7T (=
T TR 202,056,000/ 7T EFFIR)

s
=&
Al

(o) BRZERBFNDIERAFEDEITR
19 2 T 19 $01,332,919,316[% (—Z
T F4F:1,306,760,5490%) 5t & -

© BRZEBERFDEARFEDEITR
192 hnwEF19201,332,919,316[% (==
TR :1,306,760,5490%) + iR AR
BN BB BIE 2 B R1TE
BB BITEMBEIT 2R Z InETE
H#21,410,6083B (ZTTAHF:
30,828,044 % B3I 7R) BRETH

—
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13. Property, plant and equipment — Group 13. VI -HBEFRE-—TEE

Equipment, Motor

Leasehold furniture Assets vehicles

improve- and under £

Investment  Leasehold ments fixtures con- vessel

Property  buildings  HEWE REHE  struction RER Total
REhE HEET L3 REE  HREE . it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  AETT BT AT AETR  AETR BETR

Year ended 31st March 2006 BE-STAESA=t-HLEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 4,600 24173 59,634 30,366 3,762 1,740 124,275
Translation differences ERER - - (90) (17) - 1 (108)
Revaluation Eff 1,400 735 - - - = 2135
Additions RE - - 67,125 23,405 6,576 2,319 99,425
Disposals e - - - 25) - - (25)
Write-off HER - - (364) (448) - - (812)
Reclassification B E - - - 1,000 (1,000) - -
Depreciation bk - (1912)  (43167)  (17,692) - (1,109) (63,880
Closing net book amount EREEFE 6,000 22,996 83,138 36,589 9,338 2,951 161,012
At 31st March 2006 R=FFxE=R=1-H

Cost or valuation REZHE 6,000 24173 255371 122,856 9,338 11,563 429,301
Accumulated depreciation ZihE - (1177)  (172.233)  (86,267) - (8612) (268289
Net book amount FEFE 6,000 22,996 83,138 36,589 9,338 2,951 161,012
At 1st April 2004 R=FFMEMA-A

Cost or valuation [RIES(EE 3,900 24,173 197,306 114,570 2,433 1265 353,737
Accumulated depreciation it - (1921)  (153034)  (93.203) - (8988)  (257,146)
Net book amount A 3,900 22,252 44,362 21,367 2,433 2277 96,591

Year ended 31st March 2005 HE-FERE=A=+-HLERE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 3,900 22,252 44,362 21,367 2,433 2,217 96,591
Translation differences ERER - - 132 3% - - 168
Revaluation Eff 700 2,881 = = = = 3,561
Additions FE = = 39,731 20,429 3762 466 64,388
Disposals i - - (137) (179) - - (316)
Write-off HER - - (127) (798) - - (925)
Reclassffication B E - - - 2,433 (2,433) - -
Depreciation e = (©060)  (4327)  (12.922) = (1,003)  (39.212)
162 3
Closing net book amount FARHFE 4,600 24173 59,634 30,366 3,762 1,740 124,275
9
% g At 31st March 2005 W-¥FEE=A=t+-B
§ g Cost or valuation R fE 4,600 24173 217,67 116,762 3762 11445 877,909
83 Accumulated depreciation ZiheE - - (157533)  (86,396) - (9,705)  (253,634)
g Net book amount EE%E 4,600 24,173 50,634 30,366 3762 1740 124275
3



13. Property, plant and equipment — Group (continued)

Analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

Investment  Leasehold

property
AL
HK$'000
TR

buildings
HEET
HK$'000
ERTR

13. ME-HERRE-AEH @
N EEERBRESGE T T:

Leasehold

improve-
ments
HENE
&g
HK$'000
ERTR

Equipment,

H R

Motor

furniture Assets vehicles

and under £
vessel
RER
fat
HK$'000
EETR

fixtures con-
Total
st
HK$'000
ERTR

struction
fERgE
HK$'000
ERTR

REE
HK$'000
ERTR

As at 31st March 2006 R=FErE=R=1-H
At cost RRfE - - 255371 122,856 9,338 11,563 399,128
At valuation ke 6,000 2,173 - - - - 30,173
6,000 24173 255,371 122,856 9,338 11,563 429,301

As at 31st March 2005 RZZThE=A=1—-H
At cost RRE - - 217,167 116,762 3,762 11,445 349,136
At valuation &IA(E 4,600 24,173 - - - - 28,773
4,600 24,173 217,167 116,762 3,762 11,445 377,909

(@  Theinvestment property and leasehold buildings are situated (@ MREBZREVERBEEEFIHZI0
in Hong Kong and held under medium term leases between 10 ZE0FHEAMEAFE -
to 50 years.

(b)  The investment property was revalued at 31st March 2006 by () BEMHEER-_ZTZF=ZA=1+—H8"
reference to its open market value at 30th September 2005 KBERBEEFTTREMEBERT
determined by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an FEFER-_ZETRAFNA=THZA
independent firm of chartered surveyors. The surplus arising FMEEESG ZIRENEEHRRE
on revaluation of investment property amounted to 1,400,000 7T, (ZZZ R £ :700,0007%
HK$1,400,000 (2005: HK$700,000) and is credited to the 70) - REREERP R
income statement.

() Theleasehold buildings were revalued on the basis of their open ) MHEBFKHBRRITEN_ZZRF
market values at 30th September 2005 by DTZ Debenham Tie NAZTRZARAMEREESM -ZEE
Leung Limited. The surplus arising on revaluation of leasehold IEFEMAAT35,0008 T (ZFTH
buildings amounted to HK$735,000 (2005: HK$2,881,000) and 4F:2,881,000/7T) - RE R RPR
is credited to the income statement. BRo

(d)  The carrying amount of leasehold buildings would have been 0 (WHEEEFZRRERZITESR HiE

HK$19,125,000 (2005: HK$20,901,000) had they been stated

at cost less accumulated depreciation.

EMEE 519,125,000 7T (— BT R4 :
20,901,000/ 7T) °

—
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14. Leasehold land - Group 14, HE L -AER
The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid operating REBREE T o R IETERKEREN
lease payments and their net book value are analysed as follows: P EBREBEATAT:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Restated
iR dlln
At beginning of the year F4 7,527 1,756
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payment BETEARERENR (401) (290)
Reversal of impairment losses BEREEE 10,766 6,061
At end of the year FK 17,892 7,527
The leasehold land are situated in Hong Kong and held under medium IR EE 2 BE T3 TIZ10250F BT A
term leases between 10 to 50 years. BE-
15. Subsidiaries - Company 15. B AR —A&AF
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT PEMEFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ER& IRECANME 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (b)) FEULRT B A 7]z 558 (i (b)) 1,016,031 835,146
Provision for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries FEU B A &) 2 F/I8 2 B R (405,711) (402,227)
610,321 432,920
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (b)) FERTT B A Rz 5538 (FisE()) 97 1,742
(a) Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in @ ARTRZFEMBRAFEHINRTG
Note 29 to the financial statements. HwEM FE29°
(o)  The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured and (o) FEUR (FEAT) M A A 2 5B AEE
interest-free, and have no fixed repayment terms. 5 B R ERE R S



16. Other assets

16. HttEE

Group
FEE

Company

AAF

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR  EETR BMFIR EETR

Rental deposits ek 53,937 46,689 - -
Others Hih 750 870 750 750
54,687 47,559 750 750

HEeRSRABREN T2 AR IZEHKAT
RV -ETRF=A=1+—H Bk 2k
EEEE N TEES.

Rental deposits are carried at amortised cost using an effective interest
rate of 2.4% per annum. At 31st March 2006, the carrying amounts of

rental deposits approximate their fair values.

17. BEFREB — A EH
EIEFTSRHR A B A e Y SR E B =
17.5% (ZZTFHE 17.5%) (E2 B -

17. Deferred income tax — Group
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2005:
17.5%).

BEEFEHAE BB T

The movement on the net deferred income tax assets account is as

follows:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
it b PEMEFIT
At beginning of the year, as previously reported F) AR R 15,780 17,188
Prior period adjustments resulting from the adoption E RN BB SR E 175
of HKAS 17 (Note 2(a)() e 2 BT ER AR (M =E2(a)() (1,213) (1,213)
At beginning of the year, as restated F4 BN 14,567 15,975

BRI PTSTRAE Wan R R

Deferred income tax charged to the income statement

(Note 9) (Ft5E9) (3,559) (2,615)
Reclassification =R - 1,009
Exchange adjustments E I 19 198 165
At end of the year EE 11,027 14,567 &

S Sk | N R A ]
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17. Deferred income tax — Group (continued) 17. BEFRESH —XEE @)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carries forward RAEFTS LA T A FEABRATI ISR s Al i i R
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future PR FEFR T M| A ER T BL P A B8 2 IS IR VERERR -
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred REBREHFIB163,252,0008 T (ZZTZF
income tax assets of HK$36,084,000 (2005: HK$33,850,000) in F4:160,681,000/487T) B] 4% 8 DA 35 K 2R fE
respect of losses amounting to HK$163,252,000 (2005: R T RESRIEIE FT15 74 & EE36,084,0007
HK$160,681,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable T (ZEZTHF:33,850,000%8 L) - HA
income. Losses amounting to HK$18,917,000 (2005: HK$37,830,000) 18,917,000 8 BB (ZETHF:
will expire within 5 years from 31st March 2006. The remaining tax 37,830,000/ 7T) i —ETRF=A=+—
losses have no expiry date. H 6 2 B RE R Bt RIBRT B I A EAR o
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FREEMGEHEERBEZEE) (BE—
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the Bithlm 2 &R EHAT) BT -

year is as follows:

Deferred income Decelerated tax Receipts in
tax assets depreciation Provisions Tax losses advance Total

BEMARAE BERERE 4] Bt A it

2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EBIR ¥t #ABTn Mt ABTR A%t ARTn T ERFR BT

At beginning of year, as £
previously reported NEE5H 3,668 6,524 5,675 5,787 1,484 1,337 6,245 5742 17012 19,390
Prior period adjustments AEFHEEL R

resulting from the adoption 175k M fE ZATE

of HKAS 17 (Note 2(a)() R (EE2()) (550) (550) - - - - - - (550) (550)
At beginning of year, FH

as restated BT 3,118 5974 5,675 5,787 1,484 1,387 6,245 5742 16522 18840
(Charged)/credited to the ERER (k) /

income statement FEHR 782 2,881)  (1,670) (240) 681 126 594 461 387 (2,534)
Exchange adjustments BB 5 AR 15 25 (63) 128 19 21 53 42 24 216
At end of year FE 3915 3118 3,042 5,675 2,184 1,484 6,892 6245 16933 16522
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17. Deferred income tax — Group (continued) 17. EEFBHR —AEE @)

Deferred income Accelerated
tax liabilities tax depreciation Others Total

BEFEHAR IERIETE it e

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000
BT AT BT AT EETn  EETR

At beginning of year, as previously reported 4] AR 25 1,202 1,193 - 1,009 1,202 2,202

Prior period adjustments resulting fomthe ~ EER&EA S HER)

adoption of HKAS 17 FATSRMIEL 2 ATE
(Note 2(a)() % (HE20)) 663 663 - - 663 663
At beginning of year, as restated EH) BFFIR 1,955 1,856 - 1,009 1,955 2,865
Charged to the income statement TEWERING 3,946 81 - - 3,946 81
Reclassffication ENAE - - - (1,009) - (1,009)
Exchange adjustments A% 5 18 - - 5 18
At end of year FR 5,906 1,955 - - 5,906 1,955
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a ERAEENSEBMEHEERR B
legally enforceable right to set off current income tax assets against BB G MIEEMEHP & A — iR
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate BRI IEEFTST B E BRI TS B EE A
to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after g NBE R T eRERaEE
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet: BERATIE:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
it b PEMEFIT
RESEICE
AR
Deferred income tax assets BEFMSREE 16,085 16,034
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHAE (5,058) (1,467)
11,027 14,567

=
(©)]
~l
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18. Inventories — Group 18. FE—FKH
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT
Merchandise stock for resale HEAHEE 285 412,327 416,373
Less: Provision for slowing moving inventories and BRHEEE R
stock shrinkage BiEFE (52,503) (52,689)
359,824 363,684
During the year, the Group has made a provision of HK$17,455,000 FAAEERAFHEFERBREFEES
for slow moving inventories and stock shrinkage (2005: 17,455,000/ 7T (ZZZ H 4 : 22,803,000/
HK$22,803,000). The amount was included in “Cost of sales” in the 7T) B - B BRI AL E W ER [HEK
consolidated income statement. ZNIR

19. Trade and other receivables, deposits and 19. BRI R HMERRIE-ZE KR
prepayments NE/E]
Group Company

F5E FAF
2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BWER AT BMTR BETx

Trade receivables JEUTBR X 22,680 20,727 = =
Less: provision for impairment losses B IR TR 2 B

on trade receivables [EstE R (589) (652) - -
Trade receivables — net FEUER R FRE 22,091 20,075 - -
Other receivables, deposits and HAibERRIE 12e

prepayments SEINECE 43,320 43,923 1,201 2,191
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19. Trade and other receivables, deposits and 19. BRI R EMEKRRE - RERTE

prepayments (continued) TR (3
The Group’s turnover are mainly cash and credit card sales. The ageing REBABHEXBRREREARHEE
analysis of trade receivables is as follows: WERR Z BRER DTN T

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT
Within 1 month 1ER A 20,352 18,228
1 to 3 months 1-31& A 1,639 1,741
Over 3 months HBiE3MEA 100 106
22,091 20,075
The fair values of trade and other receivables, deposits and P BR SR EL A FE U RO iR RFE T RIE 2
prepayments approximate their carrying amounts. AT EREREERE -
Trade receivables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. RED FEUER TR ID A 51 (B o
During the year, the Group has made a provision for impairment losses FAANEBBEWER 2 REBEED
on trade receivables of HK$27,000 (2005: reversal of HK$91,000). 27,000 7T (ZZZ HF:91,000/8 T [0])
The provision/reversal of provision has been included in “other operating HB s BRBELEINAGZERERT Y
expenses” in the consolidated income statement. [Efnc e B -
20. Cash and bank balances 20. RERBITEE

Group Company
AEE AATF
2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BWIR AT BETR BETR

Bank deposits over three months =@ AZREZ
to maturity RITFR 105,018 290,795 77,601 258,777
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFEES 139,224 103,995 2,356 2,099 169
Short-term bank deposits S HASRTT1E 3K 451,454 348,344 216,877 198,347
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EMEEE 590,678 452,339 219,233 200,446 s

]

695,696 743,134 296,834 459,223

S Sk | N R A ]
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20. Cash and bank balances (continued)

21.

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

20. R RBITEFE @
HeRRTEFUTYEEIE:

Group Company
*%H eI

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT  BMTRT  ANMTR BT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 175,825 139,465 2,844 1,443
U.S. dollars =TT 330,476 451,352 293,990 397,422
Euro BT 84,475 71,839 - 55,031
Others Hith 104,920 80,478 - 5,327
695,696 743,134 296,834 459,223

The effective interest rate on bank balances over three months to
maturity was 2.8% (2005: 2.4%); these deposits have an average

maturity of 22 months (2005: 17 months).

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 4.2% (2005:
2.7%); these deposits have an average maturity of 1 month (2005: 1

month).

Trade and bills payables — Group

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables is as follows:

“EABEEZ BT TERMERA28E (=
TETRF 248) ZEFHFHER22EA (=
TTRHRFA7EA) Bl

RHIRITERERMNER4.28 (ZTFRF:
27E) ZEFRFHMER (ZETRF:
118 A7) 2153

21. BHRARRE - A KE
FERERTR R R 2 BRE DT T -

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’'000

AR BT

Within 1 month 1EARA 76,874 56,721
1 to 3 months 1-31@ A 44,925 55,296
Over 3 months B3 1E A 21,188 8,695
142,987 120,712

The fair values of trade and bills payables approximate their carrying

amount.

Trade and bills payables are mainly denominated in U.S. dollars, Hong

Kong dollars and Euro.

ENERARER 2 A FEEERmERS-

REDENRRRRIBTIASET BT RET
FI{Ee



22. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 2. RAFEIANERERZUHBEE

loss

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Group Company
A% eI

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEER  B%TT 0 BEER B%Tr

262 = 202 =

23. Retirement benefit obligations — Group

(@) Retirement benefit obligations

Retirement benefit obligations on

23. BRHRBEAAE - KH
(a) BAEREM

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR BT T

R RESE

— Defined benefit plan (Note (b)) — EREE A& (BT EE()i) 324 344
— Long service payments (Note (b)(iii)) — REARRTS < (B 3E()(ii) 9,735 9,091
10,059 9,435

(b) Retirement benefit costs

(b) EBARBFEA

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR BT
Retirement benefit costs (Note 6) RINEFIFNA (FI5E6)
— Defined contribution plans (Note (i) — EREMHRETE] (BREEG) 19,205 15,458
— Defined benefit plan (Note (ii)) — ERBRE AT (B X)) 184 223
19,389 15,681
— Long service payments (Note (iii)) — REARRTS & (PR 5E(ii) 701 634
20,090 16,315
Gross employer’s contributions s 19,482 16,026
Less: Forfeited contributions utilised to reduce R OS2 R AR AR E &
employer’s contributions for the year NEE 2B FEE (93) (345)

Net employer’s contributions charged to the

consolidated income statement

R E WK AR 2 B
HER 19,389 15,681

—
~
—
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23. Retirement benefit obligations — Group (continued)

(b)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

Notes:

)

(i

Prior to 1st December 2000, certain subsidiaries of the Group in
Hong Kong operated a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
(the “Retirement Scheme”) for the employees in Hong Kong. On
1st December 2000, the Retirement Scheme has been suspended
and replaced by the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) mentioned below. The assets of the Retirement Scheme
are separately controlled and administered by independent trustees.
Employees who contributed to the Retirement Scheme are entitled
to the retirement benefits under this Retirement Scheme as well as
the MPF Scheme.

From 1st December 2000, the subsidiaries of the Group in Hong
Kong elected to contribute to the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement benefit plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the employer
and employees are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries (capped at HK$20,000). Contributions from the
employer equivalent to the contribution as specified at the rules of
the MPF Scheme are 100% vested as soon as they are paid to the
relevant MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from the mandatory
contributions must be preserved until the employee reaches the
retirement age of 65, subject to a few exceptions. As to the
employer’s contribution in excess of the portion vested in the MPF
Scheme the employees are entitled to 100% of it after 10 years of
completed service or at a reduced scale after completion of three
to nine years’ service. The forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contribution.

The defined contribution plans for the employees of the Group in
other countries follow the local statutory requirements of the
respective countries.

A branch of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in Taiwan
participates in a central defined benefit retirement plan (the “Old
Retirement Plan”) providing benefits to all employees in accordance
with the Labor Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group
has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the Old
Retirement Plan to pay the benefits earned. The branch currently
contributes at 2% of the total salaries as determined and approved
by the relevant government authorities. The assets of the Old
Retirement Plan are invested by the Central Trust of China.

The latest actuarial valuation was prepared as at 31st March 2006
by HSBC Life (International) Limited, a qualified actuary, using the
projected unit credit method.

RABANEARE -AEE @
BABREA (@)

(b)

faE:

M

(i

MNZZTZTZF+ =B —HUR AEE
RELFEMBRARZEBREEHETE
BHFORNRAETBI ([FORIRE8I) -
R-ZFZEZF+_F—H ZRIKHE

EEEME TR 2 @HE RS M

K ([afReatEl)) BR-ZR I EIZ
ﬁ?ﬁaﬁiﬁﬁ/\# HAEE BB
RGBS A R Z A IR A E)
Ko RS RT Bl RER

HIZEZETF+ AR FEER
EEBEBHRT (REDFTE]) -8
R EIRTRERESCR AR 8 R
BB EEABIEIERIERFTEI T 8
ITREEOFRESAF A-8ET
RLER) BOZ ARG ET ISR
SEHEIRAFREFRE E PR HI I
RELZ ARG 28VAREER
BREENTAERNFRZE EET
BB R B RIRTS W 1 F 12 7] S
RERBEL|IMIT 28 R
W=ENF RIPNERL PIEHE 508U
ZHFEAEREEE R

REERNEAM B R BRI ERH
FETEIERE 2 A PR E

ARBEET—2EMBARZBEDTT
RIRGE 2 BEEEE (KEFT) 28
R EREFRAG & ([EHEARE
&) RAAREESREERASEN A
SEREERRESRARTEERNE
EXNBETZRAKEBATZOTTIZE
BHEEEzAN 2 —EHERKRE M
UL B 2 LA AERE 2 BT B I E I
B BEHRAGHEIZ BERTRIEFE
PAEITIRE

B ZRBEGER ST F=A=1
—HHAEBNBEMELZ ASRE
(BERR) BRARKA BB ERTE
&



23. Retirement benefit obligations — Group (continued) 23. RURKERAE —FEE @

(b) Retirement benefit costs (continued) (b) BIREBFEA @&
Notes: (continued) Pt (48)
Effective from 1st July 2005, a new retirement plan (the “New B-TTRAFLA—A EHET—
Retirement Plan”) was launched in Taiwan, which is a defined TR IRGT &I (TEUR G S ) - 54518
contribution retirement benefit plan administered by the local AEMWHTER 2 ERRHFERRENGT
government and followed the local statutory requirements. B WEKEE 2 AERE-BEAE
Employee can choose to stay in the Old Retirement Plan or BEARNG A2 EITRIKG S

participate in the New Retirement Plan.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are REREBEBBRERZBRIATH
determined as follows: AETE:
2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

AT BT
Present value of funded obligations EBAYEIRE 1,803 1,635
Fair value of plan assets FTEIEEZ AYE (1,786) (1,612)

17 23

Unrecognised actuarial gains RERBEE W 307 321
Liability in the balance sheet (Note (a)) BEBBRAZEE (@) 324 344
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement iR ENmRERZ FIEMT

were as follows:

HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
Current service cost IR RIFA AR 220 270
Interest cost FEEK A 36 40
Expected return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 TBHAE 3R (47) (47)
Net actuarial gains recognised in the year REERERZBE W= F5E (25) (40)
Total included in employee benefit expenses At GFARERAFAR) 184 223
Movement in the defined benefit retirement plan obligations EiFAEEBBERER ERENRIA
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows: STEIREZ R
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$’'000
AETT BT 173
At beginning of year F4) 344 278 -,
Total expense FIX 4R 184 223 2
Contributions paid B HEHR (193) (183) R
Exchange adjustments & H FAE (11) 26 = g
2 f
At end of year FIE 324 344 : =




—_
~
~

9002 / G002 Hoday [enuuy

pejwr SBUIPIOH [BUONBUIBIU| BS BS
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23. Retirement benefit obligations — Group (continued) 23. RUKERIFAE —FEE wm
(b) Retirement benefit costs (continued) (b) EBARERKLAX (@)

Notes: (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

MaE: ()

PRz TERERRINT:

Discount rate W= 1.80 2.25

Expected rate of return on plan assets FrE|EE 2 TRHEIFR=E 3.00 3.00

Expected rate of future salary increases AR B 2 TBHRSE AN EL = 2.50 2.50
(i)~ The Group’s provision for long service payments are provided based (i) AEBEzRBRGEAEIHEERD

on the actuarial valuation as at 31st March 2006 prepared by HSBC
Life (International) Limited, a qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are

determined as follows:

BHMES ASRR (HK) ARAR
ATRRT B RADEETT 2R —TTRF
=ZR=t—RZEELEEE R

RiFEBEBBERERZFRILA T

AEE:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT BT

Present value of unfunded obligations REBAERE 3,568 7,182
Unrecognised actuarial gains RERBEE RS 6,167 1,909
Liability in balance sheet (Note (a)) BEBBERAZEE (MiFE) 9,735 9,091

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement

were as follows:

2005

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BETT BT T

Current service cost BA RIEA A 588 443
Interest cost F B AR A 286 253
Net actuarial gains recognised in the year REERERZBE W= F5 (173) 62)
Total included in employee benefit expenses &t GtAEERAIFR) 701 634




23. Retirement benefit obligations — Group (continued) 23. RURKERAE —FEE @

(b) Retirement benefit costs (continued) (b) BAREFRARR (@)
Notes: (continued) Bt (48)
Movement in the provision for long service payments obligations iR BEEBBERERZ RIARG &
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows: E BB
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
AT ok
At beginning of year F1) 9,091 8,676
Total expense EEE e 701 634
Contributions paid B HR (62) (222)
Exchange adjustments b 3 2 5 3
At end of year FIK 9,735 9,091
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: kA F2RERERNT:

Discount rate Bk B 4.50 4.00
Expected rate of future salary increases R PR B < TE AR Ntk == 2.00 toZE 3.00 2.00 toZ 3.00
24. Share capital 24. R7

No. of shares HK$’000

RHHE BT

Authorised shares of HK$0.1 each EESREE0. BT ZRG

At 31st March 2005 and 2006 R-ZZBZRFR
—ETRF=A=+—H 8,000,000,000 800,000

—
~
o

S Sk | N R A ]
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24. Share capital (continued)

24, BB )

No. of shares HK$’000
KR BT T
Issued and fully paid shares of ERTRAEESREE
HK$0.1 each 0.1 T Z B %
At 1st April 2004 RZZEZENFMA—H 1,293,064,172 129,306
Issue of shares upon exercise of LT AR T 31T 2 AR (D
share options (@) 30,424,187 3,043
At 31st March 2005 and 1st April 2005
1,323,488,359 132,349
Issue of shares upon exercise of LITE R EIT 2 AR D
share options () 23,624,372 2,362
At 31st March 2006 R-FERE=A=1+—H 1,347,112,731 134,711

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options

During the year, a total of 23,624,372 (2005: 30,424,187) shares were
issued to a director, certain staff members and the Ex-director of the
Company pursuant to the exercises of share options under the 1997
Share Option Scheme, the 2002 Share Option Scheme and the Service
Agreement respectively. The proceeds of the issues totalling
HK$33,695,000 (2005: HK$42,065,000) included share premium
amounted to HK$31,333,000 (2005: HK$39,022,000) and the amount
was taken to the share premium account.

Share options

The movements in the number of share options granted, exercised and
lapsed pursuant to the 1997 Share Option Scheme, the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and the Service Agreement during the year are as follows:

BaE:

(a)

(b)

1997

Share Option
Scheme (i)
—hhtE

FERRAERT ()

RITEEREmETZRG

RERARE) D BIRE— N NAFERERT
B — T - FRERE S RRBIHEMITE
Z BN AE 1T 08,624,372/ (ZET R
30,424,187 ki T—HEF - ETREER
AMER -ZERITEERERTZRNDRE
33,695,000/ 7T (ZZZ F4F 142,065,000/
JT) » H 31,333,000 7T (ZBEHE:
39,022,000/ 7T) AN EE - W E B AR
wEEZAe

B
RER RE-NNEFREETS —FF—

R BIRE R HRR T EREMZ
BB 2B T

Number of share options

fERRERE

2002

Share Option
Scheme (ii)
ot = b 3
R R AT 81 (ii)

Service
Agreement with
Ex-director (iii)
SREE

Z BRF ek iii)

As at 1st April 2005 R-ZZFZRFMA—H 7,823,520 71,472,478 5,518,587

Add: Share options granted during N RF AR 2 BEARAE - = -
the year

Less: Share options exercised during  J& : I 7T 2 BE AR A (7,243,520) (15,880,852) (500,000)
the year

Less: Share options lapsed during A AR B IR - (6,653,605) =
the year

As at 31 March 2006 R-FEREF=A=1+—H 580,000 48,938,021 5,013,587




24. Share capital (continued)

24. B2 ;)
(i) 1997 Share Option Scheme i

() —NALFBERETE
RER ARBMRE— NN FEERET
R TRERERS MR _TTRF=A
=t —RERITEZBEREF BN T:

Details of the share options which were granted to the eligible

employees under the 1997 Share Option Scheme and remained

outstanding as at 31st March 2006 are as follows:

Number of Share Options
ERiENE
Granted  Exercised *Lapsed

Subscription Beginning of during during during End of

Date of grant price per share Exercisable period the year the year the year the year the year

Riti B BRRGIEE TfEH F REARE REAETE REAKY FIR

(HKS)
(%)

9th September 1997 2.01 9th September 1998 to 280,000 - (280,000) - -
—hNEENANR 8th September 2007
“NMAERRNEBE
“EZLENANR

9th September 1997 1.90 9th September 1998 to 614,000 - (34,000) - 580,000
—hNEENANR 8th September 2007
“NMANERRNEBZE
“EZLENANR

4th June 2001 0.68 4th June 2004 to 138,235 = (138,235) - -
—ZZ-FANA 3rd June 2011
“ZTMERANEE
—Z—4%XA=A

24th April 2002 0.80 24th April 2004 to 6,791,285 - (6,791,289 - -

—ZZ_EMA-TIA 23rd April 2012 .
“EEMENA-TMAZE
—F-—#MA=1=H :
7,823,520 - (7,243520) - 580,000

# There is no share option cancelled during the year.

the first date shown here is the earliest exercisable date.

There are different exercisable periods for these share options and

# FR W MAB AR T

* SRR TRMTTEE AR S

52 AAREZITERE

o

—
~
~

S Sk A |\ R 3 |1
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24, R ()

“EETCFBRESTE

RER RATRIRE - 2T — FRaREsT
LETEERSEE MR ST F=
R=1t—BmR1TE R IBIN T

24. Share capital (continued)

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (i)
Details of the share options which were granted to the eligible
Participants under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and remained

outstanding as at 31st March 2006 are as follows:

Number of Share Options
fERiEYE

Granted Exercised

during

*Lapsed
End of
the year the year

RERKY 3

Subscription Beginning of during during

the year

REMRH

the year

REMETE

Date of grant
BHAH

price per share
BRRGEER
(HK$)

Exercisable period the year

fTiEm =2

=
~
(0¢]
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Bth January 2003 0.77 6th January 2005 to 500,000 - (500,000) - -
ZZT=F-A5A 5th January 2013
“ZZRE-RAAZE
—Z-=F—-HAA

1st September 2003 1.81 note (1) 266,666 - (80,000) (63,333) 133,333
ZZT=FNA-A PzE(1)

2nd October 2003 1.88 note (2) 666,666 - - - 666,666
= =] HiEEQ)

30th October 2003 1.68 note (3) 60,339,260 - (12984,862)  (5,805,049) 41,549,359
“EZ=£1A=1H PiFE(3)

4th December 2003 1.90 note (4) 4,000,000 - (1,650,000) (350,000) 2,000,000
“ZZ=£T-AWA iz (4)

2nd January 2004 2.25 2nd January 2005 to 500,000 — (500,000) = =
“TTME —-AZH 1st January 2014
“ZTHF -AZHE
—E-mE—-A—H

20th January 2004 2.80 note (5) 200,000 - - (32,667) 167,333
“ZZME -AZTH ffizE(5)

1st March 2004 2.85 note (6) 550,000 - (166,000) (17,334) 366,666
—ZTNE=A—AH ffizE(6)



24. Share capital (continued)

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Subscription
Date of grant
BB

price per share
BRRGEER
(HKS)

Exercisable period

fTiEm

Beginning of
the year

2

24, BB )
iy =B -_FEREREE @

Number of Share Options

RRENE

Granted Exercised

during during

the year the year

REMRH RERETE

"Lapsed
during

the year

REMKY

End of
the year

3

3rd March 2004 2.78 note (7) 1,000,000 - - (31,334) 968,666
“ZTNE=A=H iz (7)
29th June 2004 3.00 29th June 2005 to 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
“EEMERAZTH 28th June 2014
“ZEREAZTNAZE
—“E-WERA=TAH
2nd August 2004 3.12 note (8) 488,888 - - (24,222) 464,666
“ZZME\AZH izE(8)
30th November 2004 3.90 note (9) 300,000 - - (300,000) -
“ETMET-A=1H PiFE(O)
1st December 2004 3.85 note (10) 1,294,332 - - (39,666) 1,254,666
“ZZMET-A-H MizE(10)
22nd December 2004 415 note (11) 366,666 - - - 366,666
“EENE+-_A=1=H BFEE(1)
71,472,478 - (15,880,862) (6,653,605) 48,938,021

# There is no share option cancelled during the year.

# FAWEBRREREE-

—
~
©

S Sk | N R A ]
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24. Share capital (continued)

(ii)

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

M

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance
targets that must be achieved by the employee. All these share
options shall be exercised by the employee not later than 31st
August 2013.

The exercise of the share options is subject to certain performance
targets that must be achieved by the employee. All these share
options shall be exercised by the employee not later than 1st
October 2013.

Among these 60,339,260 share options, 37,867,164* are
exercisable from 30th October 2004 and 22,472,096 are subject
to certain performance targets that must be achieved by the
employees. All these share options shall be exercised by the
employees not later than 29th October 2013.

Among these 4,000,000 share options, 2,000,000 are exercisable
from 1st December 2004 and 2,000,000 are subject to certain
performance targets that must be achieved by the employee. All
these share options shall be exercised by the employee not later
than 3rd December 2013.

Among these 200,000 share options, 66,666 shall be exercisable
from 20th January 2007 and 133,334 are subject to certain
performance targets that must be achieved by the employee. All
these share options shall be exercised by the employee not later
than 19th January 2014.

Among these 550,000 share options, 183,333 shall be exercisable
from 14th January 2007 and 366,667 are subject to certain
performance targets that must be achieved by the employee. All
these share options shall be exercised by the employee not later
than 28th February 2014.

Among these 1,000,000 share options, 333,333 shall be exercisable
from 5th July 2007 and 666,667 are subject to certain performance
targets that must be achieved by the employee. All these share
options shall be exercised by the employee not later than 2nd March
2014.

Among these 488,888 share options, 183,333 shall be exercisable
from 28th July 2007 and 305,555 are subject to certain performance
targets that must be achieved by the employee. All these share
options shall be exercised by the employee not later than 1st August
2014,

24, BBR )
—ESCFBRRENE @

(ii)

E2

)

BEW

S BERIETRBERTTAER
TR AR ETER =

E—=F\A=+—Hf7E-

EENERETETRBREESFEER
TEERE A BRENATEN
T—=F+A—H1TE-

RUt%60,339,260ES &
37,867,164 R -TTMF+A=1
AHERATATT{E - $322,472,0960% - AR
EL;\J%ﬂFiiﬁ?aMﬂ“ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ
FoFTABRIELETEN _T—=F
TRAZt+hBTE

MUE%4,000,000 BRER - F
2,000,000 =T ZFMF+=A— H

#B A LAFT{E - 552,000,0008%  BIiAME B
ERETRBEERA KFEEBITE
FIEBREVETENR T —=F1+=
A=Rf7{k-

1 5200,0000 A& #E 7 - 566,666/
BT F—- A=+ HEA AT
5133,334% AIpME B 3E DA TREBHE
BT RFEEBITE -FTABRIELEA
RN -_Z—MNE— A+ NBITfE.

1 5550,00088 Ak #E - 5 183,333%
H-ETLF—A+MBRBAIATTE"
5366,6671% AIlpME S 3E DA TREE
BT RFEEBITE -FTABRIELEA
TERZZ—MNE- A=+ N\HITE-

A E%1,000,0008 A% £ - 5333,333
BEH=ZFTFEAABERAITE:
666,667 AR E S ERIE TRIE
R A BIRITIE AT AR %A
TEN-_ZT—F=A ZHT{E-

It 55488,888 4 ik #EH - 5183,333%
BT +FL A N\BEAITT
£+ 55305,6550% " AlpME B ERE Tk
iﬁ%‘a?—"ﬁ%z‘ﬁé\ﬁﬁﬁﬁvFﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂx@é
WEBTNER=Z—MFENA—BITE



24. Share capital (continued)

(i)

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) (ii)

Notes: (continued)

(99  Among these 300,000 share options, 100,000 shall be exercisable
from 25th October 2007 and 200,000 are subject to certain
performance targets that must be achieved by the employee. All
these share options shall be exercised by the employee not later
than 29th November 2014.

(10) Among these 1,294,332 share options, 1,019,333 are exercisable
from 2nd December 2004 and 274,999 are subject to certain
performance targets that must be achieved by the employees. All
these share options shall be exercised by the employees not later
than 30th November 2014.

(11)  Among these 366,666 share options, 183,333 shall be exercisable
from 22nd December 2007 and 183,333 are subject to certain
performance targets that must be achieved by the employee. All
these share options shall be exercised by the employee not later
than 21st December 2014.

There are different exercisable periods for these share options and
the first date shown in this paragraph is the earliest exercisable
date.

Fair values of share options, measured at the grant date of the
options, are estimated using a binomial lattice methodology that
is based on the underlying assumptions of one of the commonly
used employee share option pricing models. No option was
granted during the year ended 31st March 2006. The fair value
of options granted during the year ended 31st March 2005 was
HK$3,134,000. The significant inputs into the share option pricing

model were as follows:

24, BB )

“EZERERETE @
MaE: ()

©) M UELEE300,0008E fAE R - 75 100,000%
H-ZTT+HF+A-+ABRAUT
£+ 55200,0000% ' AIpAME BZRIE T &
ISR A A BRI TE AT AR E
WETNEBR-Z—MF+—A=+hH
1M

(10)  FAEE1,294,33288R% A - 51,019,333
=TT F+ = A =B AT
5 5274,9900% AR EEEFETE
WIEIER A & BI8TT(E - Fra RE AR
WETNER=-ZE—NF+—A=+H1T
fo

(1) RULE5366,6660E ftE+ - 75 183,333 %
AT EF+ A+ BRI
¥+ 5183,3330% ' AIpAME B:ZRIE T &
WIBIER A A BRI TEFTA AR E
WEMER=ZT—NF+=-A=+—H
1M

* UL LR AR TRMITE L MARE
52 AEARFZITRA .

TR RS D A AR 2 BIRIE A 1B
B REMETE T EZEE AR —(E
ERNEBBREGERXNER RS-
HE-ZTRF=-A=+—HALFEL
ERLERENEE_TTRFE=A=
THIEFERL BRENDTEEB
#33,134,000/ T o sz B IR i fh E AR TP
Az EHHEMT:

Share price — HK$0.76 to 4.15 Being the share price on the grant date ranging from 6th January 2003 to

B 0.76% 22nd December 2004

4158 7T BRI M - 2= - ARNAE_TTNF+ - A -+ A HH

HRRER

Exercise price = HK$0.77 to 4.15 Being the exercise price ranging from 6th January 2003 to 22nd December

1158 0.77% 2004

4155871 B R E R I — TS =F— ANHE_ZTNF+-_A -+ _—HHH

AT E

Risk free rate — 3.59% 10 4.70% Being the approximate yields of 10-year exchange fund notes issued by the

B B I = government

BRI s AAEE T FHIMNER S RENS2Z AR

—

S Sk | N R A ]
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24. Share capital (continued) 24, BR7R @)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) =SS -FERETE @
Expected volatility — 45% Being the annualized volatility of historical share price of the Company from
TEHARE IR 1st April 2000 (approximately 3 years after the initial public offer) to 31st March
2005

BIARRBAER —TERFNA—B (LTEN=F) E-FTRF=A=1+—H
FIBREE AT E 2 FERE

Expected dividend yield — 4% Being the prospective dividend yield of shares of the Company

TREAMR B BVAR AR 2 FEEIR B &
The model is only one of the commonly used models to estimate the ZIEAERAHEEBRIEGESNER
fair value of the employee share options. The value of an option varies BAz— - BERENEESRA TN
with different assumptions. Any changes of the assumptions may affect B N N4 D2 it 4= ol rayi=
the estimation. HawmmRre.
(i) Share Options under the Ex-director’s Service Agreement (i) ATEEIRE MR R

Number of Share Options

RRENE

Granted Exercised *Lapsed
Subscription Beginning of during during during End of

Date of grant price per share Exercisable period the year the year the year the year the year
BEEY SRkHIEE friEss ) RERBE RERETE REAXY £k
(HKS)

14th September 1999 to 0.928 14th September 1999 to 5,513,587 - (500,000) - 5,013,587
9th May 2002 2nd February 2007

—NANENATRAZ —NANENATRAZ
“ZZ-F£RANA “ZRLE-A-H

# There is no share option cancelled during the year. # FRI MR T8
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25. Reserves
(@) Group

At 1st April 2005,

R-ZEZTRFMNA—HR

Share
premium
i E
HK$'000

BRTR

25. f#fE
(a) AKHE

Employee

share-based

Capital
redemption

com-  Exchange

pensation fluctuation
reserve reserve reserve
BEXBE DRHXHS  SMERY
fiE EEWSRE fktE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETR EETT EETR

Retained

earnings
X ol
HK$'000

BRI

Total
4@t
HK$'000
ERTR

as previously reported UG 2 692,269 11,783 - (25815) 100673 778910
Prior period adjustments resulting &4 R 71| &3
from the adoption of: {EiH Z AT R
HKAS 17 (Note 2(a) EBEENE1TH
(Ki5E2(a) - - - - (1,213) (1,213)
HKFRS 2 (Note 2(a)) BB REER
F25% (Fi5E2(e) - - 19,769 - (19,769) -
At 1st April 2005, RZZEZTRENA—R:
as restated EoiIhN 692,269 11,783 19,769 (25,815) 79,691 777,697
Translation differences recognised B ERERTER
directly in equity fE % =5 - - - 266 - 266
Profit for the year FEEH - - - - 185,171 185,171
Total recognised income REZEZZSRF=A
for the year ended =+ HEFARER
31st March 2006 LNt = - - 266 185,171 185,437
Employee share option scheme: (B8 Bk IEE]:
(Note 2(a)(i) (BitzE2(2)1ii)
Value of employee services EERBERE = - 11,268 - - 11,268
Proceeds from shares issued IR EREmE T
upon exercise of options B1n 2 FriksoE
(Note 24(a)) (Ki5E24(a) 31,333 - - - - 31,333
Transfer of reserve upon fIfEREREn
exercise of options ERHE 8,304 - (8,304) - - -
2004/2005 TN/ ZFTRE
Final and Special dividends paid ~ EiRAE R IERIFRSE - - - - (146,059)  (146,059)
2005/2006 —TTH/ZTTRAE
Interim dividend paid BRI E - - - - (40,280) (40,280)
2005/2006 TR/ ZFTNE
Special dividend paid EIRERIRE - - - - (40,280) (40,280)
39,637 - 2,964 - (226619)  (184,018)
At 31st March 2006 RZBEXE=A=1+—H 731,906 11,783 22,733 (25,549) 38,243 779,116
Representing: BRI
Reserves i 630,724
Proposed dividends RS 148,392
At 31st March 2006 R=BBAF=A=t+-H 779,116

—
(03]
W
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25. Reserves (continued) 25. %% @
(@) Group (continued) (@) A&EE @

Restated
BN
Employee
share-based

Capital com-  Exchange

redemption  pensation fluctuation
Share reserve reserve reserve Retained
premium EAMEE DRHXA  SHEKE  earnings Total
i E fis EEWSRE fiE  EERR @t
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT A%t BT BETr  BETR EETR

At 1st April 2004, RZZEEWEFNA—R:
as previously reported WA 25 653,247 11,783 - (25,398) 80,646 720,278
Prior period adjustments resulting &4 R 71| &3
from the adoption of: {EiH Z AT R
HKAS 17 (Note 2(a)) ARG EREITH
(KHiz¥2() - - - - (1,213) (1,213)
HKFRS 2 (Note 2(a)) BB REER
E25% (Ft¥2() - = 5,218 = (5,218) =
At 1st April 2004, RZZEZTWEFNA—R:
as restated EoiIhN 653,247 11,783 5,218 (25,398) 74,215 719,065

Translation differences recognised B ERETER

directly in equity ERER - - - 417) - 417)
Profit for the year FERF - - - = 202,056 202,056
Total recognised income REZE-ZTHF=A

for the year ended =+—HIEFARER

31st March 2005 oN- - - - 417) 202056 201,639

Employee share option scheme: (B8 BEkIEE):

(Note 2(a)(i) (BitzE2(2)1ii))
Value of employee services EERBERE - - 14,551 - - 14,551
Proceeds from shares issued IR EREmE T
upon exercise of options B1n 2 FriksoE
(Note 24(a)) (Ki5E24(a)) 39,022 - - - - 39,022
2003/2004 —TT=/-TTNSE
Final and Special dividends paid B iRARE R ERIBRS - - - - (117,408)  (117,408)
2004/2005 TN/ ZFTRE
Interim dividend paid BIERERS. - - - - (39586)  (39,586)
2004/2005 TN/ ZTTHE
Special dividend paid BRI - - - - (39,586) (39,586)
184 39,022 = 14,551 = (196,580)  (143,007)
%_’ ﬁ At 31st March 2005 RZZETRF=A=1+—H 692,269 11,783 19,769 (25,815) 79,691 777,697
g3 Representing: RN T
n o
% % Reserves Rt 631,980
ss Proposed dividends BRAR 2 145,717
5
g At 31st March 2005 R-ZZRF=A=1—H 777,697




25. Reserves (continued)

(b)

Company

At 1st April 2005,

R-ZZRFNA—R-

Share
premium
bR
HK$'000
BETR

25, %% @
(b) EATF

Employee

Capital share-based
redemption compensation
reserve reserve
EAEE  LRGHXA
s (EENSRME
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT EBTR

Retained

earnings
ey ol
HK$'000
ERTT

Total
@t
HK$'000
BETR

as previously reported A2 692,269 11,783 - 56,255 760,307
Prior period adjustments resulting from R R AEE B RE
the adoption of HKFRS 2 ERIE2HR ML 2
(Note 2(a) AR (i) - - 19,769 (19,769) -
At 1 April 2005, RZZTRENA—R:
as restated EFFIT 692,269 11,783 19,769 36,486 760,307
Profit for the year FEER - - - 197,423 197,423
Employee share option scheme: BB RT3
(Note 2(a)(ii) (BitzE2(a)1ii))
Value of employee services EERBEE - - 11,268 - 11,268
Proceeds from shares issued IEEREmET
upon exercise of options B1n 2 Friksog
(Note 24(a)) (HzE24(a)) 31,333 - - - 31,333
Transfer of reserve upon fIfERERREm
exercise of options ERHE 8,304 - (8,304) - -
2004/2005 TN/ ZTTHE
Final and Special dividends paid EIRARS KRR - - - (146,059) (146,059)
2005/2006 —TTH/ZTTRAE
Interim dividend paid BIERERS. - - - (40,280) (40,280)
2005/2006 —ZTH/ZFTAE
Special dividend paid EIRERIRE - - - (40,280) (40,280)
39,637 - 2,964 (026619)  (184,018)
At 31st March 2006 REBERFZAZt- 731,906 11,783 22,733 7,290 773,712
Representing: BRI
Reserves Rt 625,320
Proposed dividends Bk S 148,392
At 31st March 2006 RZEEAE=A=1-H 773,712
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25. %% @
(b) AAT @

25. Reserves (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

Restated
B3R
Employee (Accumulated
losses)/
retained

Capital share-based
redemption compensation
Share reserve

A4RE

reserve
WX
EEMEHE
HK$'000
ERTT

earnings

(RetistE) / Total
ey ol @it
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT BB

premium

RiritfE 1

GLEY
BETR

HK$'000
BETR
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At 1st April 2004,

R=ZEZMEEA—H-

as previously reported A2 653,247 11,783 - (100,748) 564,282
Prior period adjustments resulting from R R AE B RE
the adoption of HKFRS 2 LR MEL 2
(Note 2(a)) BUERZAZE (Pf3E2(a) - - 5,218 (5,218) -
At 1 April 2004, RZTTMENA—H:
as restated B 653,247 11,783 5,218 (105,966) 564,282
Profit for the year FEEH - - - 339,032 339,032
Employee share option scheme: EE RRiER 2
(Note 2(a)(i) (BitzE2(2)1ii))
Value of employee services EERBERE - - 14,551 - 14,551
Proceeds from shares issued IEEREmE T
upon exercise of options B1n 2 Friisos
(Note 24(a) (HzE24(a) 39,022 - - - 39,00
2003/2004 T /2T
Final and Special dividends paid EIRARE RIS - - - (117,408) (117,408)
2004/2005 TN/ ZTTHE
Interim dividend paid BIERERS. - - - (39,586) (39,586)
2004/2005 TN/ ZFTRE
Special dividend paid BRI - - - (39,586) (39,586)
39,00 - 14,551 (196,580)  (143,007)
At 31st March 2005 RZEZRF=A=1+—H 692,269 11,783 19,769 36,486 760,307
Representing: FEFR NS
Reserves i 614,590
Proposed dividends RS 145,717
At 31st March 2005 R-_ETRE=A=1—H 760,307




26. Consolidated cash flows statement 26. IEHERERX

(@) Cash generated from operations (a) REXEBELZES
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR BT
Restated
Epipdiln
Profit for the year F A 185,171 202,056
Adjustments for: B RZIEE FAR:
— Income tax expense —FERiAX 37,439 43,560
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — W SRR ETE 63,880 39,212
— Amortisation of leasehold land — B HRE T 401 290
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and —HEME KRR
equipment A A (690) (102)
— Write-off of property, plant and equipment — W3 RS R R AR 812 925
— Write-off of other assets — H i EMAR 120 -
— Fair value losses on forward foreign exchange —RENBEH 2
contracts NHEEE 262 -
— Share-based payment — AR TR 11,268 14,551
— Interest income —FEMA (17,518) (12,357)
— Fair value changes on investment property —REMEREFZ
and buildings NEEEE) (2,135) (3,581)
— Reversal of impairment losses on —HETH 2 RE
leasehold land EE R R (10,766) (6,061)
Changes in working capital EEESHE 268,244 278,493
— Inventories —FE 3,860 (101,532)
— Trade receivables — FEUAR X (2,016) (4,422)
— Other receivables, deposits — H i IR e
and prepayments &EINE S (6,700) (14,308)
— Trade and bills payable —ERERFRER 22,275 48,125
— Other payables and accrued charges —HEfbE R FIE R ERT B R (13,133) 15,790
— Receipts in advance —TEUMEIE 19,807 17,160
— Retirement benefit obligations —RIRERIESE 624 481
Cash generated from operations KEEBEEZRE 292,961 239,787

=
0]
~l
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26. Consolidated cash flows statement (continued) 26. MERERER @
(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of property, (b) RESREBRRN HEWHE HBRZE
plant and equipment comprise: FERIEEE:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR BT
Net book amount (Note 13) BREFE (Mi7E13) 25 316
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE YIS H2E I i& T 690 102
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYIE AR
plant and equipment PTG IR 715 418
27. Commitments - Group 27. A —FKEH
(a) Capital commitments in respect of acquisition of property, plant (a) HBEVE BBERI[EZIEREE:

and equipment:

2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
AT BT
Contracted but not provided for EENERIELERE 14,485 11,783
Authorised but not contracted for BRUEEREL 74,906 -
89,391 11,783
The amount of capital commitments authorised but not EHLEBREFL) 2 B FIERIE  FHE R
contracted for represents the Group’s estimated capital AEERBEESHE FETBEE
expenditure based on the annual budget approved by directors. T2 BN
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) AEEHNRE
As at 31st March 2006, the Group had total future aggregate RZEERNF=ZA=+—H AEERE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases T L EHEMBRAREZ N2
as follows: SERENTBENT:
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Land and buildings T RiEF
Within one year —FR 248,811 193,042
In the second to fifth year E_FEFRF
inclusive (BHEEEMF) 257,610 276,389
After the fifth year hEE 524 1,000

506,945 470,431




27. Commitments — Group (continued)

28.

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency contracts

In connection with the Group’s requirements for purchases, the
Group and the Company entered into agreements for forward
purchases of foreign currencies. At 31st March 2006, the total
outstanding foreign exchange contracts with banks amounted
to HK$8,000,000 (2005: HK$137,136,000) for the Group,
pursuant to which, the Group has, subject to certain conditions,
committed to purchase Euro 819,000 at an average exchange
rate to U.S. dollars of 1.2588 in the coming year. The exchange
rate for one Euro to U.S. dollars at 31st March 2006 was 1.2109.
All the above mentioned foreign exchange contracts are fully

materialised.

At 31st March 2006 and 2005, the Group has committed to
contribute an additional amount of HK$19,230,000 as registered
capital to Sa Sa Cosmetic (China) Company Limited, a subsidiary

incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.

Related party transactions

Key management personnel compensation:

27. RIE—AEE @)

(c)

(d)

28. BE

HMEER

HRAEEZBERR AEERADT
BEF] THERPINEE L R TN
FZA=+—R AEERRITHEEmA
TEZINEENBHREANEESET
(ZETRF—RE=Fta—T=BX
FAT) BIEZZ ALK REE AR
[ R AR R LA TSR T BT
fER1.2588 B\ +— BN TEIT-R
ZEERF=A=tT—RB =R BT
[E&/1.2109 - LIllFTAINESLI9E
2HEE-

REBERFR_TERF=RA="+—
B AEEFAEEMNME-ThE=+=
BRI AT MAE AR REARLMBEK
2 MBAR CGHHMbbtm (R E) AR

ACE

2005

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Directors’ fees 550 1,032 914
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other allowances  HA# % - EE 28

and benefits in kind HADRRE & B & 19,297 18,677

Discretionary bonuses ISR 2 B 2,149 2,350

Retirement benefit costs RIRAEFI B AR 1,292 1,157

Share-based payment DA A Y32 2,483 3,507

Compensation for loss of office BEREE 108 -

26,361 26,605

—
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29. Principal subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March 2006:

Alibaster Management Limited

Base Sun Investment Limited

BRKREERAR

Cyber Colors Limited

Docile Company Limited

Gig Limited

Hong Kong Sa Sa
(M) Sdn. Bhd.

Lea Limited

Matford Trading Limited

XRESHBRAR

Sa Sa Beauty Plus
(Light Therapy)
Company Limited

Place of
incorporation

= sthEs

British Virgin Islands

REBRAEHE

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands

RERZEE

British Virgin Islands

KBRS

Samoa
=3

Malaysia
BRAL

Samoa
D

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

20. TEMBE AT

Principal activities
and place of
operation (if different
from place of

incorporation)
EEEHREEME,
(4n MBS AR )

Trading and retailing of
cosmetic and skin care
products in Taiwan

RNEEEBERTE M

M=

Property holding
EST=RUE

Holding of trademarks
in Hong Kong
REBRABER

Holding of trademarks
in Hong Kong
REBRA R

Holding of trademarks
in Hong Kong
REBRABE

Trading and retailing of
cosmetic and skin
care products
BEERTE o m LEE M

Holding of trademarks
in Hong Kong
REBRABE

Property holding
ESTEEZIES

Provision of beauty
services

REEB RS

N-ZTET

N—==

Particulars
of issued share
capital/paid up

share capital
BT

B BRBEE
Ordinary
US$6,880,000
AR

6,880,000%7T

Ordinary HK$100
Deferred HK$2
EBAR1007 7T

RIERR2ETT

Ordinary US$1
TEAk1ZET

Ordinary US$2
TmAR2ETT

Ordinary US$1
L@k 1ZET

Ordinary
RM20,000,000
ERER
20,000,0005 #&

Ordinary US$1
TEAR1ZET

Ordinary HK$100
Deferred HK$6
T3mAR 10074 7T

RIERRGETT

Ordinary HK$2

EE2ETT

AEZA=+—BEEWBAT:

Indirect
interest held
EEFR
2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



29. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorporation

=t sthEs

20. TEMB AT @)

Principal activities
and place of
operation (if different

from place of
incorporation)
EEEHREEME,
(4nEd MBS ARE)

Particulars
of issued share
capital/paid up

share capital
BT
2. Fed 2 S

Sa Sa Cosmetic
Company Limited
B EEmBRAT

Sa Sa Cosmetic Co. (S)
Pte Limited

Sa Sa dot Com Limited

Sa Sa Investment Limited

HIPREBRAT

Sa Sa Property Limited
P HERR AR

Sa Sa Cosmetic (China)
Company Limited (i)

B HE R ()
HERAF)

Suisse Programme Limited

Hong Kong
BB

Singapore

FAE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

People’s Republic
of China
HREE A RFAAE

Gibraltar
BHMm#ER

Retailing and Ordinary HK$100

wholesaling of cosmetic Deferred HK$2

and skin care products L AR10078 7T
and the provision of EIERR2AE T
beauty services
TE KA B o K& S
AR AR =R AR
Trading and retailing Ordinary
of cosmetic and S$$19,500,000
skin care products T3 A%19,500,000
BERTE(HEmREEm AN T
E-commerce Ordinary
HAEmE HK$1,000,000
B
1,000,000/ 7T
Property holding Ordinary HK$100

ESE=RUE Deferred HK$2
EBAY1007 7T

FEIEAR 2T

Property holding Ordinary HK$100
ESE=RUE LA 10078 7T

Trading and retailing of HK$30,770,000

cosmetic and skin 30,770,000/ 7T
care products

BEERTE(CH R REE M

Holding of trademarks Ordinary
in Hong Kong Gibraltar £100
REBRARBE E3@A100

B

Indirect
interest held
EEFR
2R

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

—
O
—
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29. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

20. TEMB AT @)

Principal activities

and place of Particulars
operation (if different of issued share
from place of capital/paid up Indirect
Place of incorporation) share capital interest held
incorporation ETEEBREEME, 3T EERT
Rl R, (4nEd M E5AR ) B BRBE d 5
Vance Trading Limited Hong Kong Property holding Ordinary 100%
KRESAERAA B ESTEEZES HK$400,100
Deferred
HK$1,600,000
& i8A%400,100757T
FEFENZ 1,600,000/ 7T
Lisbeth Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Provision of beauty and Ordinary 100%
BB health club services HK$120,000
RUEBRBEERORE  Ei@Ak120,000%7T
Phillip Wain International Singapore Provision of beauty and Ordinary 100%
(Singapore) Pte Limited EoAIIES health club services S$100,000
TRt A R EF O IR T3/ A% 100,000
AN TT
Phillip Wain (M) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Provision of beauty and Ordinary 100%
HRPE health club services RM300,000
RUERREERORE  E#AR300,0005%
Phillip Wain (Thailand) Limited Thailand Provision of beauty and Ordinary 100%
=H health club services Baht1,960,000
IREER @O RS 8.5% Preferred
Baht160,000
5% Preferred
Baht1,880,000
TR
1,960,000%= &k
192 8.5%18 th%
160,0005= &k
z 9
g g 5% Bk
D 2
g % 1,880,0002= 8k
Se Note: FfaE
5 ()  Sa Sa Cosmetic (China) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned 0 BBk (FE) BRARRINGBEEDR

¥ QEBRA-TFE_T-AF_AHR
HR-—ZEEZE=ZA=+—H HO#=
MEARE=TZTL+tEBTe

enterprise for an operating period of 30 years up to 5th February 2035.
As at 31st March 20086, its paid up capital is HK$30,770,000.



Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBAFRGRE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Sa Sa

International Holdings Limited (“Company”) will be held at Salon 3, Level 3,

JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong

on Thursday, 24th August 2006 at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. Toreceive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements

and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 31st
March 2006.

2. To consider and declare a final dividend and a special dividend for the
year ended 31st March 2006.

3. Tore-elect the retiring directors and to authorise the board of directors

(“Board”) to fix the remuneration of the directors (“Directors”).

4. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the Board to fix their

remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without

amendments, the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions of the

Company:
5. “THAT:.-
(A) subject to paragraph 5(C) below, the exercise by the Directors

during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with unissued
shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including warrants, bonds and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which might
require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally

and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph 5(A) above shall authorise the Directors
during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including warrants, bonds and debentures
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant
Period;

BBEESIBEGERARAR ([ARR]]) EFIN =
ZERRFNATIE (2HM) EF+—REREE
B eEEesAL ESE AR AESERESE
BITREUAF RS HBARE T EE:

1. FBEE_TTF-A=TALFEZE
BERREMBHE LR EE GRS EEE

HEe

2. ZERERBE-_ZTRE=A=1t—HIF
J& 2 REAR B B A RIS, o

3. ERRIEFUYRBEFE ([EFg))EE
BER([E£)) 2=

4. BEEZERMIEREEFEETENS-

TERRRIEIR ERIMBERE (BHEEELLE
7)) TIDRBERA AR EERASR:

5. [BFE:

A ETXECRZART — MBI
EESENARMRE (EE A T30 17E
RRT 2 —IRET] AR 31T R Ba 12
ARBRRAR 2 KRBT WHEH R
TRIRER RITE AN 23 i I
B (RERRRZRRER BFR
AR ES) |

B RELXSABRZIEESERNER
HFEAERSE T RIEAR B HRHE
MRITERE N 23 et R BAE
(BEARRABZREER B R
&57)

—
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

BRBFAgRE

©

= (&)

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the
approval in paragraph 5(A) and (B), otherwise than pursuant to (j)
a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (i) an issue of shares under
any options granted under the share option schemes adopted
by the Company; (iii) an issue of shares upon the exercise of
subscription rights attached to the warrants which might be
issued by the Company; (iv) an issue of shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend pursuant to any scrip dividend scheme or
similar arrangement in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company; and (v) any adjustment, after the date of grant
or issue of any options, rights to subscribe or other securities
referred to in (i) and (jii) above, in the price at which shares in the
Company shall be subscribed, and/or in the number of shares in
the Company which shall be subscribed, on exercise of relevant
rights under such options, warrants or other securities, such
adjustment being made in accordance with, or as contemplated
by, the terms of such options, rights to subscribe or other
securities, shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the time

of passing this resolution; and
for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company

or any applicable laws of Cayman Islands to be held; and

(i)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of

the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed
by the Directors to holders of shares on the register of members
on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements
as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock

exchange).”

EEIRIRS(A) R (B) R LB B 1R 1
SEEMRAERE (THRESIREE
MRt s At R BC 8 ) 2 IRATE(E 42
B ROBRBRSR (E& R T (i)
IRIEAR R B FTER AN 2 FBAAE ST B %
2RI RRHE s (i) N A B F] T 1T 2 RN
TR FTIT SRR A T B B AR 19 (iv) AR AR AR
A EEBER AR ERIARK S5 E
sEB I BRI TAR D LM 2 B0k 8 5
RSB+ I (V)T b i) sk i) st 4% T A A B
MR RIS BT E MR H 2 AR
TERR AR  SRARME R S fh 78 5
mATE7E FRERIRE - Al REEA R RGN 2
B& IS AIREA DRI 2 B E
RAE(RIFEE - 22 B AR R R S RE AR
T REEE S E M FE S 2 (R SR ST E
Z HRMIEREIN TEEBRARER
BRBRAARBEIRABLEEZ
20%: &

MAVRARM =

[ RARIR ] fEA RS
&7 HHIEZ #E:

ERAEE T

()  ARATEBRRAFREGHERE:

(i)  ANAFABBAMREEMAH
EHESTMEREREERATA
[ERRRBF KB TRITZH

PR JE 2 B

(iii) Zli AIRERNIRRAE LimiRE
RFREROHSUE T ARRZE R
Tﬁ%%%“’

[BR SRR | FEE BN ETE BEANRNE
Erctk B BRI R A ROFFEA
RIEEERFEZERMD 2 LLHRE2R
Bl (EEEAIRTHEERLEER
1B B AL EREE A IR 2 AR
S E AR AR B E MBS ETE S
ROz B EHRERRVASEE
ZATEARUHE T AR 5 & 2 42 7
S HBERHE) ]



6.

“THAT -

A)

subject to paragraph 6(C) below, the exercise by the Directors
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers
of the Company to purchase issued shares in the capital of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) or any other stock exchange on which the shares of
the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, and that the exercise by the Directors of all powers of
the Company to purchase such securities are subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws and/or requirement of the
rules governing the listing of securities on the Stock Exchange
or any other stock exchange from time to time, be and is hereby,

generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph 6(A) shall be in addition to any other
authorisation given to the Directors and shall authorise the
Directors on behalf of the Company during the Relevant Period
to procure the Company to purchase its shares at a price

determined by the Directors;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company
purchased or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph
6(A) during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10 per cent. of
the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the time of passing this resolution; and
for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company

or any applicable laws of Cayman Islands to be held; and

(i)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of

the Company in general mesting.”

[Eh5&:

A)

ETXOC)BR 2R EI — MR R Gt
HEEENAESRE (E2RETO R 1T
EARRB 2N MEBBE RS
BRAR (B2 KA RFIESAI L
thTREESRPEEBHERZEER
B2 PR e 2 Kb R BRI AR R E
K¢E%ﬁ%%&$“ﬁ%$%§%%
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)
BRRBEFAGEE @

7.  “THAT conditional upon the passing of the ordinary resolutions
numbered 5 and 6 in the notice convening this meeting, the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the Company which are
purchased by the Company pursuant to and in accordance with the
said resolution numbered 6 shall be added to the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company that may be allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
pursuant to and in accordance with the resolution numbered 5 set out

in this notice of meeting.”

By Order of the Board
Ho Sze Nga, Maggie

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29th June 2006
Notes:

1. The register of members of the Company will be closed from 21st August 2006
to 24th August 2006, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share and transfer
office, Abacus Share Registrars Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 18th August
2006.

2. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the
Company shall be entitled to appoint another person (who must be an individual)
as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. On a poll votes may be given
either personally or by proxy. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
A member may appoint more than one proxy to attend in his stead.

3. The enclosed form of proxy and (if required by the Board) the power of attorney
or other authority (if any), under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of such power or authority shall be deposited at the Company’s branch share
and transfer office, Abacus Share Registrars Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less than forty-eight hours before the
time appointed for holding the above meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the person named in the enclosed form of proxy proposes to vote, or, in the
case of a poll taken subsequently to the date of the above meeting or adjourned
meeting, not less than forty-eight hours before the time appointed for the taking
of the poll, and in default the enclosed form of proxy shall not be treated as valid
provided always that the chairman of the meeting may at his discretion direct
that an instrument of proxy shall be deemed to have been duly deposited upon
receipt of telex or cable or facsimile confirmation from the appointor that the
instrument of proxy duly signed is in the course of transmission to the Company.
Delivery of any instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member from
attending and voting in person at the meeting or poll concerned and, in such
event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

4. Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons

may vote at any meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such share
as if he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders be
present at any meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so
present being the most, or as the case may be, the more senior shall alone be
entitled to vote in respect of the relevant joint holding and, for this purpose,
seniority shall be determined by reference to the order in which the names of
the joint holders stand on the register in respect of the relevant joint holding.

5. The enclosed form of proxy must be signed by the appointor or of his attorney

authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under its seal or
under the hand of an officer, attorney or other person duly authorised to sign
the same.
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